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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (“Board”) of Hong Kong
Education (Int'l) Investments Limited (“Hong Kong Education” or
“Company”), | am pleased to present the annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (“Group”) for the year ended 30 June
2016 (“Year”).

For the Year, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
HK$189.78 million, representing a decrease of approximately
8.95% compared to the previous year. Loss attributable to
owners of the Company for the Year amounted to approximately
HK$144.72 million as compared to a profit of approximately
HK$33.03 million in 2015. The operating environment brought a
challenging year to the Group. Such downward adjustment was
mainly attributable to the loss on change in fair value of listed
held-for-trading investments of approximately HK$40.37 million
and the impairment losses on available-for-sale investments of
approximately HK$54.50 million.

Amid the slowdown in the global economic environment over the
past financial year, Hong Kong Education has strived for excellence
as being the pioneer of the industry. The Group worked at its best
for profession and perfection in all aspects, and spared no efforts in
recruiting and retaining top tutors in order to provide our students
with the best learning experiences.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Hong Kong Market — Diversified Strategies to Optimise
Business Network

Hong Kong's economy slowed further in the first quarter in 2016,
growing meagerly by 0.8% over a year earlier, compared with the
growth of 2.4% in 2015, reflecting a weakened growth momentum
in the domestic sectors. Education services as one of the six
industries in Hong Kong were impacted directly and faced strong
headwinds throughout the Year. The Group has been adjusting
marketing strategies to cope with market changes and challenges.
The Group adopted a cautious strategy to sustain growth whilst
safeguarding the dominant position in the industry.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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Hong Kong Education works with a number of dedicated tutors
specialising in different subject areas. They are professional and
have extensive experience in helping students with many of the
popular international examinations in Hong Kong and overseas.
During the Year, there was a remarkable increase by almost 10.0%
in the growth in the revenue on English language training and test
preparation courses. On the other hand, escalating competition
from other tutoring centres weighed on the growth of the Group’s
secondary education services. Revenue from both secondary
tutoring services and secondary day school education decreased
compared to the previous year. As a key growth factor of our
business portfolio, we will strive to maintain a steady secondary
education services’ performances by guaranteeing top notched
learning experiences from our quality tutors.

To cope with market challenges, we have properly adjusted strategic
layouts to sustain the leading role in the industry and fulfill diversity.
With the belief of learning other languages at an earlier age, the
Group allocated more resources on primary tutoring services, skill
courses and test preparation courses. The Group is optimistic about
the franchise centre expansion under the brand “Modern Bachelor
Education” ZR /N2 Apart from working more closely with the
current franchise centres, we will actively look for new partners and
channels to increase market shares. Furthermore, we made effort
on property investment in response to the structural changes. The
completion on acquisition of several offices and car parking spaces
allowed the Group to grow at a measured pace. We will consistently
seize more merging and cooperating opportunities that will generate
profits and increase competitiveness.

PRC Market — Maintaining a strong foothold for future
opportunities

With the official launch on the two-child policy in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”), providing quality education to the
children in the PRC will remain a considerable significance to us.
We have foreseen the potentials of the market. Moving forward as
one of the three new strategic priorities under the 13th Five-Year
Plan, the major goals of education will be promoting 12-year
compulsory education and fostering innovative talents. The demand
for education in public and private school systems will be expected
to increase in the coming years. We will pay close attention to
the market needs with a prudent approach. In the meantime, we
are keen on looking for potential business partners to merge and
acquire for stable investment plans in order to solidify our foothold
and gain advantages in the PRC.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

LOOKING FORWARD

Stabilising growth and controlling costs will be the effective
strategies in light of the sluggish outlook. Hong Kong Education will
remain cautious about our future plans, especially in diversifying
teaching models, and increase operating efficiency to maximise
overall benefits for the shareholders and the Company.

To adapt to the changing environment, engaging in online platforms
plays an important role in our business development plan in
order to provide the students with innovative teaching methods
and quality learning. As such, the Group can also stand out
by increasing flexibility and brand’s exposure amid the intense
competition in the tutorial industry.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt
gratitude to our shareholders, investors and business partners for
their continuous support, understanding and trust, as well as my
fellow colleagues in the Board, teachers and all the staff of Hong
Kong Education for their efforts and commitments.

Wong Yuk Tong
Chairman
Hong Kong

26 September 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

With volatile global market and economic downturn in the first
half of 2016, most of the industries have shown a clear sign
of slowdown in Hong Kong. Even though the global market is
under uncertainty, the Group continues to improve its operational
efficiency in order to strengthen its leading position in the
education industry.

The Group has always made a genuine effort to support charitable
organisations and community services. During the year ended
30 June 2016 (“Year”), the Group had been awarded the Caring
Company Logo 2015/16 from Hong Kong Council of Social Service
and Metro Awards for Corporate Social Responsibility 2016. This
is the fourth consecutive year the Group has received the Caring
Company Logo which recognises the Group’s contributions to
society. The Group will continue to make a genuine effort to support
charitable events.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Provision of private education services

Secondary Tutoring Services

The Group has been facing intense competition recently as a lot of
tutorial centres have been established in the market, and the Hong
Kong Diploma of Secondary Education Examination (“HKDSE”)
is the only major public examination for high school students.
During the Year, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
HK$134.48 million, representing a decrease of approximately
14.54% as compared with last year. Our star-rating tutors continue
to help students to improve their learning and examination skills
through various effective and modern teaching methods, to help
students to achieve outstanding academic results as well as
enhancing their overall competitiveness.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EHERER DR

The following table sets forth the number of course enrolments, the ~ FR& N E £201656 A30H |F WEFEARNZfE T
number of tutors and the average course fees of each category of — ZH B FIEARREBRE AN - ERMABLFHES !
secondary tutoring courses for the two years ended 30 June 2016:

Year ended 30 June

HEGA30HILLERE
2016 2015

Number of course enrolments (in thousands) RIBRB AKX (U FEF)
Regular courses EIRGRIE 180 208
Intensive courses BT 15 24
Summer courses SHIRE 28 33
T.I.P.S. courses eI 7 8
Special courses =RRE 15 23
Number of tutors (Note 1) BEDAS (H5E1)
Regular courses B ERE 43 37
Intensive courses FEE It 38 35
Summer courses EHRE 40 36
T.I.P.S. courses FER R TIIE 27 24
Special courses HRIRE 39 32
Average course fees (HK$) (Note 2) FHEE (KoL) (MiE2)
Regular courses BHRE 548 540
Intensive courses TR RE I 561 495
Summer courses = HIRE 507 511
T.I.P.S. courses FER BT IR 620 594
Special courses HRIRE 298 315
Note 1: Tutors may provide secondary tutoring services for all or certain Bl - BEIR] AFTESRE TENRERHEPEFHER

categories of courses. Thus, the sum of the number of tutors %o Bt ANFEEANGAIREEHRRIE  BE

for the provision of regular courses, intensive courses, summer ZHRE EABRTMRERRENEMASE

courses, T.I.P.S. courses and special courses is not equal to the MW AAFERERMB AL -

total number of tutors for the year.

Note 2: Being revenue divided by course enrolments for the year. Kiiz2 . BUBMABRRAFEERBRSE AR

As of 30 June 2016, the Group had 12 learning centres operated 72016463308 ' AEBE B 12MEL [IRARHE | @&
under the brand of “Modern Education” F X% 5. EEMHBR L

8 Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
BB (HR)REECEERAR



Secondary Day School Education

The Group has resumed the operation of the secondary day
school programme since the academic year 2014-2015 under
the brand “Modern Day School” IR H#Z. The Group recorded
stable enrolments for Secondary 5 and Secondary 6 in the two
consecutive academic years, which shows that the day school
courses are still in demand. During the Year, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately HK$2.00 million from the day school
segment, representing a decrease of approximately 19.42% as
compared with last year. The number of course enrolments for
Secondary 5 and 6 were 111 and 569 respectively with average
course fee of HK$3,080.

English Language Training and Test Preparation Courses

The Group constantly provides high-quality language training
courses for students and has been operating the world’s two
most popular English language tests including the International
English Language Testing System (“IELTS”) and Test of English for
International Communications (“TOEIC”) for more than eight years.
Our professional and experienced language teachers use versatile
teaching methods to help students build up and strengthen their
English ability in order to enhance their English competence to
meet future academic or career challenges. During the Year, the
Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$23.61 million,
representing an increase of 9.54% as compared with last year, and
there were approximately 14,000 (2015: approximately 13,000)
course enrolments during the Year. The results were encouraging.
Our experienced tutors are endeavored to maintain good quality on
course materials and to provide continuous professional academic
support to the students.

Management Discussion and Analysis
EHERER SR

ENARRE

AEBB2014-20152 F LA IR B @R IKE
ERERARRRE -AEERF RSP =ZREE
BEMESFERERENRE AR ER\ERRED
BERL-RAFER AEERARD BHSRAL
2,000,000 7t MEF R D 4919.42% - mF K=
R=REWMBARDABLIIE RE69%  FHEER
3,080/ T
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PR - AN R A AR 5 B 8715 U A #923,610,00078
T BEFIENNG.54% - RAFENA » RIZHA ARG
14,0004 (20154 : #J13,000% ) ° TS KK RS A
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HWER WRBERKBSEFREM K-
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EHERER DR

Primary Tutoring Services, Skill Courses and Test Preparation
Courses

The Group believes that students at younger age require greater
attention from tutors to guide them on daily homework so as to build
up a strong knowledge foundation and grasp the examination skills
at early stage. The Group has developed proprietary comprehensive
teaching materials to help primary school students to strengthen
the basic knowledge or concepts in the prime subjects. As of
30 June 2016, there were 7 directly-owned education centres
and 42 franchised centres operated under the brand “Modern
Bachelor Education” IRfX/NE4-. 7 new franchised centres are
underway and will be ready to start operation in the second half
of 2016. During the Year, there were approximately 9,000 course
enrolments recorded from directly-owned learning centres and
total revenue contributed by the franchised centres to the Group
was approximately HK$4.52 million, representing an increase of
26.05% as compared to the previous year. The Group will continue
to cooperate with other education service providers in Hong Kong
and in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) in order to expand its
network to serve more primary school students.

PRC Operations

Nowadays, parents are more concerned about their children’s
education thus has created ample development opportunities
for education related business in the PRC. However, the PRC
government is currently examining the policy in operating courses
on international contexts; and at the same time, the Group is
studying the feasibility of the relevant policy and considering the
direction of schooling operation in the PRC. As such, the Group
disposed of its business segment on the international tutorial
groups in the PRC to map up the development of a contemporary
education strategy. Meanwhile, the Group has been seeking the
feasibility of potential cooperation and acquisition targets to further
expand its business in the PRC.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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Investments

Properties Investments

During the Year, the Group, through Vision Smart Limited (“Vision
Smart”), had completed the acquisition of the properties located
at Shek Mun, Sha Tin, Hong Kong, which included (i) Offices
A-H, J-N & P on 21st Floor of Kings Wing Plaza 1, No. 3 On
Kwan Street; and (i) Car parking spaces Nos. P47, P48 & P49
on the basement floor of King Wing Plaza 1, No. 3 On Kwan
Street (“Properties”) from an independent third party at a cash
consideration of HK$108,827,060 and HK$4,050,000 respectively.
As at 30 June 2016, the Properties were vacant and the Group was
looking for potential tenants for leasing.

During the Year, the Group recorded rental income of approximately
HK$0.77 million (2015: approximately HK$0.66 million) from
investment properties. Due to the recent downturn of the property
market, the Group recorded a fair value loss of approximately
HK$5.23 million on revaluation of investment properties as
at 30 June 2016. The Group will continue to adopt a prudent
investment strategy and review investment return regularly so as to
maximise the benefits to stakeholders.

Securities Investments

Held-for-trading investments

During the Year, the Group had allocated more resources and acted
actively in securities investment as compared with the previous
year. The Group acquired listed securities in 12 listed companies
and disposed of some shares in the investment portfolio. As at
30 June 2016, the Group had held-for-trading investments in
securities in Hong Kong with a market value of approximately
HK$359.91 million, representing an investment portfolio of
securities in 9 listed companies in Hong Kong.

Management Discussion and Analysis
EHERER SR

"R
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EHERER DR

Details of the significant investments in the portfolio under the  R2016F6A30H HEEBREHANNEAKRE

held-for-trading investments as at 30 June 2016 are as follows: Ay N
Percentage
held to Percentage
the total to the
issued share Group's
capital of Market value audited total
Number of the listed Cost of as at assets as at
Description of investment Principal businesses shares held company acquisition 30 June 2016 30 June 2016
1R20165%
HLEHAR 6A30H
BRITRE 20165 HF%E
R 6A30H HRERHEE
REGL TERY FERHBE FRESL § 023 B TE HESL
HK$ 000 HK$000
TET FET
Significant investments
EXRE
Convoy Global Holdings Limited Independent financial advisory business, 699,996,000 4.69% 244,999 248,499 31.12%
(formerly known as Convoy money lending business, proprietary
Financial Holdings Limited) investment business, asset management
(stock code: 1019) business and corporate finance advisory
Services.
RARRERERAR BUEMBRER EEXH BEREXE
(MBRELRERERAR) % BEEEEBROSRABRRE
(RAR:1019)
Interactive Entertainment China Mobile internet cultural business, provision 929,995,680 18.88% 132,718 107,880 13.51%
Cultural Technology Investments of IT services, integral marketing services,
Limited (stock code: 8081) medical diagnostic and health check
services, hospitality and related services
in Australia, money lending business and
assets investments business.
RPN HRREGRAT  BREBAUCER RESARHRS:
(BRfn 5%  8081) BEHERY BEDMRERRS
REMEEEREERE BEEBR
EERBEK
Other investments
EHRE
Other listed shares* - - - 4,366 81535 0.44%
Hith EriiR{p*
Grand total for the held-for-trading investments - - 382,083 359,914 45.07%
FEEEREEG

*  Other listed shares mainly represented the Group’s investment in A FlRGFEENEFRIRRADEEEHER S

7 companies, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board or FrBERAA] ([BEHAT]) ERELEIZER ([BIZEWR ) _FiT
the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of the HI 2 AR & o

Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

12 Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
BB (HR)REECEERAR



Available-for-sale investment

Save as disclosed above, the Group also held the shares of GET
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8100) (“GET”) which was classified
as available-for-sale investment. In August 2015, the Group further
acquired an aggregate of 118,600,000 shares of GET on the
market through the Stock Exchange for an aggregate consideration
of approximately HK$50.82 million. On 24 May 2016, GET
completed a capital reorganisation comprising share consolidation,
capital reduction and share subdivision. As of 30 June 2016,
the Group held an aggregate of 31,912,157 shares of GET
with fair value of approximately HK$16.91 million, representing
approximately 12.92% of the then issued share capital of GET.
During the Year, the Group recorded an impairment loss on
available-for-sale investment of approximately HK$53.77 million
as a result of its investment in GET. The Group will from time to
time monitor the price movement of GET shares and may adjust its
securities investment portfolio as and when appropriate.

Performance and future prospects of the Company's significant

investments

(1) Convoy Global Holdings Limited (“Convoy”)
As disclosed in the interim results announcement of Convoy
for the six months ended 30 June 2016, it recorded an
unaudited net profit attributable to its owners of approximately
HK$7.92 million for the six months ended 30 June 2016.
With regards to the future prospects of Convoy based on
published information, the Directors noted the view of the
board of directors of Convoy as disclosed in the annual report
of Convoy for the year ended 31 December 2015 (“Convoy
Annual Report”) that the market in which Convoy was
operating was still having a surging pessimistic sentiment over
the economic environment, and might affect the performance
of Convoy. The Directors also noted Convoy's vision of
becoming one of the leading financial groups across Asia by
pursuing various strategies as disclosed in the Convoy Annual
Report.
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(2)

(3)

Interactive Entertainment China Cultural Technology
Investments Limited (“IE China”)

As disclosed in the interim report of IE China for the six
months ended 30 June 2016 (“IE China Interim Report”), it
recorded an unaudited net loss attributable to its owners of
approximately HK$98.79 million for the six months ended
30 June 2016. With regards to the future prospects of
IE China based on published information, the Directors
noted that, as disclosed in IE China Interim Report, IE China
would further develop its hospitality business in Australia.
It was believed that the plan on further improvement and
expansion in hospitality business in Australia would increase
its attractiveness and bring in more income to IE China and its
subsidiaries.

GET

As disclosed in the interim report of GET for the six months
ended 30 June 2016 (“GET Interim Report”), it recorded an
unaudited net profit attributable to its owners of approximately
HK$11.74 million for the six months ended 30 June 2016.
With regards to the future prospects of GET based on
published information, the Directors noted that, as disclosed
in the GET Interim Report, GET would continue to strive on the
I.T. market by implementing long-term market strategies and
was optimistic in its insurance and MPF schemes brokerage
business as this is expected to become one of the principal
sources of income of GET in the future.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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Due to a number of reasons, including the extraordinary upheaval
in the PRC stock market and the global economy, Hang Seng
Index dropped significantly from 26,282.32 points on 2 July 2015
to 20,794.37 points on 30 June 2016, which reflected the high
market volatility during the Year. The Group recorded change in fair
value loss of listed held-for-trading investments of approximately
HK$40.37 million during the Year. Such loss consists of net realised
loss of approximately HK$18.18 million and net unrealised loss of
approximately HK$22.19 million on fair value changes in securities
investments as detailed below.
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HRETRE (BEFERTREREHEREED
BB RAFEAR  B4EEBH201557 A28
#)26,282.32% K18 T ¥ £20164F6 A30H #J
20,794 37% RN G RBRAN - RAFER -
AEEHFBLTRHEEERENATFEEDE
184940,370,0008 T - Z B EBRBFRENRD
FEZBNHC R EBFFEL18,180,0008 T K
A BB FEE£922,190,00078 7T (40~ SCPT A
) e

Realised Unrealised

fair value fair value

gain/(loss) gain/(loss)

for the Year for the Year

Name of stock listed BEE EE

on the Stock Exchange RERRLTRGRE BERATFE REBANTHE

(stock code) ( B& 45 €K 5%) ke (BR) k& (BiR)

HK$'000 HK$'000

TFET FET

Convoy (1019) FE7%(1019) = 3,500

IE China (8081) B 427 B (8081) (39) (24,838)

Jun Yang Financial Holdings Limited (397) 5 e iz AR A F(397) (17,147) -

OP Financial Investments Limited (1140) HES R EBR A R(1140) 10,500 =

Target Insurance (Holdings) Limited (6161) ZENRER (FERR) BR A Fl(6161) (10,669) -
Town Health International Medical 57 ek B B 8 = AR (B 5 TR 1 F(3886)

Group Limited (3886) (957) =

Other listed shares* H Epgfm* 133 (854)

Grand total @5t (18,179) (22,192)

& Other listed shares mainly represented the Group's investment whose
shares are listed on the Main Board and the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange.

*

Bty LR 17 EEIEANEBARE (B
KFTERREIZER LT °
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Other Investments

()

(ii)

Early Education

The demand of professional early education remains high in
Hong Kong as parents are keen to explore and develop the
potentials of their children at an earlier stage. It is believed
that early education is an outlet to establish strong foundation
for children and is the golden period to develop their multiple
intelligences. Full Profit Hong Kong Development Limited
and its subsidiary, being joint ventures of the Group, are
specialised in providing management and consultancy
services in early education, and have been expanding
progressively over the past two years. During the Year, the
Group recorded a relatively stable growth on this business.
In the coming year, the Group will work closely with the joint
venture partner and formulate the future development plan of
the early education business in order to enhance the return to
the Group.

Continuing and Tertiary Education

The business of providing continuing professional
development courses has not been active in the education
market. The Group provides professional vocation-oriented
academic programmes in hospitality management and
business and marketing. The Group also provides training
courses in wedding and production as well as fashion
and styling through Compass College and Bridal Academy
respectively. These two brands are owned by Seasoned Leader
Limited which is owned as to 47% by the Group.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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(i) Consultation Services

During the Year, Link Resources (Asia) Limited (“Link
Resources”) and its subsidiary (“Link Resources Group”)
experienced intense competition from other market players
in the industry. It was expected that the profit guarantee
which Link Resources Group made to the Group pursuant to
the supplemental agreement to the shareholders’ agreement
between the Group, Link Resources, South Right Limited (as
the other shareholder of Link Resources) and an independent
third party (as guarantor) dated 28 April 2015, is unlikely to
be achieved. After careful consideration, the Group as vendor
entered into a disposal agreement with South Right Limited as
purchaser and Bradley Maclean and Wang Lihe as guarantors
on 30 June 2016 for disposal of the Group’s entire interest
in Link Resources Group, details of which were disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 30 June 2016.
The disposal was completed on 27 July 2016. The disposal
enabled the Group to reallocate its resources to other
investment opportunities.

Money Lending Business

China Rich Finance Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, is a holder of money lender's licence under the
Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). During the Year, the Group recorded loan interest
income of approximately HK$3.46 million (2015: approximately
HK$5.44 million) from granting loans to both corporate
and individual clients. The outstanding principal amount
of loan receivables as at 30 June 2016 was approximately
HK$40.09 million. During the Year, the Group did not record any
doubtful or bad debt in its money lending activities.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

During the Year, the Group’s revenue decreased to approximately
HK$189.78 million, representing a decrease of approximately
8.95% as compared with approximately HK$208.44 million
recorded last year. Such decrease was mainly due to the decrease
in revenue from secondary tutoring services to approximately
HK$134.48 million, representing a decrease of approximately
14.54% as compared to approximately HK$157.36 million
recorded last year. In addition, there was a drop in the revenue
from secondary day school education and loan interest income
from the money lending business to approximately HK$2.00 million
(2015: approximately HK$2.49 million) and HK$3.46 million
(2015: approximately HK$5.44 million) respectively during the
Year, representing a decrease of approximately 19.42% and
36.37% respectively as compared to last year.

On the other hand, there were growths in revenue from (i) English
language training and test preparation courses to approximately
HK$23.61 million, representing an increase of approximately
9.54% as compared to approximately HK$21.55 million recorded
in previous year; and (ii) technical consultation, management
and software licensing services to approximately HK$5.59 million,
representing an increase of approximately 40.62% as compared
to approximately HK$3.97 million recorded last year. For primary
tutoring services, skill courses and test preparation courses
(including franchising income), recorded relatively stable
revenue of approximately HK$16.31 million (2015: approximately
HK$16.42 million) during the Year.

The Group also recorded rental income generated from investment
property of approximately HK$0.77 million (2015: approximately
HK$0.66 million) and advertising income from a new business on
magazine publication of approximately HK$3.28 million during the
Year.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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Other income, gains and losses

For the Year, the Group’s other income, gains and losses recorded
net gain of approximately HK$12.21 million (2015: approximately
HK$5.25 million). Such increase was due to the combined
effect of, among other things, (i) the increase in supporting
services income by approximately HK$6.65 million and gain on
disposal of subsidiaries by approximately HK$1.19 million; (ii) the
increase in loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment by
approximately HK$1.09 million and change in fair value of other
financial assets by approximately HK$1.16 million; and (iii) the
decrease in impairment loss on other receivables by approximately
HK$1.63 million as compared to last year.

Staff costs

The Group’s staff costs slightly decreased by approximately
HK$0.46 million or approximately 0.78% compared with the last
financial year. Such decrease was mainly attributable to the net
effect of (i) the absence of the equity-settled share-based payments
to Directors and employees of approximately HK$1.14 million
recorded in the previous year; and (ii) the increase in service fee of
approximately HK$0.72 million recorded in the Year.

Tutor contractor fee

The Group’s tutor contractor fee decreased by approximately
HK$4.39 million or approximately 7.28% compared with the last
financial year. Such decrease was consistent with the decline in
revenue derived from secondary tutoring services.

Operating lease payments

The Group’s operating lease payments decreased by approximately
HK$3.67 million or approximately 7.53% compared with the
previous year. Such decrease was due to the adjustment in monthly
rental payment upon signing of certain new tenancy contracts
after tenancy expiry and non-renewal of certain expired lease
agreements during the Year.

Marketing expenses

The Group's marketing expenses increased by approximately
HK$1.22 million or approximately 5.94% compared with last year,
and was mainly attributable to the increase in media placement
and other marketing activities during the Year.
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Other operating expenses

The Group’s other operating expenses increased by approximately
HK$5.62 million or approximately 12.03% compared with the
previous year. Such increase was primarily due to the net effect of
(i) the increase in various operating expenses including overseas
travelling, copier rental, international class expenses, repair and
maintenance and sales commission paid to external agents for
introducing potential students to the Group, in aggregate, by
approximately HK$8.21 million as compared with the previous year;
(i) the decrease in donation to recognised charitable organisations
by approximately HK$2.02 million as compared to last year;
and (iii) the absence of equity-settled share-based payments
of approximately HK$1.24 million for the share options granted
to eligible persons (other than Directors and employees) by the
Company recorded in last year.

Finance costs

The Group incurred finance costs of approximately HK$9.15 million
from loan notes and bank and other borrowings during the Year
(2015: nil).

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the Year was
approximately HK$144.72 million (2015: profit of approximately
HK$33.03 million). Such loss was mainly attributable to the loss
arising on change in fair value of listed held-for-trading investments
of approximately HK$40.37 million and the impairment losses on
available-for-sale investments of approximately HK$54.50 million
for the Year. Also, the increase in finance costs as compared to
the previous year principally as a result of the interest expenses of
approximately HK$8.50 million incurred in the Year on loan notes.
Loss per share was HK$0.34 for the Year (2015: earnings per share
of HK$0.33, as restated).

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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OUTLOOK

It is expected to see another difficult year unfold under the
economic doldrums. The Group will continue to seek opportunities
to grow despite the circumstances, especially the educational
business in the PRC. Two-child policy, as well as the educational
reforms under the 13th Five-Year Plan in the PRC, have given
unlimited opportunities to the educators. The Group believes in
the power of education and is confident that these social factors
will result in more diversified business opportunities. In order to
further expand the educational business in the PRC, the Group
will continue to look for the best potential partners with sound
reputation for collaboration.

To keep abreast of our competitors, the Group is determined to
develop interactive e-learning service and looking for opportunities
to develop online education in order to provide new teaching
channel with a wide variety of ingenious learning materials to
increase its competitive edges, pull in more students, and generate
higher revenues. The Company hopes to not only enhance
students’ competitiveness, but to make e-learning essential in every
aspect of their daily lives.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has established an appropriate liquidity risk
management system to manage its short, medium and long-term
funding and to satisfy its liquidity management requirements.

As at 30 June 2016, the Group's total balance of cash and
cash equivalents amounted to approximately HK$93.37 million
(30 June 2015: approximately HK$105.17 million), of which
99.99% is held in Hong Kong dollars and 0.01% is held in
Renminbi. As at 30 June 2016, the Group had bank borrowings
of HK$14.80 million bearing variable interest rate at HIBOR plus
1.5% per annum (30 June 2015: nil). Current ratio (defined as total
current assets divided by total current liabilities) was 2.77 times
(30 June 2015: 7.56 times).

As at 30 June 2016, the gearing ratio of the Group was 23.51%
(30 June 2015: 7.22%). Gearing ratio is total debts divided by
the sum of total equity and total debts. Total debts refer to total
liabilities minus the sum of tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and
dividend payable (if any).
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Fund Raising Activities

On 24 April 2015, the Company proposed the implementation of
the rights issue (“Rights Issue”) on the basis of four rights shares
(“Rights Share(s)”) for every one new Share held on 15 July 2015
(i.e. the record date) at the subscription price of HK$0.295 per
Rights Share with the bonus issue (“Bonus Issue”) on the basis
of one bonus share (“Bonus Share”) for every two Rights Shares
taken up under the Rights Issue. The Rights Issue with the Bonus
Issue was approved by the Company’s independent shareholders
at the special general meeting of the Company held on 3 July
2015. Completion of the Rights Issue with the Bonus Issue took
place on 7 August 2015 with 1,303,756,800 Rights Shares and
651,878,400 Bonus Shares allotted and issued and the net
proceeds were approximately HK$369.10 million. Details of the
Rights Issue with the Bonus Issue were set out in the prospectus
of the Company dated 16 July 2015 and the announcement of
the Company dated 6 August 2015. As at 30 June 2016, the
Group has utilised the net proceeds from the Rights Issue of
approximately HK$324.92 million as intended. The Directors
intended to use the unutilised proceeds, which were deposited
into interest-bearing accounts with licensed banks and/or financial
institutions in Hong Kong, as originally intended. Details of the
intended and actual use of proceeds were as follows:

Amount of net proceeds
(approximate)

FrisRERH (#H)

Intended use of proceeds

s RARER &

REEH

M20155F4H24R AR A EZ L N2015F7 A 15H
(BNeek A H) |45 A — BORT A0 7% 35 10 A fit A B
I (THERERM ) cEEUNRBESREKRRN
0.2958 T ETTHA ([ ) ERREHRSAER
P B B 1 JE 3% — R AT B (TALRR ) < EEBITAIR
BT (TA AR B TT]) - HBUE RAL R 3 17 2 R2015%F
7A3EB|THARRBRRFHIAEG LEARRB LR
Rt - HHBGE R AL B 1TR2015F8 A7 5T - B
& )2 %% 171,303,756,8001% 1 A% A% 17 52651,878,400[%
ALAR 2 TS SRR F 82 49369, 100,000/ 7T © AR R 4T
REITHOHBHANAAR B BAR2015F7HI6ENE
B EARRBEA2015F8 A6 AM QM A - ;R20165F
6A308 - AEBEZRETEREBAHUKRNAERA
FHFEAI324,920,000/8 7T - EEFHZ R EE B ER KR
BAMGHRIE ZEREACFABTERBRRITR 3
TRBBHEEIRPE -FIEFENRERERBEF
BT

Actual use as at 30 June 2016
1201656 B30AZ KB A&

HK$120.00 million
120,000,000 ¢

property investment of the Group

AEEZNERE
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(i) approximately HK$17.14 million has been used for the
acquisition of 51% of the issued share capital of Vision
Smart;

#917,140,0007% 7 E F {EUE Vision Smartz51%E #17
B

(i)  approximately HK$93.46 million has been used for
funding the acquisition of real properties by Vision Smart
and other related expenses; and
#793,460,0007% 7L E. A {ER (T Vision SmartUtiE ez fT
FECREMEERYT R

(i) approximately HK$9.40 million has not been utilised.
#99,400,000% TR A E) A ©



Amount of net proceeds
(approximate)

FrisRIABH (8N)

Intended use of proceeds

FisRARTE R &
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Actual use as at 30 June 2016

1201656 A30H 2 KIR A&

HK$100.00 million
100,000,000 7

HK$50.00 million
50,000,000 7T

(i)

(iii)

(i)

(iii)

infrastructure upgrade and system revamp;

EMREHRREFRE

potential investments in companies engaging in online
education businesses; and

BERERUBESHBEBZRA R

development of information technology related
company.

BREMBITEELA

financial analyst training business and related course
development in Hong Kong;

BEZHBANMBEIRBREBRELERE

payment of interest due under the loan notes issued
by the Company on 17 December 2015 (“Loan
Notes"); and
FRARRAR2015F12817H %128
([EXZEBDET 2SS &

Fe

development of existing businesses of the Group and/
or new businesses of the Group and carrying out other
potential merger and acquisitions.

BRASBZRAAEBR/FAERBIHEBAR
ETRMEENE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

approximately HK$4.86 million has been used for
infrastructure upgrade and system revamp;
#94,860,000/8 LB FEER R A R R R HiouE

(a) approximately HK$51.00 million has been
used for acquisition of shares of GET, the shares of
which are listed on the GEM; and (b) approximately
HK$41.14 million has been used for the subscription of
rights shares of IE China, the shares of which are listed
on GEM. The businesses of GET and IE China include
online education businesses;

()#951,000,0008 T E BIFRES 5 - ER D REIFER

Lz R(b)441,140,000% T E BIERE B R
B Ak FE‘J%thZL\ fh - BB RERPE
LEBRRESBERY:

approximately HK$0.26 million has been used for
investment in a joint venture company engaging in smart
phone applications development; and

#9260,0008 L E BERER—RREBH T HRERR
AREZEEAF R

approximately HK$2.74 million has not been utilised.
#92,740,0007%8 70 W R BN B ©

approximately HK$3.00 million has been used for
financial analyst training business and related course
development in Hong Kong;
#3,000,0008 L E BIEE R 2 M A TR E B RE
BREER:

approximately HK$6.00 million has been used for
payment of interest due under the Loan Notes;

416,000,000 L2 FfES M ERFEIR T 2 BIHIAS

approximately HK$12.80 million and HK$22.20 million
has been used for developing the money lending
business and securities business of the Group
respectively; and

#712,800,0007% 7t % 22,200,000/ 7T E. 5 Bl A {E B B R
SEZEEEBREFEL R

approximately HK$6.00 million has not been utilised.
436,000,000/ 7 (4 R B A
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Amount of net proceeds

(approximate) Intended use of proceeds Actual use as at 30 June 2016
FERERE (#N) FieRERERE 20166 A30AZERAE
HK$20.00 million securities investment in Hong Kong including but not limited  fully utilised as intended
20,000,000/ 7T to the subscription for rights issue in a listed company in
Hong Kong and other potential securities investment
REBNBEFRE AEETRRAB-—HEELTAR ERBTRASEEDA
ZHBREEMEEESFRE
HK$79.10 million general working capital of the Group (i) approximately HK$20.00 million has been used for the
79,100,000/ 7T marketing expenses of the Group;
KRB —HREEES #920,000,0008 L E REARE B 2 T B X :

(i)  approximately HK$33.06 million has been used for the
relocation cost and rental of four education centres in
Hong Kong, the reinstatement of old premises, leasehold
improvement for new premises and purchase of
additional equipment; and
#933,060,000 2 AEMEREANHE F L 2 RiB
KAREE REENERR AHNEEEERER
REBINERME: X

(i) approximately HK$26.04 million has not been utilised.
#726,040,0007 7L iR AR B A ©

The Directors considered that it was prudent to finance the Group’s  ZHER A F @A CERAIRZETT) AR E B K 2118
long term growth by way of the Rights Issue (with the Bonus Issue)  RIRHESEFIE 2 8 B 0] REE N E KA
which would not only strengthen the Group’s capital base and  ZI1ER TINEAEE 2 E & EM RIRAHT BN -
enhance its financial position without increasing finance costs, ML E2HEERREERSERFERRDRRG
but would also allow all qualifying shareholders the opportunity — EEMEZE&ETHER (ERAKZET) MR HE
to participate in the growth of the Group through the Rights Issue ~ AEB kR -EFER A HBHKE GERLILE
(with the Bonus Issue) at a price lower than the then market price  1T) &R A AR RN T M AR E 7 BB F25 -

of the shares of the Company. The Board considered that the fund

raising through the Rights Issue (with the Bonus Issue) was in the

interests of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

24 Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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During the Year, the Group also utilised the proceeds from the
placing of new shares completed on 31 July 2014. The net
proceeds from this placing were approximately HK$55.43 million
and have been utilised as intended that (i) approximately
HK$8 million had used for development and/or acquisition of the
primary school tutoring services, skill coursed and test preparation
courses; (i) approximately HK$25 million had used for brand
image building and promotion campaign; (iii) approximately
HK$15 million had used for the development and operation of
online education platform; and (iv) approximately HK$7 million had
used for the rental expenses of the Group’s education centres.

Issue of Loan Notes

On 17 December 2015, the Company issued 8% per annum notes
in an aggregate principal amount of HK$150 million maturing
on the day immediately preceding the second anniversary of the
date of issue. The Directors considered that the issue of the notes
represents an opportunity to obtain funding, which was intended
to be used for the investment in listed securities which is one of
the principal activities of the Group. The net proceeds of the notes
were HK$144 million and had been fully utilised for funding the
acquisition of securities for the Group’s securities investments
business.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND TREASURY POLICIES

Share consolidation

On 11 March 2016, the share consolidation on the basis that
every five (5) issued and unissued then shares of the Company of
par value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
be consolidated into one (1) consolidated share of par value of
HK$0.05 in the share capital of the Company became effective.
Immediately after such share consolidation took effect, the
total number of issued shares of the Company changed from
2,281,574,400 to 456,314,880.

Treasury policies

The Group consistently employed a prudent treasury policy during
its development and generally financed its operations and business
development with internally generated resources and equity and/or
debt financing activities. The Group also adopted flexible and
prudent fiscal policies to effectively manage the Group's assets and
liabilities and strengthen its financial position.

Management Discussion and Analysis
EHERER SR

RAFER  AEETFBAMN2014F7 A31E TR 2
SR 2 ERIR - WL TBRE 2 SFIEFRAOR
55,430,000/ 7Tt E 2 #EE A& E A © (1)%98,000,000
BTERRBERE SWB N B2HERE RERE
N EHIRAZ : (i))4925,000,000/8 7T B AR fo i T R &
B R HEREIEE)  (ii)4915,000,000/8 7T 2 AR R R
EREEHBET A R(v)417,000,000% 7T B AR A
SE#EPLNEEFX -

RITERRE

MR2015F12R17R - ARRABITERAESRER
150,000,000/ ST A R ETHHAE —BFAT—H
IHNESSUNER -EFZR R BITRBRERE
SRS HRESARNASETIEXER 2 —iRE L
78 75 » RIFHI P15 5 IE 58 /5144,000,0008 T 2
BHANBNUBAREESsREXBZES -

HERBREHBE

B {7 & o

M20166F3A11R - HEE BT HO)RER AR A FR
AR GREBEOLVEL 2 B BT RAREITARARS
Ao A —(DBRARRBRATSREE.0GE LA G
P2 E GHFEER - BEEH BN A G ERE -
ARE) 2B BEITRMD BB HR2,281,574, 400 2 E K
456,314,8808% °

BB ER

AEBNEBRNAERE —ERDNBENEBHBE  —
BARBELBERERESR SEERETHREEL
ERFEHEREHRES AKENTRKATERENY
BBE NWARERAKENEERABY MAREY
TSR ©
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EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The income and expenditure of the Group are mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and as such the impact of foreign exchange
exposure of the Group was considered minimal. Hence, no hedging
or other arrangements to reduce the currency risk have been
implemented.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had a total of 268 employees
(30 June 2015: 300 employees). They receive competitive
remuneration packages that are constantly monitored with
reference to the market circumstances, with incentives such
as discretionary bonuses based on the Group’s and individual
performance. The Group provides comprehensive benefits
packages and career development opportunities.

Pursuant to a share option scheme adopted by the Company on
11 June 2011 (“Share Option Scheme”), the Board may grant
options to eligible persons, including employees and Directors, to
subscribe for shares of the Company. During the Year, no share
options have been granted by the Company pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities (30 June 2015: nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 30 June 2016, there were respective capital commitments
contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements amounting to approximately HK$12.04 million (30 June
2015: approximately HK$41.24 million) and no authorised but not
contracted amount (30 June 2015: nil).

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 30 June 2016, an investment property of the Group
with carrying value of HK$29.10 million (30 June 2015:
HK$29.60 million) was pledged to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited

ERHE (BR)RASERRRA

b B =, B

AEBHRARAXEIEANETEE Bt AEER
RNERBFEBE B WEBRH P EM L
BB E R R o

& B B %7 Bl i 3%

#20165F6 A30H * AEE R B 22 A268 A (2015F
6H308 :300A) - WEEL T ABF NHFHMETE -
MZEHFMEFEBN2ETMRABBEER UREBEAKE
REARREZERBEAFTER AREHE TRH
EHNBIGFEBRERERKS -

RIBARRRR2011F6 A11 B SRR AR 8 (15
rEstdl]) EFERRAERAL (BREERE
B)ROBRENRBARRRN - RAFER AR
A AR AR B A B AT B4R (T B A

BRAR

201656 A30R - AEEMESZ AN A BE (20155
6H30H : &) -

RERiE

R2016F6A30H BRI ERREA M B HRENA
BAE N EREE A AE K /12,040,000 T (20155
6H308 : #341,240,00078 7T ) - M & B B RFT
A H) B A EHE (201565F6 H30R : &) -

FREEEEN

201646 A308 + 7k £ [ & i {8 A29,100,000/% T
(201546 A308 : 29,600,000/ 7T ) IR B M %2 1E
AR ARERTFAEEN—RIBITEE-



PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the

Year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

For the Year, the Group had the following material acquisition and

disposals:

()

On 26 August 2015, the Group through Ultimate Elite
Investments Limited (“Ultimate Elite”) entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement with Mr. Leung
Wai Hon (“Mr. Leung”) in relation to the further acquisition
of 51% of the issued share capital of Vision Smart and
the entire debts owing by Vision Smart to Mr. Leung at the
aggregate consideration of approximately HK$16.81 million.
The acquisition was completed on 16 October 2015 and
Vision Smart has become an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group. Details of the acquisition were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 26 August 2015 and
the circular of the Company dated 24 September 2015.

On 15 January 2016, the Group through Rosy Lane
Investments Limited entered into a conditional sale and
purchase agreement with Praiseful Moment Limited, an
independent third party, to dispose of 40% of the issued
share capital of Ultimate Elite which directly held 100% of the
issued share capital of Vision Smart (together as “UE Group”),
at an aggregate cash consideration of HK$50 million. The
disposal was completed on 11 April 2016. Immediately after
the disposal, the Group held 60% of the issued share capital
of Ultimate Elite and each member of UE Group became
a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. Details of the
disposal were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 15 January 2016.

Management Discussion and Analysis
EHERER SR

MR HEAROFLFAHETES

RAEAFER ARBAREEFAMBLRDMEEBE &
EXBEEEMARAH EHES -

EXU R H &
RAFER AEEETHNERKREREE:

(i)

(i)

M2015F8H26H » A& & F B UItimate Elite
Investments Limited ([ Ultimate Elite |) £ 22 {87)%
EE(REEDIVERHEEERZ NBAE
B8 — S U BEVision Smart@ B 1T A H51% &%
Vision SmartfE R 2L LM R EER - BRELD
16,810,000 7t - Y R 2015F 1016 H A
ifiVision SmartE fX & A& B M E % 2 & I B
AR WIENFEBEREENA QR A B A20154
8H26H KA &7 AF) B HI A2015F9 8241
B3B8 K A ©

M2016F1H15H  N&EE & #BRosy Lane
Investments Limited E2EFHBR A A (—RBLE
=77) M B G+ B B #5% bA L & Ultimate  Elite
(HEH## A Vision Smartfy100% 2 21T A (4
BIUEEE]) ) M40%E 21Tk A BE 2N
{& /450,000,000 7t - i & R2016F4 8118 %
X o B & 1% - A& E F A Ultimate EliteA160%
BEITRA  LRUEEBHNEK B ARIKARSE
EREZERBAR - HENFBEREERAAF
HHEIA2016F 1 A15H K RHMHA °
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(iii)

(iv)

On 18 March 2016, the Company, Mr. Leung and Mr. Poon
Chun Yin entered into a second supplemental agreement
(“Second Supplemental Agreement”) to the sale and purchase
agreement dated 10 July 2013 entered into among them
in relation to the acquisition of 44.65% of the issued share
capital of Seasoned Leader Limited (“Seasoned Leader”,
together with its subsidiaries, “SL Group”). According to the
Second Supplemental Agreement, the parties agreed that (i)
the Actual PAT (meaning the average of (a) the combined
net profit after tax of the SL Group as shown in the 2014
combined accounts; and (b) the combined net profit after tax
of the SL Group as shown in the 2015 combined accounts)
shall be adjusted by adding the expenses relating to the fund
raising exercise of Seasoned Leader incurred in the year
ended 31 December 2015 in the amount of approximately
HK$2.28 million; and (ii) the 2015 combined accounts can be
prepared based on the unaudited financial statements of each
member of the SL Group for the relevant periods as approved
by the Company. Details of the Second Supplemental
Agreement were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 20 March 2016.

On 30 June 2016, the Group through Infinity Domain
International Limited entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with South Right Limited (as purchaser) and
Bradley Maclean and Wang Lihe (as guarantors), both
independent third parties, to dispose of approximately 43% of
the issued share capital of Link Resources, an associate of the
Group, at a cash consideration of HK$7 million. The disposal
was completed on 27 July 2016. Details of the disposal
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
30 June 2016.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint

ventures during the Year.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT

As at 30 June 2016, the Group did not have any other plans for
material investment or capital assets save as disclosed in this

report.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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(iii)

(iv)

R2016F3A18H AR AR EEREBEER
HE R ER2013F7 108 LM EE i (N
A5 B U B Seasoned Leader Limited ([ Seasoned
Leader | - ERIEMB AT #fE [SLEE]) A
EEITIRAMA4.65% ) F1 L E —Intfaaineg ([
ZHhERBEl)  REBEEZMDERHE FINA
REOERRT R ($5()2014F & 08K B AT
THISLEE & HBRBERFFRE (02015445
HEEBFTRMSLEBE A HBRBZEFFREMNF
{E ) 785 1B 1% hiSeasoned LeaderA &L £2015%F
AR LFEEEANEBAEETHRENR
2,280,000/ 7T &) 7 X iff & ) 38 & ¢ K& .(i1)2015%F
AR E TREBEARQRAMAESIEBE K ERA
REBHBOREEZVBEREAMGR -F=
MERBEOFBERENANAQT A HA20165F
3A20B M AMA -

MR2016F6A30H AEEFEBFEEZHBEER
ARIHEEEAR AR (EBEFH)KBradley
Maclean &% F 3788 (1ERERA) (BMABYE=
FEIL BB HE AL EARNER 2B & A R B A
EARIHIA3% B BEITIRA - 3] & K& A7,000,000
T o HER2016457 A27 B 52K - HERFHEH
BRI A R FBHA201656 H30H A A ©

B LA BEEIN ARERAFEALELMEX
WEILERBAR BERRRAZEAT-
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R2016%F6 A30R @ BRARE AW EE SN AEE AL
EAEMERNREREAEEMNRTE



Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Yuk Tong, aged 66, is an executive Director and the
chairman of the Board. Mr. Wong was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 10 August 2012 before his redesignation
as an executive Director and appointment as the chairman of the
Board on 8 March 2013. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor degree
and a master degree in Education from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong in October 1992 and December 1996 respectively. He
was the headmaster of Kei Sau Primary School from 1989 to 1990,
the headmaster of Kei Tze Primary School from 1990 to 1993, the
headmaster of Kei Wai Primary School from 1993 to 1995 and the
headmaster of Heep Woh Primary School from 1995 to 2010. He
served as a board member in the centralised board of manager for
feeder schools of The Hong Kong Council of the Church of Christ
in China for approximately 16 years. He was also a committee
member of the Basic Law Promotion Steering Committee of the
Constitutional and Mainland Affairs Bureau for the period from
2004 to 2009.

Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious, aged 46, is an executive Director,
the vice chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of the
Group. Mr. Lee is an author of a series of mathematics reference
books and the consultant editor of mathematics reference book.
Mr. Lee was a columnist in the education section of Sing Tao Daily
from 2007 to 2011, commenting on the mathematics teaching
methodology and current education issues. His experience spans
such diverse areas as education, mathematics education research,
chain store management, marketing strategy and computer aided
management systems. Mr. Lee graduated from The University
of Hong Kong, with a Bachelor of Science degree with honors in
Applied Mathematics in 1992 and obtained a Master of Science
degree with Dean’s List honors in Mathematics Education from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2012. Mr. Lee is currently an
executive director of Hong Kong Shatin Industries and Commerce
Association Limited, the chairman of the executive committee of
Salesian English School Foundation Limited, an alumni manager
of Salesian English School, a director of Egive for You Charity
Foundation, a director of Hong Kong WuYi Youth Association,
an executive council member of Hong Kong New Youth Energy
Think Tank, a honorary vice president of Hong Kong Federation of
Guangzhou Associations Limited and a member of Lions Club of
Tsuen Wan.

EFShEREHEBRE

BiITESE

EEREE 665 RBTEEREZTGIF I
ER2013F3ASHAERITET N EZREIRES
SEEA N201268RI0B BERERBIUIFNITE
Fo FAEEDRIN1992910H K 1996512 A B HEH
NREREHESTBURELT B - KE1989F =
1Q0FEEFEEEHGES/NEREK  B1990FE
1993 F EEFEAEHEERZ/NERK  B1993F &
1995 AP EEEHSEAD /| BRENB1995FE
010 ZEFEEEHEHM ) BRE - REEES
EAEY SRR EEEERNTRAREGHNESK
B #)16%F - 820044 E£20094F #1fE - 1 71 G A B K&
N EBRNERAZHEEEREENEZREEKE-

FRBEE do50 RATES EFGRETFERAE
BOITREH -FEER—RIBELEERENES
kBESEERNBERKE - N2007E2011F
FREREBBRIERNERER  HEUBHE)
ERENHEEERRER FTAEHAZEREN
KR BREHE BBHEWME EHEER MHE
EREREMEYERRREE - FEENINFE
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ANNUAL REPORT 2016
20165 3}

29



30

Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
EFREREEEEE

Ms. Wu Mei Chu, aged 52, is an executive Director. Ms. Wu
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
21 December 2012 and was redesignated as an executive Director
on 18 June 2013. Ms. Wu graduated from The University of Hong
Kong with a bachelor degree in Arts with honors in 1987. Ms. Wu
is experienced in business management and has been holding
various management positions in a number of multinational
corporations across banking and finance, telecommunications and
satellite communications business. Ms. Wu has over 20 years of
experience in the field of marketing and business development
in the Greater China and Asia Pacific region. Ms. Wu is also the
executive director of Interactive Entertainment China Cultural
Technology Investments Limited (stock code: 8081), a company
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”), since
1 October 2016. Ms. Wu was an executive director of China Natural
Investment Company Limited (currently known as Silk Road Energy
Services Group Limited) (stock code: 8250), a company listed on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange, from February 2011 to November
2011.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Ong Chi King, aged 43, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 28 February 2014. Mr. Ong received
a bachelor degree in business administration from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology and a master
degree in corporate finance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Ong has more than
20 years of experience in accounting, finance and company
secretarial fields and held senior positions in finance and company
secretarial departments in various companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Ong was appointed as an executive director of
Deson Construction International Holdings Limited (stock code:
8268), a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange,
with effect from 21 December 2015. He is also an independent
non-executive director of Capital VC Limited (stock code: 2324),
China Environmental Resources Group Limited (stock code: 1130)
and Wan Kei Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1718), which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and Larry
Jewelry International Company Limited (stock code: 8351) and
WLS Holdings Limited (stock code: 8021), which are listed on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ong was the independent
non-executive director of KSL Holdings Limited (stock code: 8170)
and King Force Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8315), which
are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, from November 2014
to June 2016 and from July 2014 to September 2016 respectively.
He was a director of Fitness Concept International Holdings Limited
prior to its dissolution. The said company was incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands and was dissolved on 30 June 2005 by striking off
due to cessation of business.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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Mr. Lee Shu Fai, aged 71, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 18 June 2013. Mr. Lee obtained a
bachelor degree in Social Science from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong in October 1972. He has also obtained from The
University of Hong Kong a Certificate in Education in June 1977, an
Advanced Diploma in Education in June 1984 and a master degree
awarded with distinction in Education in November 1985. Mr. Lee
has more than 30 years of experience in the field of education and
has extensive administrative experience. He was the headmaster of
Lai Chack Middle School from 1987 to 2005 until his retirement.
Mr. Lee has a strong commitment to the community and has been
particularly involved in the education field which continues after
his retirement. He was a member of the Court of the Hong Kong
Baptist University in 2010 and 2011 and has been the supervisor
of Baptist Lui Ming Choi Primary School since 2007. He is also the
manager of various primary and secondary schools.

Mr. Pun Kwok Shan, aged 55, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 26 November 2014. Mr. Pun obtained a
bachelor degree in history from Z=FEM# A2 (South China Normal
University) in 1984, a Master of Business Administration degree
from University of South Australia in 2002 and a doctorate degree
in enterprise management from #{& X2 (Huagiao University)
in 2013. Mr. Pun has 4 years of experience in the education
field working in the history department of South China Normal
University. Mr. Pun has a strong commitment to the community and
has been actively participating in the public administration affairs.
He is currently a District Council member of the Shatin District
Council.

Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
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Senior Management

Mr. Chau Kai Man, aged 60, has joined the group as Business
Development Director since January 2013 and a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chau has over 28 years
of experience in the field of sales, marketing and business
development and around 8 years of experience in accounting
and company secretarial matters. Mr. Chau was appointed as an
executive director of Hanergy Solar Group Limited (formerly known
as RBI Holdings Limited) (stock code: 566), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in July 2007 and appointed
as chairman of the same company in January 2009. Mr. Chau
resigned from both positions in August 2010. Mr. Chau was the
vice chairman and an executive director of RBI Industries Holdings
Ltd from September 2010 to December 2012.

Ms. Cheung Po King, aged 36, joined the group in February
2013. She is the financial controller and the company secretary of
the Company. Ms. Cheung holds a bachelor degree of Business
Administration (with honours) in Accountancy from Lingnan
University and a master of science degree in Finance from the
City University of Hong Kong. She is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a Certified
Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Ms. Cheung has over 11 years of experience in the
field of accounting and financial management and previously
worked in certain unlisted and listed groups.
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The directors (“Directors”) of Hong Kong Education (Int’l)
Investments Limited (“Company”) present their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (“Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2016
(“Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries as of
30 June 2016 are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as well as discussion
and analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year and the
material factors underlying its financial performance can be found
in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report. These discussions
form part of this report of the Directors.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The principal risks and uncertainties related to the business of the
Group are as below:

(i) The Group depends on its tutors to provide tutoring services
to its students who look for quality test-taking skills, unique
complementary teaching methods and stable tutor-student
relationship. The service contracts of the Group’s tutors with
the Group may not be renewed upon expiry. The business may
be adversely affected if the Group is unable to recruit other
experienced tutors or retain the tutors to support the tutoring
services.

(i) The Group rents education centres for its business to
provide tutoring services to students. Renewal of leases of
education centres at reasonable price is important for stable
development of the business. The leases may not be renewed
upon expiry and relocation of education centres may be
needed. The business may be adversely affected if the Group
is unable to maintain the existing education centres or look for
a suitable location for new education centres.

In addition, the financial risk management objectives and policies
of the Group are shown in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to long term environmental sustainability.
We strive to encourage higher environmental protection awareness
at our headquarters and education centres by saving electricity
and encouraging recycle of materials. The Group also commits to
the principle and practice of recycling and reduction. The Group
implements green office practices such as encouraging The use
of recycled paper for printing and copying, double-sided printing
and copying, reducing energy consumption by switching off idle
lightings, air-conditioning and electrical appliances.

The Group will continually review its green practices to integrate
environmental, health and safety management and compliance
considerations into operational processes. The Group also promotes
green awareness amongst and maintains dialogue with employees
and business partners. The Group is determined to improve
environmental performance of the daily business operations
towards establishing a sustainable environment.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and has taken efforts to minimise the risks of
non-compliance with such requirements. The Group has on-going
review on the newly enacted laws and regulations affecting the
operations of the Group. The Group is not aware of any material
breach on non-compliance with the laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the business and operations of the Group.

Relationship with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

(@) Employees

The Group believes that employees are valuable assets. The
Group provides competitive remuneration package to attract
and motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews the
remuneration package of the employees and makes necessary
adjustments to confirm to the market standard. The Group
is also passionately committed to developing the staff and
provides the employees with rewarding career paths and
people-friendly working environment.
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(b) Customers

The Group strives to achieve corporate sustainability in
providing quality services to our customers. To ensure
continuous improvement of the quality of services, the Group
regularly reviews its teaching material in order to meet the
customers’ demand and the market trend. The Group believes
that maintaining good relationship with customers can help
strengthen its market competitiveness in the industry. During
the Year, the Group sponsored various marketing and charity
events to build up good relationship with our customers.

(c) Suppliers
The Group understands the importance to work closely with
our suppliers to ensure the sustainability of our business. The
Group has established long standing relationships with our
suppliers and to ensure they share our commitment to quality
and ethics.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s operation for the Year by business
activities is set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements and the paragraph headed “Business Review” under
the section of “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 67 to 68 of this annual report.

The board of the Company (“Board”) does not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the Year (2015: nil).

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The net proceeds from the Company’s issue of new shares in
the initial public offering (after deducting expenses relating
specifically to the issue of new shares in the initial public offering
and expenses relating generally to the listing of all the shares of
the Company, whether existing or new) amounted to approximately
HK$130 million. As at 30 June 2016, all net proceeds from the
initial public offering had been fully utilised as intended.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published consolidated results and assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 203 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of
the audited consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted
to HK$192,900.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movement in the investment properties of the Group are
set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws
of the Company (“Bye-laws”) or the laws of the Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”).

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 71 of this annual report and the
statement of financial position of the Company in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves available for distribution of the
Company during the Year are set out in note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Income from the Group’s five largest customers in aggregate
contributed to less than 30% of the Group’s total income during the
Year.

During the Year, tutor contractor fee paid/payable to the Group’s
top five tutors, who entered into service contracts with the Group,
accounted for 64.93% of the Group's total tutor contractor fee for
the Year (2015: 63.49%), and tutor contractor fee paid/payable to
the Group’s topmost tutor accounted for 23.60% of the Group’s
total tutor contractor fee for the Year (2015: 24.60%). None of the
Directors, their close associates as well as substantial Shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) was anyone out of such top five
tutors (2015: none).

Contracts with the other five largest suppliers of the Group,
excluding the independent tutors, combined by values which are
not of a capital nature, contributed to less than 30% of the total
value of supplies purchased by the Group during the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual
report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Yuk Tong (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious

(Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Wu Mei Chu

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Ong Chi King

Mr. Lee Shu Fai

Mr. Pun Kwok Shan
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Pursuant to Bye-law 84 of the Bye-laws, at each annual general
meeting of the Company (“Annual General Meeting”), one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple
of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at least once every three years and the retiring
Directors shall be eligible for re-election. Ms. Wu Mei Chu and
Mr. Ong Chi King will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules (“Listing Rules”) Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”), the Company has received from each
of the existing independent non-executive Directors an annual
confirmation of independence. Based on these confirmations, the
Company considers that each of such Directors is independent
from the Group during their respective tenures as an independent
non-executive Director.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS

The Directors’ fees and other emoluments shall be subject to
shareholders’ approval at general meetings or determined by the
Board with reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS EEMBRKEN

Each of the Directors has entered into either a service contract or a BRESFDHEARRQNTFINIATRES DS EE KL -
letter of appointment with the Company as follows.

Prior notice of

Name Contract type Directorship term termination

-3 CLokokd EEEH RIEZEEEM

Mr. Wong Yuk Tong Service contract Initial term of three years commenced on Two-month notice in
8 March 2016 and continue thereafter writing

ITEREE REEL B2016F3A8H B MIF REI=F M1 A EmEEM
MRHEERE

Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious Service contract Initial term of three years commenced on Six-month notice in
1 September 2016 and continue thereafter writing

FlREEE RIS & &) B2016F9A1BBE T RBA=F NEAEEBH
R EBEE

Ms. Wu Mei Chu Service contract Initial term of three years commenced on Two-month notice in
18 June 2016 and continue thereafter writing

AR+ RIS E 4 B2016F6A18A AT IFT AH=F i 1{E A EHE A
RREZZE

Mr. Ong Chi King Letter of appointment Fixed term of three years commenced on Two-month notice in
28 February 2014 writing

FFMEE P B201442 28R R EE MR B=5F {8 A & H A

Mr. Lee Shu Fai Letter of appointment Fixed term of three years commenced on Two-month notice in
18 June 2016 writing

oy P ZEHHE B2016F6A18A TR IR A =14F i 1{E A & A

Mr. Pun Kwok Shan Letter of appointment Fixed term of three years commenced on Two-month notice in
26 November 2014 writing

BB E R B2014F11 A26 AT EE BB A =4 M E A Emmam
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These appointments are subject to directors’ retirement from
office and retirement by rotation under the Bye-laws. None of
the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has entered into a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on page 29 to page 32 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

The Company or its subsidiaries have entered into a number
of transactions with entities in which an executive Director has
substantial shareholding. Details of those transactions are set out in
the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions” in this Report of
the Directors of this annual report.

Save as disclosed above, no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance, to which the Company, any of its controlling entities
or its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a Director had a material interest, directly or
indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2016, the Directors or chief executive of the
Company had the following interests in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(“SFO")) as recorded in the registers required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules:
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LFE LT ERER
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EEEA 54 EakH BKin&H (K7at1)
Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious Interest in a controlled Corporate interest 37,472,960 8.21%
(“Mr. Lee”) corporation (Note 2)
TEGEE ([FXE]) REZEGEE R #ER NG (HtzE2)

Notes:

1.  Asat 30 June 2016, there was an aggregate of 456,314,880 shares of
HK$0.05 each of the Company (“Shares”) in issue.

2. These 37,472,960 Shares are held by Beautiful Choice Investments
Limited (“Beautiful Choice”), which is wholly owned by Mr. Lee.
Therefore, Mr. Lee is deemed to be interested in the 37,472,960
Shares held by Beautiful Choice by virtue of the SFO. Mr. Lee is the
sole director of Beautiful Choice.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2016, none of the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company had any interest or short
position in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as the share option scheme of the Company disclosed in note
37 to the consolidated financial statements, at no time during the
Year and up to the date of this annual report, was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement that would
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the Directors or any of their spouses or
children under the age of 18, were granted any right to subscribe
for equity or debt securities of the Company or any other body
corporate, nor had exercised any such right.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ OR OTHER’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2016, so far as was known to the Directors or chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other than the
directors or chief executive of the Company) had or were deemed
or taken to have interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Approximate %
of shareholding

Number of of the Company

Name of substantial shareholder Capacity Shares held (Note 1)

EEaTREN
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Deng Jiangiang Beneficial owner 62,609,600 (L) 13.72%
o=t EnEBA (Note 2) (Hf72)

Beautiful Choice Beneficial owner 37,472,960 (L) 8.21%

EnlEBA
Notes:

1. The total number of 456,314,880 Shares in issue as at 30 June 2016
has been used for the calculation of the approximate percentage.

2. “L” denotes a long position.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2016, the Company has
not been notified by any other substantial shareholder or person
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) who
had any interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into by the Company or subsisted during the Year.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

As set out in the prospectus of the Company dated
20 June 2011, according to the non-competition deed
(“Non-competition Deed”) entered between the Company and
the then controlling shareholders of the Company (“Controlling
Shareholders”) and certain non-competing covenantors
(“Non-Competing Covenantors”) on 7 June 2011, the non-compete
period under the Non-Competition Deed refers to the period during
which:

(@) In the case of the Controlling Shareholders, any of the
Controlling Shareholders of his/its respective associate is a
controlling shareholder of the Company within the meaning of
the Listing Rules in force from time to time;

(b) in the case of the other Non-Competing Covenantors, any
of them is interested in 5% or more of the total issued
share capital of the Company from time to time or such
Non-Competing Covenantor is a Director or member of the
senior management of the Group; and

(c) the Shares are and remain listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lee and Beautiful Choice have confirmed to the Company of
his/its compliance with the Non-competition Deed during their
respective applicable non-compete period. The independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed the status of compliance
and confirmed that all of these non-competition undertakings
have been complied with by the relevant covenantors during their
respective applicable non-compete period. As at 30 June 2016,
Mr. Lee remained as an executive Director.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, permitted
indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the Companies
(Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong
Kong)) was and is being in force for the benefit of the Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed below, during the Year, the Company has
not entered into any other equity-linked agreement (as defined
in section 6 of the Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation
(Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong)).

Share option scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (“Scheme”)
pursuant to a resolution passed on 11 June 2011 so as to attract
and retain the best available personnel and to provide additional
incentive to the eligible participants under the Scheme. Pursuant to
the Scheme, the Board is authorised, at its absolute discretion and
subject to the terms of the Scheme, to grant options to subscribe
for the shares of the Company (in such form then existing and
subject to adjustment) to any employees (full-time or part-time),
directors, consultants, supplier(s), customer(s), joint venture
partner(s), business associate(s) and advisor(s) of the Group.
The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years
commencing on 4 July 2011 (“Effective Date”) and expiring on the
business day immediately preceding the 10th anniversary of the
adoption date of the Scheme, i.e. 10 June 2021.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 21 days
inclusive of the day on which such offer is made. The amount
payable for the grant of an option by the grantee to the Company
on acceptance of the offer is HK$1.00. The subscription price of a
share of the Company in respect of any particular option granted
under the Scheme shall be a price solely determined by the Board
and notified to a participant and shall be at least the highest of:
(i) the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the
option; (ii) the average of the closing prices of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the 5 business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the option; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on
the date of grant of the option.
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The initial total number of shares of the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the Effective Date.
The Company may at any time refresh such limit, subject to the
Shareholders’ approval and issue of a circular in compliance with
the Listing Rules, provided that the total number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under all the share option
schemes of the Company does not exceed 30% of the shares
of the Company in issue from time to time. The total number of
shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to each participant (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant must not exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company then in issue unless approved by the Shareholders in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may determine
which shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant subject to
the provisions of early termination thereof.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of securities
available for issue under the Scheme was 45,631,488 shares
(being adjusted for the share consolidation of the Company which
took effect in March 2016) of HK$0.05 each, which represented
10% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Further details of the Scheme and details of movements in the
share options are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

SHARES ISSUED

During the Year, the Company had issued shares upon the
completion of rights issue and bonus issue on 7 August 2015, the
details of which are set out under the paragraph headed “Fund
Raising Activities” of the “Management Discussion and Analysis”
section of this annual report. Such discussion forms part of this
Report of the Directors.
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DEBENTURES ISSUED

During the Year, the Company had issued loan notes on
17 December 2015, the details of which are set out under the
paragraph headed
Discussion and Analysis”

“Issue of Loan Notes” of the “Management
section of this annual report. Such
discussion forms part of this Report of the Directors.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Tutor service contract

Transaction details

On 15 August 2013, Sense Publishing Company Limited and
Mr. Lee entered into a service contract with the Group, pursuant
to which Sense Publishing Company Limited agreed to (i) procure
Mr. Lee to provide tutoring services to students of the Group;
and (ii) grant a sole, exclusive and non-transferable licence to
the Group to use and reproduce the teaching materials prepared
by Mr. Lee for the tutorial courses organized by the Group for
secondary school students and conducted by teaching assistants
with the said teaching materials for a term commenced from 1 July
2013 and expired on 30 June 2016.

Pursuant to the service contract, Sense Publishing Company
Limited is entitled to certain fees calculated at a commission rate
(comprising of commission and gratuity components) of 60%
of the tuition fees net of any refund, discounts or rebate paid
by the students to the Group for attending the tutorial courses
conducted entirely by Mr. Lee in person. If the tutorial class is
not entirely taught by Mr. Lee in person but by other tutors or
teaching assistants using the teaching materials prepared by Mr.
Lee and/or his teaching assistants, the commission rate will be
adjusted downwards by 1.5% to 8%. The fee payable by the Group
to Sense Publishing Company Limited is the product of the relevant
commission rate and the net tuition fee aforesaid subject to further
other deductions such as the costs of teaching assistants and other
certain costs associated with his classes, including promotional and
marketing events, reference materials and copyright licence fees.
The respective annual caps of the above transactions for the three
years ended 30 June 2016 are set out below:
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Annual Caps for year ended 30 June

HECAHLEENFEE LR
2014 2015 2016
20145 2015% 20165
Estimated number of students (A) EREEIN ) 13,500 14,175 14,884
Net tuition fee (B) FHEEB) HK$3907% 1T HK$3907% 1T HK$3907% T
Estimated average commission rate (C) T FE AL R(C) 54.6% 54.6% 54.6%
Estimated other expenses (D) s Ef L (D) HK$1,000,000% 7 HK$1,050,0007 7T  HK$1,102,500% T
Fee payable to Mr. Lee and/or EIRTFERER/S Approximately Approximately Approximately
Sense Publishing Company Limited REELRARAANEA HK$1,875,000 HK$1,968,000 HK$2,067,000

£91,875,000%7C  #91,968,000% 7T  #92,067,000% 7T

Note:  Fee payable to Mr. Lee and/or Sense Publishing Company Limited = Het: BXHTFERER/KABELHREGRAFNER
AxBxC-D =AxBxC-D

The actual annual transaction amount for the Year was AREEERFERHEEHI315,0005 7T (20154 : 4

approximately HK$315,000 (2015: approximately HK$255,000). 255,000/ 7T ) °
Connection of the parties F 06

As Mr. Lee, an executive Director, is the sole shareholder of Sense HRITESFEAERAEEHRERARHE R
Publishing Company Limited, both Sense Publishing Company  H:G#RBABEHRER AR RTEAEH AR RAFINE
Limited and Mr. Lee are connected persons of the Company AL mMBRE TR ZREELHE TNEHETH
and the transactions contemplated under the service contract R BEKARRA G HEBEILS -

constituted continuing connected transactions of the Company

under the Listing Rules.

Further details of the above service contract with Mr. Lee were set ~ F#t EEZ S AT MRS S O E — FHIBEH N AR
out in the announcement of the Company dated 15 August 2013. A HERA2013F8 A1I5EM AN -
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Annual Review

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
have reviewed the above continuing connected transaction and
confirmed that this transaction was entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

and has followed the pricing policy pursuant to the relevant
contract when determining the fee payable during the Year.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, the auditors of the Company,
were engaged to report on the above continuing connected
transaction in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and reported
their findings to the Board that the transaction:

(i) has been approved by the Board;

(i) has been entered into in accordance with the terms of the
relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

(iii) has not exceeded the relevant annual caps as disclosed
above.
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OTHER RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions for the Year set out in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements (except the commission expenses
to and consultancy income from China Vantage International
Holdings Limited) constituted connected transactions or continuing
connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Directors confirm that the Company has, where applicable,
complied with the disclosure and independent shareholders’
approval requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

PENSION SCHEME

Details of the pension scheme of the Group are set out in note 44
to the consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events occurring after the reporting period
of the Group are set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has applied the principles in and adopted the code
provisions of the corporate governance code set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules as its own corporate governance code
(“CG Code”). During the Year, the Company has complied with all
the provisions of the CG Code except for the deviation as disclosed
in the Corporate Governance Report which is set out on pages 52
to 64 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, there is sufficient public
float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as
required under the Listing Rules during the Year and as at the date
of this annual report.
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AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2016 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB”)
who will retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
for the re-appointment of HLB as auditors of the Company is to be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

HLB has been appointed as the auditors of the Company with
effect from 5 February 2014 to fill the casual vacancy following the
resignation of Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu which took effect
from 30 January 2014. Save for the above, there has been no other
change in the auditors of the Company in any of the preceding
three years.

On behalf of the Board

Wong Yuk Tong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 26 September 2016
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ERELSRS

The board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of Hong Kong
Education (Int'l) Investments Limited (“Company”) is committed
to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance within
a sensible framework with an emphasis on the principles of
transparency, accountability and independence. The Board
believes that good corporate governance is essential to the
success of the Company and its subsidiaries (“Group”) and the
enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles in and adopted the code
provisions of the corporate governance code set out in Appendix 14
to the Rules (“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) as
its own corporate governance code (“CG Code”). During the year
ended 30 June 2016 (“Year”), the Company has complied with all
the provisions of the CG Code except for the deviation as disclosed
below:

Code Provision of A.2.7 of the CG Code requires the chairman of
the Board (“Chairman”) to hold meetings at least annually with
the non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) without the executive Directors present. The Chairman,
Mr. Wong Yuk Tong, during his tenure was himself executive
Director and as such, compliance with this code provision was
infeasible.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having made
specific enquiries to the Directors, each of the Directors confirmed
his/her compliance with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises six
members, three of whom are executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong
Yuk Tong (Chairman), Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious (Vice Chairman
of the Board and Chief Executive Officer) and Ms. Wu Mei Chu.
The other three members are independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ong Chi King, Mr. Lee Shu Fai and Mr. Pun Kwok Shan.
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The biographical details of the Directors are set out in “Profiles
of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 29 to 32 of this
annual report.

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and overseeing the Group's businesses, strategic
decisions and performance. The Board has established various
Board committees and has delegated to these Board committees
various responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of
reference. All Directors have carried out their duties in good faith
and in compliance with the standards of applicable laws and
regulations, and have acted in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders (“Shareholders”) as a whole at all times.

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the Company
including: the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflicts of interest), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant financial and operational matters. During the
Year, six Board meetings were held to perform the above mentioned
duties and responsibilities.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the company secretary of
the Company (“Company Secretary”), with a view to ensuring
that Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations
are followed. Each Director is normally able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expense, upon making request to the Board. The Company has
arranged appropriate insurance cover for the Directors.

Management Functions

While the Board is responsible for the overall strategic direction and
governance by considering and approving the Group'’s strategies,
policies and business plan, the functions of implementing the
approved strategy and policies as well as managing the day-to-day
operations and administration are delegated to the executive
management under the chief executive officer’s leadership
and supervision. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed by the Board.
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Appointments of the Directors are subject to retirement from office
and retirement by rotation under the bye-laws of the Company
(“Bye-laws”).

In accordance with the CG Code, any new Director appointed to fill
a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at the
first general meeting after the appointment, and according to the
Bye-laws, any new Director appointed as an addition to the Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
meeting. Pursuant to the Bye-laws, at every annual general meeting
of the Company one-third of the Directors (or, if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to, but not
less than, one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
A retiring Director is eligible for re-election at that general meeting.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (“Policy”) with effect
from 1 September 2013. The Company continuously seeks to
enhance the effectiveness of its Board and to maintain the highest
standards of corporate governance and recognises and embraces
the benefits of diversity in the Board. A diversity of perspectives can
be achieved through engaging directors in possession of diversified
skills, regional and industry experience, educational background,
race, gender and other qualities, etc. The composition, experience
and balance of skills of the Board are regularly reviewed to ensure
that the Board retains a core of members with longstanding
knowledge of the Group alongside new Director(s) appointed from
time to time who bring fresh perspectives and diverse experience
to the Board. The Board appointments will continue to be made on
a merit basis and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity in the Board.
The Board will continue to review the Policy to ensure its continued
effectiveness on an annual basis.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the Year, all of the
Directors received regular updates and presentations on changes
and developments of the Group’s business and the legislative and
regulatory environments in which the Group operates. All Directors
are also encouraged to attend relevant training courses. Effective
from September 2012, all Directors are required to provide the
Company with his or her training record on a yearly basis. During
the Year, each of Mr. Wong Yuk Tong, Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious,
Ms. Wu Mei Chu, Mr. Ong Chi King, Mr. Lee Shu Fai and Mr. Pun
Kwok Shan participated in appropriate continuous professional
development activities by way of attending training or reading
materials relevant to the Company’s business, amendments on
Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules, or directors’ duties
and responsibilities.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company met the requirement under Code Provision A.2.1 of
the CG Code which stipulates that the roles of the chairman and
the chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

During the Year, the role of the Chairman was performed by
Mr. Wong Yuk Tong, who provided leadership for the Board and
was responsible for chairing meetings, managing the operations of
the Board and ensuring that all major and appropriate issues were
discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive manner. He
was also responsible for the strategic management of the Group
and for formulating the Group’s overall corporate direction and
focus.

During the Year, the role of chief executive officer was performed
by Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious, who was responsible for the overall
management and operations of the Group. He was also responsible
for running the businesses of the Group and implementing the
Group’s strategic plans and business goals.

To facilitate discussion of all key and appropriate issues by the
Board in a timely manner, the Chairman co-ordinated with the
senior management to provide adequate, complete and reliable
information to all Directors for consideration and review during the
Year.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has at all times during the Year met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors, representing at least
one-third of the Board under the CG Code with at least one
independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. All independent non-executive Directors
were appointed for a specific term of three years.

Pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
received an annual written confirmation from each of the existing
independent non-executive Directors. The Company considers
all independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Cheung Po King, was appointed as the Company Secretary
on 19 January 2015 and is responsible for facilitating the
Board processes, as well as communications among Board
members, with Shareholders and management. During the Year,
Ms. Cheung Po King has taken not less than 15 hours of the
relevant professional training to update her skills and knowledge.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established a remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”) on 4 July 2011 with its role and
function set out in its specific written terms of reference in
accordance with the provisions set out in the CG Code during the
Year, which are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include (but
without limitation): (i) making recommendations to the Board
on the policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and the senior management and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing policies on
such remuneration; (ii) determining the remuneration packages
of all individual executive Directors and the senior management
and making recommendations to the Board of the remuneration
of non-executive Directors; and (iii) reviewing and approving
compensation payable to the executive Directors and the senior
management for any loss or termination of office or appointment to
ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise
fair and not excessive.
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As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises one executive Director and three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ong Chi King (chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious, Mr. Lee Shu
Fai and Mr. Pun Kwok Shan.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings
to review the remuneration policy, remuneration packages of the
Directors and the senior management in accordance with the
Remuneration Committee’s written terms of reference and the
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee.

The annual remuneration of the members of the senior
management by bands for the Year is set out below:

Corporate Governance Report
LEELIRSE

RAFHAY FHREEH B TEFTR =28
FERTEEEN NETFHELE (FMEESXF) -
FRESE FHHERERERILLE-

RAFER FMHEZESRTMASZARBEFNE
=

ZN
ENEERERERHNFNER EERSRAEE
EnFmMEsARTHEE e BEsE-

RAFE REFNE D 2 REREKE 2 FEFHH
o

Number of
Remuneration bands Individuals
FrEf#a B A8
Nil to HK$500,000 Z £500,0007% 7T =
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,0017% Jt £ 1,000,000/% 7T 2

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the Year are set out
in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”) was
established by the Board on 9 March 2012 with specific written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code, which are
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee
comprises one executive Director and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Yuk Tong (chairman of
the Nomination Committee), Mr. Lee Shu Fai and Mr. Pun Kwok
Shan.

The major functions of the Nomination Committee is to assist
the Board to identify suitable individuals qualified to become
Board members, assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors, propose re-election of retiring Directors,
review the structure, size and composition of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

AEREESTHMFTRNG A M B RRMEL -

REZREY
REAZES([RRZEE])R201263A9RHES
SR WRBEREATRIFTEAREmMBERE
HE TR P R AR A A o

RAFEHAY REREER B TESTAMEEL
FMTEREAR IEEREE (RBRZEETFE) -
FRESE MRBILT L -

REAZEENTIERERGNEZTSVESERKR
EEERENAEAR FEBIIFATEENEY
M ZREERTEST RIEFSNRE  ABEAE
o YEMEREHRAESTSFHhER URLEX
NGIEESE S

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
20165 3}

57



58

Corporate Governance Report
CEEIRE

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held two meetings to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board, and review
the arrangement for re-election of all the retiring Directors at the
forthcoming general meetings of the Company and the terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has established an audit committee (“Audit Committee”)
on 4 July 2011 with specific written terms of reference in
compliance with the provisions set out in the CG Code, which are
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board
by providing an independent view of the effectiveness of the
financial reporting process, internal control and risk management
systems of the Group, overseeing the audit process and performing
other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ong Chi
King (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Lee Shu Fai and
Mr. Pun Kwok Shan. During the Year, the Audit Committee held
three meetings to review the annual and interim results of the
Group and terms of reference of the Audit Committee, and make
recommendations to the Board and the management in respect of
the Group’s financial reporting and internal control procedures.

During the Year, the Audit Committee has also reviewed, with
the management and the Company’s auditors, the Group’s
significant internal controls and financial matters in accordance
with the Audit Committee’s written terms of reference and made
relevant recommendations to the Board. The Audit Committee’s
review covered the audit scope and findings, external auditor’'s
independence and performance, the Group’s accounting principles
and practices, the Listing Rules and statutory compliance,
connected transactions, internal controls, risk management,
financial reporting matters (including the interim and annual
financial reports for the Board’s approval) and the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company's
accounting and financial reporting function as well as their training

programmes and budget.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties with written terms of reference equivalent
to Code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. During the Year, the
corporate governance policies of the Company were reviewed by
the Board. The Board also reviewed the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and the senior
management, the Company’s compliance with the CG Code,
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report and the policy on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT MEETINGS

The attendance of the Directors at the general meetings of the
Company, meetings of the Board, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee during
the Year are set out below:
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General Special Board Committee Committee Committee
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Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Wong Yuk Tong TEREE 1n 213 5/6 NAT &R NATE A 202
Mr. Lee Wai Lok, lgnatious FELEE 1n 33 6/6 NARER 12 NAR &R
Ms. Wu Mei Chu HERZT 1 33 6/6 NAZ & NATNE A NIAZ &
Independent non-executive Directors BUFQTES
Mr. Ong Chi King FRHESE 1 213 5/6 33 22 NAR &R
Mr. Lee Shu Fai THBLE 1 13 4/6 23 202 212
Mr. Pun Kwok Shan BRWEE 11 213 5/6 33 22 202
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year. The
Directors have prepared the consolidated financial statements of
the Group on a going concern basis, and have selected appropriate
accounting policies and applied them consistently, with applicable
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and pursuant to the
relevant statutory requirements.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditors,
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, are set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor's Report” on pages 65 to 66 of this
annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group. Relevant procedures have
been designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorised
use or disposal; for controlling excessive capital expenditure; for
maintaining proper accounting records; and for the reliability of
financial information used in the operations or for publication.
Qualified management personnel of the Company will maintain and
monitor the internal control system on a going concern basis.

The Board has reviewed the internal control system of the Group,
which covers financial, operational, compliance procedural and
risk management functions, and in particular, considered the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function. The Board concluded that the internal
control systems are effective and efficient.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the status
of compliance and confirmed that all of these non-competition
undertakings have been complied with by the relevant covenantors.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the Year, the fee paid or payable to the Company’s auditors,
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, for the audit and non-audit
services provided were HK$710,000 and HK$605,000 respectively.
The non-audit services were mainly for other reporting services.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company maintains a two-way communication channel to
report the performance of the Company to the Shareholders
and investors. Annual reports, accounts and interim reports
containing full details of the Company’s activities are despatched
to Shareholders and investors. Such reports and other
announcements of the Company can be accessed on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Company also
communicates and discloses its latest business development plan
via road shows, seminars with institutional investors and analysts,
and telephone conferences.

To ensure effective disclosures made to Shareholders and
investors, and to ensure that the same information is made
available to the public at the same time, price sensitive information
is released in the form of official announcements in accordance
with the Listing Rules.

In addition, the Company maintains contact with the Shareholders
through annual general meetings or other general meetings, and
encourages the Shareholders to attend those meetings.

Notice of general meeting is sent by mail to the registered
Shareholders. Agenda and resolutions are set out in the notice of
general meeting.

A proxy form for use at a general meeting of the Company is
enclosed with the notice. Shareholders who do not intend or are
unable to be present at the meeting should fill out the form and
return the same to the branch share registrar and transfer office
of the Company in Hong Kong, so as to appoint a representative,
another Shareholder or the chairman of the meeting as their proxy.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS R
Procedures for shareholders to convene a general BRBABRRAXEHERF
meeting

The following procedures are subject to the Company's Bye-laws,  [3IR2FASARRZ ARMMA] - BFRIEIIFAF]
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (“Act”) and applicable % ([RELE]) MEREEREBEMHRRE -

62

legislation and regulation.

1. An annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in
each year. General meeting, other than an annual general
meeting, shall be called a special general meeting and may
be held in any part of the world as may be determined by the
Board.

2. Shareholder or Shareholders holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Company’s registered office
or head office at Block C, 17/F, 381 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen
Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong, for the attention to the
Board or the Company Secretary, to require a special general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists
themselves may do so in accordance with the Act.

3. The written requisition must state the purposes of the
meeting, and must be signed by the requisitionists and may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one
or more of the requisitionists. The requisition will be verified
with the Company’s branch share registrar and upon their
confirmation that the requisition is proper and in order, the
Company will ask the Board to convene a special general
meeting by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the registered Shareholders.
On the contrary, if the requisition has been verified as not
in order, the Shareholders concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, a special general meeting will not
be convened as requested.
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Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals BERIREHEROERF
The following procedures are subject to the Company’s Bye-laws,  FAIEFAT AR F 2 A BME] - A FE K E B AR
the Act and applicable legislation and regulation. EIRPTARR o

Either (i) the Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights of those Shareholders having the right
to vote at such meeting; or (ii) not less than one hundred
Shareholders, at the expenses of the Shareholders concerned,
can submit a written requisition to move a resolution at a
general meeting or a statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in the proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at a particular
general meeting.

The written requisition must be signed by the requisitionists
concerned and deposited at the Company’s registered
office or head office at Block C, 17/F, 381 Sha Tsui Road,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong, for the attention
of the Company Secretary, not less than six weeks before
the meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution and not less than one week in the case of any other
requisition.

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch
share registrar and upon their confirmation that the requisition
is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the
Board to (i) include the resolution in the agenda for the
annual general meeting; or (ii) convene a special general
meeting by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the registered Shareholders,
provided that the requisitionists concerned have deposited a
sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
giving effect thereto.
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Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s Bye-laws,
the Act and applicable legislation and regulation.

If a Shareholder wishes to nominate a person (“Candidate”) to
stand for election as a Director at the general meeting, documents
including, (i) a written notice signed by the concerned Shareholder
expressing his/her intention to propose the Candidate for election
as a Director at the general meeting; (i) a written notice signed
by the Candidate indicating his/her willingness to be elected,
together with the Candidate’s biographical details as required to
be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules; and (iii) the
Candidate’s written consent to the publication of his/her personal
data, must be validly lodged at the Company’s registered office or
head office at Block C, 17/F, 381 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, New
Territories, Hong Kong or at Tricor Investor Services Limited, the
Company'’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong
at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
within the period specified in the Bye-laws (the period for lodgment
of such notices shall commence on the day after the despatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and
end no later than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting).

Detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a Candidate for
election as a Director are available on the Company’s website.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

Specific enquiries by Shareholders requiring the Board's attention
can be sent in writing to the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong. Other general enquiries
can be directed to the Company through those communication
channels as shown on the Company’s website www.hkeduii.com.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the Year.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

HONG KONG EDUCATION (INT'L) INVESTMENTS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda
with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong
Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited (“Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Group”) set out on pages
67 to 202, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2016, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) are responsible for
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Companies Act of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

3 % BB 3R
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(REASHEAMATRRAREFEZ FRAA])
1 i1 R 3R

EEEBERHINFETE202EFTEHE (BHF)KR
BEXEARQR ([ERA]) REMBLRR (5H &
SEDNSEAVBRE ZFEREMHHREREER
2016%F6 A30RA MR A MBI R REEZHLF
ENGeEahEt2HKRER SRAERESHRR
RERIRER ULRETBETBRMUEREMRERE
HEEFL

EFRGAMERRARENRE

BERAEF([EF))ARERERESANAENE
BB EREEIREB RO REENR
REEBEMAFHRBREANGAVBERS REF
BEURASEMERRBLUENABABER A
EREFREVBBRRTIEFERARNRIFHERM B
HY B K #8 AR R

BMEN R E

EENEERERESENERTIE UREGAUH
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Independent Auditors’ Report
WIS

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 30 June
2016, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Kwok Kin Leung
Practising Certificate Number: PO5769

Hong Kong, 26 September 2016

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GFERRREMZEERSR

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #=2016F6H30H I FE

2016 2015
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
k3 FAET FET
Revenue A 7 189,778 208,439
Other income, gains and losses HMWA - W k&S 8 12,212 5,251
Staff costs 8 Tk A 10 (58,178) (58,634)
Tutor contractor fee BRABSE 10 (55,979) (60,371)
Operating lease payments LEMEE R 10 (45,016) (48,684)
Marketing expenses MISHERERX (21,798) (20,576)
Printing costs EN 2 A (405) (340)
Depreciation and amortisation e R8N (6,183) (5,250)
Change in fair value of investment RENEZNFEES
properties 16 (5,225) 2,100
Change in fair value of listed LIBEEBEREZ
held-for-trading investments NEEE (40,371) 56,189
Impairment losses on available-for-sale  A] i #5& & ~ B EE B
investments 21 (54,499) (6,512)
Other operating expenses HMgEmz (52,337) (46,717)
Finance costs M%ER 9 (9,154) =
Share of results of joint ventures FEBIEEE R RRIEE 20 738 924
Share of results of associates /N 19 1,615 8,259
(Loss) profit before tax BRBAl (B 1R) & A 10 (144,802) 34,078
Income tax expense FrisBiAx< 12 (321) (1,147)
(Loss) profit for the year FE (KRR (145,123) 32,931
Other comprehensive (expense) Hft2m (BAZ) A
income, net of income tax HERFR 81
Items that may be reclassified REAJHEEFSHEERRZL
subsequently to profit or loss: HE
Exchange differences arising on BREBIMNESEXEBREER
translating foreign operations fE X =58 (121) 6
Reclassification adjustment HE B AR
on exchange differences released BB A bE H R
upon disposal of a subsidiary B EAE (40) -
Fair value loss on revaluation of EhAHIEERED
available-for-sale investment NEEEE (55,201) (5,018)
Reclassification adjustment upon A ERERERZ
impairment of available-for-sale EFHBARE
investment 53,768 6,451
Share of exchange differences of Eih—fEE AR Z
an associate MEH Z58 (84) (19)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FeRaREMZEKGEER

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

2016 2015
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
k3 FAET FET
Other comprehensive (expense) income FEH b 2@ (FIs) WA -
for the year, net of income tax Bk PTIEHL (1,678) 1,420
Total comprehensive (expense) income SEEZME (FIZ)KA#EE
for the year (146,801) 34,351
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: AR ALEMEFEE (F58) & F -
Owners of the Company KABHEEB A (144,718) 33,028
Non-controlling interests IR S (405) 97)
(145,123) 32,931
Total comprehensive (expense) income A TATEEFERE (FR)
for the year attributable to: LONCE-CE
Owners of the Company IN/NETE ¥ =N (146,396) 34,448
Non-controlling interests eI = (405) (97)
(146,801) 34,351
(Loss) earnings per share Sk(EHR) 2% 13 (Restated)
(E&E5)
— Basic (HK$) —® K (Er) (0.34) 0.33
~ Diluted (HK$) —#58 (Br) (0.34) 0.33

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBkAR

At 30 June 2016 7201656 A30H

2016 2015
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
it FETT FHET
Non-current assets EREEE

Property, plant and equipment W WE KR 15 20,874 14,217
Investment properties LAY 16 148,900 29,600
Goodwill 2 17 60 60
Other intangible assets HEmELEE 18 890 1,088
Interests in associates REEE QB D 19 48,077 75,251
Interests in joint ventures REERAINER 20 9,598 10,360
Loan receivables fEUWE 24 21,791 6,854
Available-for-sale investments AT ERE 21 26,122 29,239
Non-current deposits ERBEE 22 5,640 7,508
281,952 174,177

Current assets MENVEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk HE b e GRIE 23 36,447 26,001
Loan receivables R E R 24 19,045 23,547
Amounts due from related parties FEUL B A 3B 25 1,342 1,108
Other financial assets EthemEE 34 = 2,609
Held-for-trading investments BIEEEMWIRE 26 359,914 32,345
Bank balances and cash ROEHRNRE 27 93,366 105,167
510,114 190,777
Asset classified as held for sale DEABELEEE 28 6,455 =
516,569 190,777

Current liabilities mEAE
Other payables and accruals EMENFRIBERETEA 29 15,275 16,396
Deferred income PEE U A 8,161 7,684
Current tax liabilities BIEAfRIB & & 1,072 944
Amounts due to related parties FET B A T 5IE 30 595 195
Bank borrowings RITEHE 31 14,800 =
Loan notes EREE 32 146,496 -
186,399 25,219
Net current assets REEEFE 330,170 165,558
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 612,122 339,735
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FeMBERAE
At 30 June 2016 201646 A30H

2016 2015
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
k3 FET FiET
Non-current liabilities EmBBEE
Deferred tax liabilities REHIEBE 33 1,393 1,216
Provision for long service payments REIBRG 2B E 35 1,857 1,902
3,250 3,118
Net assets BEFE 608,872 336,617
Capital and reserves BAR K EHE
Share capital [N 36 22,816 3,259
Reserves & 537,886 333,230
Equity attributable to owners of RAREB AEHER
the Company 560,702 336,489
Non-controlling interests FE 2 IR e 2 48,170 128
Total equity  E L] 608,872 336,617

The consolidated financial statements on pages 67 to 202 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
26 September 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wong Yuk Tong
Director
EER

BE

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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N EE7E202E AR A SRR EN201659H26H
BE=edEREETE YA TIALTRERRE:

Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious
Director
EEgE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30 June 2016 # Z£20165F6H30H IEF[E

Attributable to owners of the Company

SARREARE
Attributable
Investment Share to non-
Share Share  Contributed Merger Capital revaluation options Translation  Accumulated controlling
capital premium surplus Teserve Teserve Teserve Teserve Teserve losses Subtotal interests Total
L d Fakua
kx EHER RhER 1 231 EffRE  RRERE EREHE RIHER Mt Bt i

HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FEr 7Er FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr TEr TEr TEr TEr
(Note ) (Note i) (Note i)

(Histi) (W) (#itii)

At1 July 2014 H2014E7R1R 96,400 206,125 = (28321) 446 = 549 92 (68273) 211,968 205 212,193
Proft (loss) for the year EEEN (BB - - - - - - - - 308 08 9 291
Exchange differences arising on translating &80 B4 £ B

foreign operations EEMERZE - - - - - - - 6 - 6 = 6
Fair value loss on revaluation of SR AHBEREHN

avallable-for-sale investment ATHEER - - - - - (5018) - = - (5018) - (5018)
Reclassification adjustment upon impaiment A4 ER A ER K

of available-for-sale investment g - = = = = 6,451 = < = 6,451 = 6,451
Share of exchange differences of an associate I —HBE AR ZEREE - - - - - - - (19 = (19 = (19
Total comprehensive incorme (expense) FRRERA (FR)EE

for the year - - - - - 1433 = (13) 3308 34,448 (97) 34,351
Issug of ordinary shares REER 66,570 23709 = = = = = = = 90,279 = 90,279
Transaction costs atiributable to issue of BTEBRIES

new ordinary shares = (2591) = = = = = = - (25591) = (2591)
Recognition of equity-settled share-based 5

payments PGS GES - - - - - - 238 - - 2385 - 2385
Share options lapsed BREAT - - - - - - (5,499) - 5499 = = =
Cancellation of share premium account HERHEER - (221243 22143 = = = = = = = = =
Effects of Capital Reorganisation (Note 36 (1)~ BRAZMRAHE (W36 (159,711) = 159,711 = = = = = = = = =
At 30 June 2015 H2015%68308 3259 - 386,954 (28,321) 446 1433 238 7 (29,746) 336,489 128 336,617
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FeESERR

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EINGE EIN:
Attributable
Investment Share to non-
Share Share  Contributed Merger Capital revaluation options Translation  Accumulated controlling
capital premium surplus Teserve Teserve Teserve Teserve Teserve losses Subtotal interests Total
L d Fahua
kx ERER i34 a1 231} EffRE  RRERE EREHE RHER Mt 1] i
HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$000
FEr FEr TEr TEr TEr FEr TEr TEr i3 TEr TEr i3
(Note ) (Note i) (Note i)
(#iti) (W) (Histii)
At 1 July 2015 01587818 3259 - 386,954 (28321) 446 1433 2,38 79 (29,746) 336,489 18 336,617
Loss for the year - - - - - - - - (144,718) (144,718) (405) (145,123)
Exchange differences arising on translating
foreign operations EizE - - - - - - - (121) = (121) = (121)
Reclassification adjustment on exchange HE-EHBRARAEY
diferences released upon disposal of EXzENENARAR
a subsidiary - - - - = = s (40) = (40) = (40)
Fair value loss on revaluation of BRAHHERENATH
avaiable-for-sale investment F# - - - - - (55,201) = = - (55,201) = (55,201)
Reclassification adjustment upon impaiment A4 ERAHERHER
of available-for-sale investment FEAR - - - - - 53,768 - - - 53,768 - 53,768
Share of exchange differences of an associate  FERE— B E AR ZERZE - - - - - - - (84) & (84) = (84)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FEEPARNLEE - - - - - (1433) = (245) (144718) (146,3%) (405) (146,801)
Issue of rights sheres and bonus shares ERRORDR 19557 365,052 - - - - - - - 384,609 - 384,609
Transacton costs atirbutable to issue of BEBREERSRA
new ordinary shares = (15,553) - = = = = 3 - (15,53) = (15,53)
Share options lapsed BRERT - - - - - - (2,385) - 238 = = =
Changes in ownership interests KEAAEAEESRD
in a subsidiary without change of control (i8] -2 - - - - - - - - 1,553 1,553 agu47 50,000
At 30 June 2016 H2016%£68308 22816 349,49 386954 (28,321) 446 - = (166) (170,526) 560,702 8170 608872
Notes: Bt -
(i)  The contributed surplus of the Group represents the credit arising () AKEZEHRBIEARQTN201595 A B 55 %

EBRMEIBRARAEEZER - EETRIBARAZ
REARN R PR AER 2 ED T AL Rz ss  BEAN
HEARRE 2 RETEE-

from the cancellation of share premium account and the reduction
of share capital of the Company in May 2015. The balance may be
utilised by the Directors in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws
and all applicable laws, including to eliminate the accumulated losses
of the Company.

A DffE # #5Sino Network Group Limited ([Sino
Network | ) B2 78 22 &) 1R 1% & B & 40 1 20104F Bt 12 B
Express Education Limited & 7A20114F Sino Network )&
HEBHITRAMBITHRONEEZMHEEE-

(i) The merger reserve represented the difference between the nominal (ii)
value of the shares of Sino Network Group Limited (“Sino Network”)
and the Company issued in exchange for the entire issued share
capital of Express Education Limited in 2010 and Sino Network
pursuant to group reorganisation in 2011.

B AT B B R AR RN M8 A Rl ey e
FRELREIE R REN — BB R FHIE -

(iii) The capital reserve represented capital contribution arising from (iii)
transfers of interest in subsidiaries to shareholders and waiver of
amount due to a shareholder in prior periods.

72 Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= A, iz =
FReallERE
For the year ended 30 June 2016 #=2016F6H30H I FE

2016 2015
Notes HK$°000 HK$000
iilz3 FAEIT FET
Cash flows from operating activities BETHREHEQRE
(Loss) profit before tax BRA A (B 1R) & A (144,802) 34,078
Adjustments for: FATIEBELFAE:
Share of results of associates AN E (1,615) (8,259)
Share of results of joint ventures EIEEERNRIER (738) (924)
Bank and other interest income HRIT R H A F S HA (13) (130)
Finance costs M ER 9,154 -
Change in fair value of HthEemEEL
other financial assets NEEED) 2,609 1,445
Change in fair value of listed ITTIREEBEREY
held-for-trading investments N EEE 40,371 (56,189)
Change in fair value of investment "EMEZ A TFEES
properties 5,225 (2,100)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ek =1 NN ol g (1,192) (6)
Loss on disposal of property, LEWE  WE R
plant and equipment HEHEE 1,337 243
Depreciation of property, Y- BEEEETE
plant and equipment 5,985 5,052
Amortisation of intangible assets m A EEE 198 198
Impairment losses on AHEERE 2
available-for-sale investments B E R 54,499 6,512
Impairment losses on amount due JEU—BRIEANTHRIBZ
from a related party REEE = 65
Impairment losses recognised on HAh e W RIB TR Z
other receivables REEE 46 1,673
Provision for long service payments RHERG B E 69 20
Expense recognised in respect MR A 2 45 B AR D
of equity-settled share-based RBERN AR
payments - 2,385
Dividends received from listed B ETHIEEERERN
held-for trading investments &8 52 =
Operating cash flows before movements ‘&:&E & & & S F1HY
in working capital KEIRERE (28,815) (15,937)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEeBeRER
For the year ended 30 June 2016 & Z2016F6H308 It F[E

2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
bt F#ET FET
Increase in rental deposits, trade and Heke BHK
other receivables H b Uk 5K IE 38 A0 (10,946) (1,393)
Increase in loan receivables JE U B SR hn (10,435) (24,368)
Increase in amounts due FEU 828 A - BIEE N
from related parties (234) (198)
(Increase) decrease in listed LETRIEEEIRE (M) R
held-for-trading investments (367,992) 32,264
Increase in deposits, e BEMENRIER
other payables and accruals FEETE R 1,488 6,065
Increase in deferred income i FE WA 38 0 477 175
Decrease in long service payments REARE & R (114) (39)
Cash used in operations CUERMAMIE S (416,571) (3,431)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refund REBFEBNEH - 249
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid B REEMER (15) (59)
Net cash used in operating activities KEEEFTRAMNIR S F8 (416,586) (3,241)
Cash flows from investing activities BRETHREHRERE
Withdrawal of fixed deposits held RHERIBEBGE=@AZ
at banks with original maturity R1TEBTFERK
over three months - 17,430
Interest received B A B 13 130
Dividends received from associate and & UgHt & A B
joint venture EENTHKE 8,550 3,380
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE BE K
plant and equipment B CE O 966 412
Purchase of available-for-sale EEAHIEERE
investments (52,815) (18,753)
Advances to an associate —E B2 R B ATE R 19 - (15,200)
Purchase of investment properties BEREWE (93,506) =
Purchase of property, BEWME HER&E
plant and equipment (15,561) (5,580)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of WiE—FRBARR S
a subsidiary it i FER 40 (16,809) -
Net cash inflow on disposal of LEWNBRARRE
subsidiaries AR RE 41 2,455 10
Net cash used in investing activities KEEEFAMNIRE FE (166,707) (18,171)

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEeBaRER
For the year ended 30 June 2016 & =2016F6H30H I FE

2016 2015
Notes HK$°000 HK$000
iilz3 FAEIT FET
Cash flows from financing activities MEITHREHRAQRE
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 277 Z BT IE 384,609 90,279
Payment of transaction costs IS ETHEBRR
attributable to issue of FEIER S KA
new ordinary shares (15,553) (2,591)
Advances from (repayment to) related 28 (EE)BEATRIE
parties 400 (37)
Net proceeds from issue of loan notes ~ BEITERZIEMERBFE 144,000 -
Proceeds on disposal of partial interest &M B A RIZEO #ExE (I 4
in subsidiaries without losing control KEEHRE) TS A 50,000 =
New bank borrowings raised HILIRITIEE 25,300 =
Repayments of bank borrowings BERITEE (10,500) -
Interest paid ERFE (6,639) -
Net cash generated BEFTFHAENRS
from financing activities FEE 571,617 87,651
Net (decrease) increase in cash and ReERBEEEY OFD)
cash equivalents 0 F R (11,676) 66,239
Cash and cash equivalents at FYNRERREEEY
the beginning of year 105,167 38,922
Effects of exchange rate changes R TR (125) 6
Cash and cash equivalents FRMNR e &
at the end of year, represented by HeFEY:
bank balances and cash BISRITE % IR 93,366 105,167
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R e MEB BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

76

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman lIslands on 26 January
2011 and continued in Bermuda on 7 May 2015 (Bermuda
time). The registered office of the Company is located
at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda and its principal place of business in Hong Kong
is located at Block C, 17/F, 381 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong. Its shares have been listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”) since 4 July 2011.

The Company acts as an investment holding company
while its principal subsidiaries are principally engaged in
the provision of private educational services, investment in
securities, property investments and money lending business.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

(a) HKFRSs applied in the current year

In the current year, no HKFRSs (a collective term for
accounting standards, amendments and interpretations)
that were issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) are mandatorily effective
for the Group’s financial year beginning 1 July 2015.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited

ERHE (BB RASERRRA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 & =2016F6H30H I FE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 7
Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 2
Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Disclosure Initiative

Disclosure Initiative®

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses®

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation!

Agriculture: Bearer Plants!

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements!

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012 - 2014 Cycle!

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions*

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception!

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture®

BMBEEEN]) (£

2. ERWIRESBIERMEBEEN([F

(b) EMMERKERZHITREETE

RUMBHREER

AREBW KRBT EA TS EME R RER
M AT RS IERT BB IS A -

BRGH RS IRNET
BAGHRASTRNE]
BEGHERBI2RMELT

BEGERFIRRER
R ER ol )
BRGHEAFINRER
ST EAIF4RNER]
BEGHERB2RMERT

BRMBREENET]

BANBRE RN
5]

BREMBREEAS10%
BAMBRE ERNFE12R
RER G LR F28H A
31

BAMBRE LN F10%:
RE R G LR F28H A

37

BB

BB

HAREEARIEL
BEgE:

BRI R
k!

B EEMED

BUNBRRL
A

20124 2201445 1A 5
BEMBRE LR
ZFEE!

SABCHE AR S
RHNN B R E

REEE: ERES
AE#R!

BA%E RAB RO
AEDAZMZ
AEH GRS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisition of Interests
in Joint Operationst

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarification to HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers*

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers*

HKFRS 16 Leases®

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2016

2 Effective for first annual HKFRS consolidated
financial statements beginning on or after
1 January 2016

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017

- Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019

® Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined

The Group had already commenced an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs to the
Group and is not in a position to state whether these
would have a significant impact on the Group’s results
and the financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) (“CQ") regarding preparation of accounts
and Directors’ reports and audits became effective for
the Company for the financial year ended 30 June 2016.
Further, the disclosure requirements set out in the Listing
Rules regarding annual accounts have been amended
with reference to the CO and to streamline with HKFRSs.
Accordingly the presentation and disclosure of information
in the consolidated financial statements for the financial year
ended 30 June 2016 have been changed to comply with
these new requirements. Comparative information in respect
of the financial year ended 30 June 2015 are presented or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements based on
the new requirements. Information previously required to be
disclosed under the predecessor Companies Ordinance or
Listing Rules but not under the CO or amended Listing Rules
are not disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for the investment properties
and certain financial instruments that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e |level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 & =2016F6H30H I FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by
the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when
the Company:

o has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

e potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

e rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’'s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2016 & =2016F6H30H I FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value
of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39,
or when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations (other than business
combinations involving entities under common
control)

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome
Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (other than business
combinations involving entities under common
control) (Continued)

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policies below); and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other
types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair
value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (other than business
combinations involving entities under common
control) (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control) and the resulting gain or loss,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would
be appropriate if that interests were disposed of.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (other than business
combinations involving entities under common
control) (Continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as at the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised as at
that date.

Business combinations involving entities under
common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements items of the combining entities in which
the common control combination occurs as if they had been
combined from the date when the combining entities first
came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are consolidated using the existing book values from the
controlling parties’” perspective. No amount is recognised in
respect of goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in the net
fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities over cost
at the time of common control combination, to the extent of
the continuation of the controlling parties’ interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining entities from the earliest date presented or since
the date when the combining entities or businesses first came
under the common control, where this is a shorter period,
regardless of the date of the common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses had
been combined at the end of the previous reporting period
or when they first came under common control, whichever is
shorter.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on acquisition in a reporting period, the cash
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit
or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of the profit or loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate and a joint venture is described below.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)
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The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint BENTREENINEEREEHA B
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial BEFATANERETBRE RIEFHIRE

statements using the equity method of accounting, except
when the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held
for sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate
or joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in
that associate or joint venture (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’s investment in an associate or a joint
venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate or
a joint venture, or when the investment (or a portion thereof)
is classified as held for sale. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate or joint venture and the
retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance
with HKAS 39. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate or joint venture at the date the equity method
was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the
associate or joint venture is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
associate or joint venture on the same basis as would be
required if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit
or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
or a joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion
of the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group (such as a sale or contribution of
assets), profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related to
the Group.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or
disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (disposal group) and its sale is highly
probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of classification.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of
control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group will
retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after
the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
disposal of an investment, or a portion of an investment, in
an associate or joint venture, the investment or the portion of
the investment that will be disposed of is classified as held for
sale when the criteria described above are met, and the Group
discontinues the use of the equity method in relation to the
portion that is classified as held for sale. Any retained portion
of an investment in an associate or a joint venture that has not
been classified as held for sale continues to be accounted for
using the equity method. The Group discontinues the use of
the equity method at the time of disposal when the disposal
results in the Group losing significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture.

After the disposal takes place, the Group accounts for
any retained interest in the associate or joint venture in
accordance with HKAS 39 unless the retained interest
continues to be an associate or a joint venture, in which case
the Group uses the equity method (see the accounting policy
regarding investments in associates or joint ventures above).

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held
for sale are measures at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs of disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERBE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Franchising income includes initial fees and continuing
franchise fees. Initial fees are recognised when the Group has
performed substantially all initial services and other obligations
required of the franchisor (the Group) under the franchise
agreements. Continuing franchise fees represent fees charged
for the use of continuing rights granted by a franchise
agreement, or for other services provided during the period
of a franchise agreement, are recognised as revenue as the
services are provided or the rights are used.

Income from provision of tutoring and education services is
recognised when the tutoring and educational services are
rendered.

Management, consultancy and advertising fee income
is recognised when the management, consultancy and
advertising services are rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholder’s right to receive the payment has been
established (provided that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can
be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for
leasing below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Deferred income

Deferred income represents the tuition fee received in
advance. Deferred income is recognised as revenue when the
tuition services are rendered.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERBE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land for own use (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of “translation reserve” (attributed
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement that includes a foreign operation of which
the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
is re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e.
partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements that do
not result in the Group losing joint control), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified
to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERBE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered services entitling
them to the contributions.

Provision for long service payments

Provision for long service payments under the requirements
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is recognised when
the employees have rendered services entitling them to the
benefits. The amounts recognised are determined at the
management’s best estimate of the future cash outflow for
settlement of the obligations and measured on a discounted
basis, if the effect is material.

Share-based payments arrangements

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received
is determined by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the date of grant and is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share options reserve).

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “(loss) profit before tax” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and
leasehold land (classified as finance leases) held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties are
initially measured at cost, including transactions costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at their fair values. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are included
in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below).

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect
of goodwill above)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are mainly classified into the
following specified categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), available-for-sale (“AFS”)
financial assets and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified
as at FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains
or losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
it in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as
at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in Note 6.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c)
financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as
AFS financial assets and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the carrying amount of AFS monetary financial
assets relating to interest income calculated using the effective
interest method and dividends on AFS equity investments
are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying
amount of AFS financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading
of investment revaluation reserve. When the investment is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on financial
assets below).

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit
or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets (Continued)

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity investments
are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at
the end of each reporting period (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment of financial assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables, loan
receivables, amounts due from related parties and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment (see the
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition
of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

BEXEEE (&)

Financial instruments (Continued) &mTIA(EZ)
Financial assets (Continued) EHEE(&F)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) THEERE (&)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e  disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period, as well as observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods (see the
accounting policy below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an
impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation
reserve. In respect of AFS debt investments, impairment
losses are subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an
increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the recognition of the
impairment loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERBE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including other payables and accruals,
amounts due to related parties, bank borrowings and loan
notes) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition
of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts
are not measured at FVTPL.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety,
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise, and
the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part
that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative
gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the Directors are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the Directors have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios and
concluded that the Group's investment properties are not
held under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred taxation on
investment properties, the Directors have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale is not rebutted. As a result, the Group
has not recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair
value of investment properties as the Group is not subject to
any income taxes on the fair value changes of the investment

properties on disposal.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

4.

EEEHABNRAEHSRABERHERR

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY iR (E)
(Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty AP RAREENEERE

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of intangible asset with indefinite
useful life

Determining whether the intangible asset is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash generating unit
to which intangible asset has been allocated. The value in
use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise.

Provision for long service payments

The provision for long service payments is based on the
best estimate of the future payments required to settle the
obligations under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance in
relation to the employees of the Group in Hong Kong.

In making this judgement, the management mainly considers
the number of current employees who have achieved the
required number of years of service to the Group, at the
end of the reporting period, who are eligible for long service
payments under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the
employee turnover rate as well as salary growth. Any change
in these estimates will affect the provision to be recognised.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at
fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the
fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where observable
market data are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation and works closely
with the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that
are not based on observable market data to estimate the fair
value of certain types of financial instruments. The use of
valuation models and assumptions in valuing these financial
instruments is subjective and requires varying degrees of
judgement. Notes 6 and 16 provide detailed information about
the valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used
in the determination of the fair value of various assets and
liabilities.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts net of
cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements.

The management reviews the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital, and
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new shares issues and debt financing.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERRE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

4.

EREEHABNRAEHSRFABERHERR
iR (&)

nk

FHSRFTEEMMEERE (&)
RFEHERGEEF
AEEBHEERAERMH2RE R ITFE
AHE-RfERI—HEEK—HABENAFER A
SEERAESNMSABREE EREER
AEEMSEER AKRERIE =8 ERM
ERETEET RS ERIINSEEMETSIE
REEELETEENGERDTD R ARE-

REHETEASMTAZ ATERS  AEER
REEL R ETRR TSR BARE
LR » Bt 5 % B T B A0 14 P 4 FR B (18
2R BTV E R - AR R R AR 2 B -
ftireR 16 M A ME TS TAERAMZ AT
R 2 (EERTS A BE R EER HE
BR o

BFERER

AEEEEEEAURRAEEEBEBES
4 UEBELES RS GRS RED
BB L FEEAEENEERRRIETE.

AEENEARBEERNRAS RS EEY
ZEBRARBEEARGES (BRESETR
) e

AREBTZEMINEIE NN EARZRKBRIR o

EEEEHRRANEARB - ER/ARTH— B
D EBEEEREAKANEZHERE KRG RN
o W B BIRN S BITHRREEREF
BHBEEANRE-

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
20165

113



114

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERBE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. 2MIH
Categories of financial instruments EMITAEBHR
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FEr
Financial assets TREE
Fair value through profit or loss BRFEFAER
Held-for-trading investments BIEEBRE 359,914 32,345
Derivative financial instruments MESMIA - 2,284
Contingent consideration HARE - 325
Loans and receivables (including B3 B IR
cash and cash equivalents) (’E%iﬁﬁ&iﬁ@%fg%) 171,278 161,391
Available-for-sale investments A HEIRE 26,122 29,239
Financial liabilities TRARE
Amortised cost B8 A A 167,619 8,206
Financial risk management objectives and policies MERREEEARRBE

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, trade and other receivables,
loan receivables, amounts due from related parties,
derivative financial instruments, contingent consideration,
held-for-trading investments, bank balances and cash, other
payables and accruals, amounts due to related parties,
bank borrowings and loan notes. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate the effects of these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the manner in
which it manages and measures the risks.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group's bank balances have exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market
interest rate on bank balances. The Group is also exposed to
fair value interest rate risk related primarily to its fixed-rate
loan receivables . The Directors consider the Group’s exposure
of the fair value interest rate risk on fixed-rate loan receivables
and the cash flow interest rate risk on its bank balances are
insignificant. Therefore, no sensitivity analysis is presented.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities (Notes 21 and 26). The
management has appointed a special team to monitor the
price risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure should
the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period.

If the prices of the respective listed equity securities had been
10% higher/lower:

e the post-tax loss for the year would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$30,053,000 (2015: post-tax profit
for the year would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$2,701,000) as a result of the change in fair value of
listed security investments; and

e the investment revaluation reserve for the year would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$1,691,000
(2015: HK$2,130,000) as a result of change in fair value
of the listed security investments.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
an obligation by the counterparties is the carrying amount
of those assets in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Except for the financial assets described as below,
the management considers the credit risk on the remaining
financial assets minimal.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk
on trade and other receivables with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties.

The credit risk on bank balances is minimal as such amounts
are placed with banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies or good reputation.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which
are deposited with several banks with high credit ratings or
good reputation, the Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents and
reserve borrowing facilities which are deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

As at 30 June 2016, the Group has available short and
medium term bank loan facilities of HK$32,000,000 (2015:
HK$12,000,000).

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay and includes both interest and
principal cash flows for non-derivative financial liabilities.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

Moreover, the following tables detail the Group’s liquidity
analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted gross
outflows on those derivatives instruments that require gross
settlement. The liquidity analysis for the Group’s derivative
financial instruments are prepared based on the contractual
maturities as the management considers that the contractual
maturities are essential for an understanding of the timing of
the cash flows of these derivatives.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from market interest rates
prevailing at the end of reporting period.
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More than
1 year
Weighted On demand but not Total
average or within more than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 5 years cash flows amounts
mEFY BRERS 1£L EE AURR&
flE 1R FiBilsE mEAE IRE{E
% HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FHET FET FET
As at 30 June 2016 #®201656A30H
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ FEXT£ 2 @B &
Other payables and accruals Hi RSB R ETER N/A i A 5,728 = 5,728 5,728
Amounts due to related parties  JEfE8iE A LB N/A i H 595 - 595 595
Variable rate bank borrowings FERITEE 1.89% 14,800 = 14,800 14,800
Loan notes BERE 11% 168,000 - 168,000 146,496
189,123 - 189,123 167,619
As at 30 June 2015 ®20155%6A30H
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ FE{T4£ % @A &
Other payables and accruals HE e B K et E A N/A i 8,011 = 8,011 8,011
Amounts due to related parties R B A 7R N/A NER 195 - 195 195
8,206 - 8,206 8,206
Derivatives — gross settlement — $T4£ T A~ EHEE
Vendor Put Option (as defined & 7 3804 B4 (F & R HI3E34)
in Note 34) (note) (Hiit) N/A T & F > 4,826 4,826 -
Note: The Vendor Put Option refers to a put option held by HaE - B h BT R A SR AR AT ([F]

the non-controlling shareholders of Able Investment
Development Limited (“Able Investment”) arising from
business combination and the amount disclosed above is
the maximum amount the Group could be required to pay
under the Acquisition Agreement (as defined in Note 34),
if the conditions specified in the Acquisition Agreement
have been fulfilled (see Note 34). Based on expectations
for the year ended 30 June 2015 the management
considered that it was unlikely that any amount would be
payable under the Vendor Put Option.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.
Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets and financial
liabilities.

RIFEREBEZLNFEN BN I EALHBETE
RARHLFE

AEEROEREELRSRABRTHRER KRR
RFEFE- TRABERGANATEEZSF S

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
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The following table gives information about how the fair values
of these financial assets and financial liabilities are determined

(in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

REEMEBRAGRZIA
ERBABIR)

FE(LERMAM/ES

Valuation Relationship of
Financial assets/ Fair value as at Fair value technique(s) and unobservable input(s)
financial liabilities 30 June 2016 hierarchy significant input(s) to fair value
1#2016%6A30H NEE BERER AUHRRRANRR
SMEE SMAR BAEE &5 EXBANE LFERE
Held-for-trading Listed equity securities in Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active N/A
non-derivative Hong Kong - approximately market
financial assets HK$359,914,000
(2015: approximately
HK$32,345,000) (Note 26)
FEE BT BB LMRAES - F—R EETISMREAR N EH
Ea) ﬁ?‘ #)359,914,000% 1T
(2015% : #932,345,000% 75 )
(Hiz26)
Listed available-for-sale Listed equity securities in Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active N/A
investment Hong Kong — approximately market
HK$16,914,000
(2015: approximately
HK$21,300,000) (Note 21)
FHAHEERE BB LTRAE S - F—k ERTEMREAE NEH
#716,914,0007%8 10
(20154 : #921,300,0007 7T)
(Hiz21)
Derivative financial Purchaser call option on Level 3 Binomial option pricing model The higher the volatility,
instruments issued share capital of Able the higher the fair
Investment — Nil (2015: Key unobservable input is: value
approximately HK$670,000) volatility of 31% over the
(Note 34) option life by making reference
to volatility of the similar
companies in education
business for the year ended
30 June 2015
fTHEEmIA %J%ﬁa%nmz SR BZR “EABETERN &'Ila as
EHE-= ATERR

(20154 : #9670 000 7T)
(H1i£34)

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERRE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments

6. ®MTIR (&

EMITAZAFEHE (&)

(Continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that REEERBEEELTFEIENEIEELHMEE
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued) REBHLFE (&)
Valuation Relationship of
Financial assets/ Fair value as at Fair value technique(s) and unobservable input(s)
financial liabilities 30 June 2016 hierarchy significant input(s) to fair value
1#2016F6A 300 LFHE HEHER AUHRRABRRE
SRMEE SMAR BAEE %5 EXBANE LFERE
Derivative financial Vendor Put Option on Level 3 Binomial option pricing model The higher the volatility,
instruments equity investment in Able the higher the fair
Investment — Nil Key unobservable input is: value
(2015: Insignificant) volatility of 31% over the
(Note 34) option life by making reference
to volatility of the similar
companies in education
business for the year ended
30 June 2015
fTEeRIA MERRERARE 2 E=H “EAREEERS REDS:
EhRLHE-E ATERS
(2015% : T EX) FETBEGARE EHE
(H15#34) 201566 A30ALLEE  £%
ZENUBEEBRAZRE
HEFR M 2R IER31%
Derivative financial Purchaser put option on Level 3 Binomial option pricing model The higher the volatility,
instruments equity investment in the higher the fair
Able Investment - Nil Key unobservable input is: value
(2015: approximately volatility of 31% over the
HK$1,614,000) option life by making reference
(Note 34) to volatility of the similar
companies in education
business for the year ended
30 June 2015
THEemIA MERRERAREZ E=4 “EABETERN RIERR
ERRLHE-& ATERR

(2015% : 471,614,000/ 7T )
(Ht:£34)

IETABERGAHE HE
201566 A30H ILEE » £4
ERUABEB AR KR
HRREEIR A 2 K 18 A31%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERBE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. @MIA (&
Fair value measurements of financial instruments SMITAZATFEIE (£)
(Continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that IR MR EZ L TFEIBENERELHEE
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued) REMBHLFE (&)
Valuation Relationship of
Financial assets/ Fair value as at Fair value technique(s) and unobservable input(s)
financial liabilities 30 June 2016 hierarchy significant input(s) to fair value
1#2016F6A 300 [EE HERER AUHERRARRRE
SRMEE SMAR BAEE vl EXBANE LFERE
Derivative financial Purchaser put option on Level 3 Discounted cash flow analysis The higher the projected
instruments equity investment in Link NPAT, the lower the
Resources (Asia) Limited Key unobservable inputs fair value; the higher
(“Link Resources”) - Nil are: projected annual net the discount rate,
(2015: Insignificant) profit after tax (“NPAT”) the lower the fair
(Note 34) of Link Resources and its value; the higher
subsidiary ranging from the probability
approximately HK$2,619,000 assignment for
to HK$14,282,000 for the favourable scenarios,
financial years ending the lower the fair
31 December 2017 and value and vice versa

2018); discount rate of 3%
and scenario probability
distribution ranging from 20%
to 60% for the year ended

30 June 2015
TESBTE REBR AR (M) F=R FRASREDMN fhEtEREaNas

BRAR ([EA RFERE FRE
RN ENE- TEFARECBARE: A5 AYERE:
BRI E-& BRI EALEMELRBE BHER et
(2015% : FEX) 20174 2018512 A31R 1E kAR NFHER
(Hiz34) MBFR b FERKE & RZIA

A (TRRBLRAER ) N4

2,619,000/ 7T £14,282,000

BT BE2015F6A30R 1E
FR FRERI%REBERATM
DIEN F20%ZE60%

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERRE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

6. ®MTIR (&

EMITAZAFEHE (&)

(Continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that REEERBEEELTFEIENEIEELHMEE
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued) REBHLFE (&)
Valuation Relationship of
Financial assets/ Fair value as at Fair value technique(s) and unobservable input(s)
financial liabilities 30 June 2016 hierarchy significant input(s) to fair value
1#2016F6A 300 [EE HEHER AUHRRABRRE
SRMEE SMAR BAEE %5 EXBANE LFERE
Contingent consideration Contingent consideration Level 3 Discounted cash flow analysis The higher the projected
receivable for equity NPAT, the lower the
investment in Seasoned Key unobservable inputs are: fair value; the higher
Leader Limited (“Seasoned projected average combined the discount rate,
Leader") - Nil NPAT of Seasoned Leader and the lower the fair
(2015: Insignificant) its subsidiaries for the two value; the higher
(Note 34) years ended 31 December the probability
2014 and 2015 ranging from assignment for
approximately HK$14,170,000 favourable scenarios,
to HK$17,012,000; discount the lower the fair
rate of 3%; and scenario value and vice versa
probability distribution ranging
from 13% to 50% for the year
ended 30 June 2015
FARE ATCER F=R FRAERESM hEthRBik AR RS

AFEARK: FER

TENAERG AEIE: Seasoned AE AFEAK:

Leader X A B AR Z2014FE  AHIBRz A4

K2015%12A31H [FAFE DRARE  NEER

ZIEE A BRI AT & Rz ek

414,170,000 TE

17,012,000 7T : #7138 ®3% :

K#EZ2015F6 5308

EEEER AR

DR F13%Z250%

Seasoned Leader Limited
([Seasoned Leader |)
BREKE I ARE-E
(20155 : FEK)
(H1:#34)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERBE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. @MIA (&
Fair value measurements of financial instruments SMITAZATFEIE (£)
(Continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that IR MR EZ L TFEIBENERELHEE
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued) REMBHLFE (&)
Valuation Relationship of
Financial assets/ Fair value as at Fair value technique(s) and unobservable input(s)
financial liabilities 30 June 2016 hierarchy significant input(s) to fair value
1#2016F6A 300 [EE HEHER AUHERRARRRE
SRMEE SMAR BAEE vl EXBANE LFERE
Contingent consideration Contingent consideration Level 3 Discounted cash flow analysis The higher the projected
receivable for equity NPAT, the lower the
investment in Link Key unobservable inputs fair value; the higher
Resources - Nil are: projected aggregate the discount rate,
(2015: approximately consolidated NPAT of Link the lower the fair
HK$325,000) Resources and its subsidiary value; the higher
(Note 34) for the three years ending the probability
31 December 2017 assignment for
ranging from approximately favourable scenarios,
HK$2,050,000 to the lower the fair
HK$6,111,000; discount value and vice versa

rate ranging of 3%; and
scenario probability
distribution ranging from 20%
to 60% for the year ended

30 June 2015
AAKIE AR B ] A AR F=0 FRESRENN fhEtEREaNas
BEZIRAE-& RPERE: R
(20154 : 41325,000/ 7C) ITETTRRGARE BASHA 25 AVEDE:
(H1:234) REMBRABE2017F BMER AT
124318 =@ & 2 fhat DRER A FER
SERBRETBBNTH &> RZIRA

2,050,000/ 7L 26,111,000/
T RE3%  REE20155
64308 L FE RN AR
DIEN F20%ZE60%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERRE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. EMIA(~Z
Fair value measurements of financial instruments EMITAZAFEME (£2)
(Continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that IR EZ L TFEIIBHNEEELHEE
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued) REBHLFE (&)
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial EERABRCHEN IRV BHRERLENS
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in REENCRABENRABERAERNFEES-
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.
Fair value hierarchy LFERE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
% k1 ] @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
As at 30 June 2016 1#2016%6H30H
Available-for-sale investment AEERE 16,914 = = 16,914
Held-for-trading investments BIEEERE 359,914 = = 359,914
376,828 - - 376,828
As at 30 June 2015 R2015F6 A30H
Available-for-sale investment AEERE 21,300 = = 21,300
Held-for-trading investments BEEERE 32,345 = = 32345
Derivative financial instruments TESRIA = = 2,284 2,284
Contingent consideration HARE - - 325 325
53,645 - 2,609 56,254

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the period.

HAE—REE _RHLEERER-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERBE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. &®MIA(~Z
Fair value measurements of financial instruments EMIAZAFEHE (&£)
(Continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements F=ERLTFEHEGEHIRUT -
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFET FET
At the beginning of the year REH] 2,609 4,054
Change in fair value recognised REEER L ATEE
in profit or loss (included in (BT AEMUA - W R EE)
other income, gains and losses) (2,609) (1,445)
At the end of the year REF = 2,609
7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARSHBEH
The Group’s operating and reporting segments have been REFHKRERNBEDFEREBEFTEE BN BER
identified on the basis of internal management reports ERANSH B E RN IE R REEET I
prepared in accordance with the accounting policies conform HE BEERERIEARNERN B EREREE
to HKFRSs, that are regularly reviewed by the executive ([BEKGEREE | MR TESTHERIUR
directors, being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) DED B E R M EE KRR -
of the Group, in order to allocate resources to segments and to
assess their performances.
The Group’s operations have been organised based on AEBMNKLEDER T EELE D
four operating divisions as described below. Similarly, the FLAA& At MEEKSEREERENE
information reported to the CODM is also prepared on such BB IRIBEZEEGR - ZERAEE A RE D
basis. No operating segments identified by the CODM have R WHEGES ERBEEREEZMERIMNEE D
been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the BB o
Group.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERRE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Specifically, the Group's reportable and operating segments
are as follows:

. Provision of — secondary tutoring services,

private secondary day school education,
educational primary tutoring services, skill
services courses and test preparation
courses, franchising income,
English language training and test
preparation courses, technical
consultation, management and
software licensing services and
overseas studies consultation
services
o Investments in —  trading of securities
securities
° Property — investments of properties for
investments rental income and capital

appreciation

o Money lending -  providing loans as money lender
Other operating segments which do not meet the quantitative
thresholds prescribed by HKFRS 8 for determining reportable
segments are combined as “other segments”.

7. WARSEHEH (&)

ARmME AEENAREREESHET:

o  RHAA — TEMERS LERER
#E RENEHERS R
AR 75 BRE R EHRE T

REWA - BB K E
ARIE BT B
Ko LA R AT AR A K2 S

R
.+ BABF - EESF

e MERE - REWEURDEEA
REXRIRE

s fBFE - ERERARHEE

ﬂiﬁ/\%/%ﬁﬁk# HHESRBAETE I RS

DEWE(LIRE E’Jﬁf REDERIE G R [HAb

PHR]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERBE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 & Z2016F6A308 It F[E

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARDBEE (&
(Continued)
(a) Segment revenue and results (a) P BBARER
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and AEBIREE R A RED IO ERWA T ZE
results by operating and reportable segments: EOTWT
For the year ended 30 June 2016 Bl F2016F6H30HILFE
Provision of
private
educational Investment Property Money
services  in securities  investments lending Others  Consolidated
R
LARERE REESH NERE HE Htr #t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET

Segment revenue DEHA 182,267 = 768 3,460 3,283 189,778
Segment results DEEE (13,881) (42,989) (6,844) 2,514 (1,635) (62,835)
Change in fair value of HiemEEy

other financial assets NEEES (2,609)
Impairment losses AHREERERERE

on available-for-sale

investments (54,499)
Finance costs B®ER (9,154)
Share of results of joint ventures  JEf5 4 & R 1 ¥4 738
Share of results of associates ~ JEIEEEL AR EE 1,615
Unallocated corporate income K2 E A FMWA 13
Unallocated corporate expenses A7 B A AR X (18,071)
Loss before tax R AIER (144,802)

126 Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(a) Segment revenue and results (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERRE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

7. WARSEHEH (&

(@) SBMBARRER (&)

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #H 220156 A30H I F &
Provision of
private
educational Investment Property Money
services in securities investments lending Others  Consolidated
R
RAZB RS BREES MERE e Hip st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FAET FAET FET FAT FAT FAET
Segment revenue DEHA 202,339 = 662 5,438 = 208,439
Segment results DHEE (3,032) 68,578 807 4,407 - 70,760
Change in fair value of HinemEEy
other financial assets ATELE (1,445)
Impairment losses AHREERERERE
on available-for-sale
investments (6,512)
Share of results of joint ventures  JE/H A & AR £4E 924
Share of results of associates ~ JEIREEE AR EE 8,259
Unallocated corporate income K2 E A AMA 130
Unallocated corporate expenses 7 2 & A 1 f &% (38,038)
Profit before tax R B AT I 34,078
The CODM assesses segment results using a measure of BERERREURLE R 2 KT
operating profit whereby certain items are not included in DEEE ERETHEEERLEESHH
arriving at the segment results of the operating segments DEEBERF AT L AEMERMEE 2
(i.e. change in fair value of other financial assets, NEEEE A EEERERERE U5
impairment losses on available-for-sale investments, B ERAELARIEE EHEE AT

finance costs, share of results of joint ventures, share of
results of associates, unallocated corporate income and
unallocated corporate expenses).

B ADERARBARKRDERBIFAX
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20165
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBEERMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 & Z2016F6A308 It F[E

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

7. WARSEHEH (&)

(b) PBRERRAR
REEIREE R A&

DEIENEERA

liabilities by operating and reportable segments: BEATaT :
As at 30 June 2016 201656 H30H
Provision of
private
educational Investment Property Money
services  in securities  investments lending Others  Consolidated
13
LARERE REESH NERE HE Heth an
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Assets BE
Segment assets NHEE 61,454 359,914 149,399 41,409 752 612,928
Unallocated assets APEREE
Bank balances and cash RITEHBEES 92,814
Interests in associates EAH’é‘p‘ ERRIMES 48,077
Interests in joint ventures /l:\l ERRIMER 9,598
Available-for-sale investments HIEERE 26,122
Asset classified as held "*EF%H’FE EEE
for sale 6,455
Other corporate assets HttRRIEE 2,527
798,521
Liabilities afE
Segment liabilities NEARE 18,813 3,011 170 52 1,397 23,443
Unallocated liabilities APEREE
Current tax liabilities AEBHEARE 1,072
Deferred tax liabilities EEREAE 1,393
Bank borrowings RITEE 14,800
Loan notes BERE 146,496
Other corporate liabilities HEwAR&RE 2,445
189,649

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERRE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARSBEH (&)
(Continued)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) (b) PBEERAR (2Z)
As at 30 June 2015 R2015F6H30H
Provision of
private
educational Investment Property Money
services in securities investments lending Others  Consolidated
=
LABBE RS REES MERE B Hity et
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET

Assets BE

Segment assets NHEE 43,462 32,345 29,978 31,310 - 137,095

Unallocated assets APREE

Bank balances and cash RITEHBEE S 104,475
Interests in assaciates i AN 0F 75,251
Interests in joint ventures RELREER 10,360
Other financial assets HttemEE 2,609
Available-for-sale investments A IERE 29,239
Other corporate assets HEtAREE 5,925

364,954

Liabilities -1

Segment liabilities SHEE 20,451 3901 137 . o 24,489

Unallocated liabilities AAEEE

Current tax liabilities EMHEAE 944
Deferred tax liabilities EERBAE 1,216
Other corporate liabilities HiyARIAE 1,688

28,337

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances MEESFRB RN DB D EREIRS B

and allocating resources between segments: HmE :

o all assets are allocated to the operating segments e RPITHEBRERZ (FFABEDEER
other than bank balances and cash (other than SN REERRIREE QN E AR
those included in the money lending segment), HemEE rfEERE 28R
interests in associates and joint ventures, other BIEHEEERHMAREEIN  FTE
financial assets, available-for-sale investments, BEASEZELED I -BE SRR
asset classified as held for sale and other corporate g I GRIAM EL7F) - &
assets. Goodwill is allocated to operating segment as
described in Note 17; and

e all liabilities are allocated to the operating segments e REMHMBEAER EEHEBEAE R
other than current tax liabilities, deferred tax BEE BEXZBEREMAREGIN BT

liabilities, bank borrowings, loan notes and other BEBEHIREEEDE-
corporate liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERBE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 & Z2016F6A308 It F[E

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. BARSHBEH (&)
(Continued)
(c) Other segment information (c) RtumrBEH
For the year ended 30 June 2016 Bl F2016F6H30HILFE
Provision of
private
educational Investment Property Money
services  in securities  investments lending Others  Consolidated
R
LABFRE RAES MERR 134 Hfth #st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET

Capital additions EXRNE (15,504) (14) (124,525) - (43) (140,086)
Depreciation and amortisation ~— #7 & K 4 (5,784) (376) - (20) (3) (6,183)
Provision for long service RERESBE
payments (69) - - - - (69)
Change in fair value of REMENATFEE
investment properties - - (5,225) - - (5,225)
Change in fair value of listed LTIREEEREM
held-for-trading investments ATEE - (40,371) - - - (40,371)
For the year ended 30 June 2015 B Z2015F6 H30H If F &
Provision of
private
educational Investment Property Money
services in securities investments lending Others  Consolidated
Rt
FhAZE R BAES MERE BE 2t @t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TET THT THT THT FAT TET
Capital additions BARE (5,572) ®) - - - (5,580)
Depreciation and amortisation ~— #7 & K 2§ (4,814) (376) - (60) - (5,250)
Provision for long service REBRBSEE
payments (20) - - - - (20)
Change in fair value of BEMENLTEES
investment properties - - 2,100 - - 2,100
Change in fair value of listed TIREEEREN
held-for-trading investments AFEEE = 56,189 = = £ 56,189
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERRE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARDBEE (&
(Continued)
(c) Other segment information (Continued) (c) Hth &S (&)
The Group’s assets, revenue and results for the year AEBRARFERBAREE IR ZE
derived from activities located outside Hong Kong are BHEE WAREBESRAEBRAFE
less than 10% of the Group's total assets, revenue and MBEE WA REERIOS o

results for the year.

No individual customer accounted for over 10% of the RRE S E A - S B 3 P G AR S B 4B U
Group'’s total revenue during both years. ARBB10% °
(d) Revenue from major services (d) EERBEA
An analysis of the Group’s revenue by services is as REBIRRBE D BHRADITOT :
follows:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T FET
Secondary tutoring services 24 E RS 134,481 157,361
Secondary day school education FHRERRE 2,004 2,487
Primary tutoring services, skill courses  /NEFER - B EHRRE R
and test preparation courses JE A AR A2 11,798 12,834
Franchising income LSS AN 4,515 3,682
English language training and test REEII RERRE
preparation courses 23,607 21,552
Technical consultation, management RITsE B2 LT R
and software licensing services 5,587 3,973
Overseas studies consultation services &N E & RH RIS 275 550
Rental income e WA 768 662
Loan interest income B BUA 3,460 5,438
Advertising income EEUgA 3,283 =
Total revenue FEA /N 189,778 208,439
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERBE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

8. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HttA WBERER
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ETT FEr
Change in fair value of other financial assets  E b & &b & EH) A FEE (2,609) (1,445)
Impairment losses on other receivables Hofh FE W RIB YR E S 18 (46) (1,673)
Interest income on KBTS IEHFEMA
— bank deposits —RITIER 9 92
— other loan and receivables — H A E 5 e W IR 4 38
(Loss) gain on disposal of HENTERIER (F8) ks
— property, plant and equipment —E - BE REE (1,337) (243)
— subsidiaries —MB AT 1,192 6
Supporting services income TR RIEWA 13,978 7,325
Others HAp 1,021 1,151
12,212 5,251
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MERHA
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest on bank and other borrowings ARAFARBEREZENRITR
wholly repayable within five years HEEEHFE 658 =
Effective interest expense on loan notes ERERNERF BHAX 8,496 =
9,154 -

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERRE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

10. (LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAX 10. BRI (& 1R) & F
(Loss) profit before tax has been arrived at after charging: BRELAT (BE)RAEMNBRTIIER :
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Directors’ remuneration (Note 11) BEEEM (K1) 5,882 6,615
Other staff costs EfMh 8 TAA 50,685 49,718
Other staff's retirement benefit scheme Hh B TH:RIKAEFIGH B 3K
contributions 1,926 1,962
Share-based payments to other staff mE A 8 T XA AR
BEREAT IR = 594
58,493 58,889
Tutor contractor fee to a Director MESIZAHEMAR
(Note 11) (H1a£11) (315) (255)
Staff costs 8 T 58,178 58,634
Auditor's remuneration 3 A GIE=0) 710 680
Provision for long service payments RERG B E 69 20
Gross rental income from investment REMERSBIWA
properties 768 662
Less: direct operating expenses from R FARNEERSBRANKEE
investment properties that generated MENERELERE
rental income during the year (43) (39)
725 623
Tutor contractor fee is calculated based on (i) certain BN AR B TR ()R B 2 B AR R A B
percentage of revenue derived from secondary tutoring I REAREBRANE TEIL RN B2HE
services and English language training and test preparation RS BREREREAREZS/EETEWRES
courses; and (ii) fixed hourly rate on primary tutoring services, Ho
skill courses and test preparation courses.
Operating lease payments represent the minimum lease KEHENRERBESCEHERLHAA(EES
payments under operating leases paid or payable to lessors BYE=7)ENENNRERENK-

which mainly are independent third parties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 11. EERFETRABNMER AU S FHEN
EMOLUMENTS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID ERREH
EMPLOYEES AND TUTORS
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Directors’ fees Yok 600 581
Other emoluments to Directors MEEIAHEMM S
— basic salaries, allowances and —BEARFE RN
benefits in kind EYEF 4,800 4,069
— discretionary bonus —EIEIEAT 131 1,126
— retirement benefit scheme contributions —RIKEFFT 85X 36 36
— share-based payments — AR BERERTR - 548
5,567 6,360
Tutor contractor fee to a Director M—REZEX[fREREAR S 315 255
5,882 6,615
The bonus is determined with reference to the operating TEALTESEZNMFANKLEEE BARAR
results, individual performance and comparable market AL MGHRTEIEMET -

statistics during both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 & =2016F6H30H I FE

11. EERFETHARHME R I A& FHE
ERREEHM (&)

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES AND TUTORS (Continued)

Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the Directors and

AEEREERTBTRABXMHOMEFREL

chief executive are as follows: T
Year ended 30 June 2016
HBE2016F6HA30HLEE
Mr. Lee
Wai Lok,
Mr. Wong Ms. Wu Ignatious Mr. Pun Mr. Ong Mr. Lee
Yuk Tong Mei Chu (“Mr. Lee") Kwok Shan Chi King Shu Fai Total
FREERE
IEREE HEHRL (TE%%]) BELEE EFHEE FHEEE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
(note ii)
(Hiezii)
Director's fee EXdok 240 - - 120 120 120 600
Other emoluments Hiv# &
Basic salaries, allowances and ERES 2R
benefits in kind EMEA - 973 3,827 - - - 4,800
Discretionary bonus BB = 79 52 = - = 131
Tutor contractor fee EHEDE - - 315 - - - 315
Retirement benefit scheme RINEFRIFTEIfK
contributions - 18 18 - - - 36
Total FoR 240 1,070 4,212 120 120 120 5,882
Year ended 30 June 2015
EZ2015F6 30 ILEE
Mr. Wong Ms. Wu Mr. Pun Mr. Ong Ms. Chan Mr. Lee
Yuk Tong Mei Chu Mr. Lee Kwok Shan Chi King Lai Yee Shu Fai Total
TEREE  MEKKT TEE  BELEE ITTHRE  BRERZE  FHER4 st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FAET FET FHET FET FET FET FAET
(note i) (note i)
(Hiétii) (Hizti)
Director's fee BTN 240 = = 72 120 2 120 581
Other emoluments Hitde
Basic salaries, allowances EAE & 2R
and benefits in kind EhEH - 932 3,137 - - - - 4,069
Discretionary bonus BB = 76 1,050 = = = = 1,126
Tutor contractor fee BNARE - - 255 - - - - 255
Retirement benefit RIKERF B3R
scheme contributions - 18 18 - - - - 36
Share-based payments VABR 9 B R 50 2 274 274 = - — = 548
Total @it 240 1,300 4734 72 120 29 120 6,615
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 11. EFEREFETHAENMER A& S HEN
EMOLUMENTS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID RBRREM (£)
EMPLOYEES AND TUTORS (Continued)
Notes: HeE -
() Ms. Chan Lai Yee was appointed as an independent (i) MFHERxtTMN2013FE3AEEEEABIIENTT
non-executive Director on 8 March 2013 and retired from the EENN2014F11 A26HRE-

position on 26 November 2014.

(i)  Mr. Pun Kwok Shan was appointed as an independent (i) SBEILEAERN20145F11 A26 B EZR T ABIIEH
non-executive Director on 26 November 2014. TE%-
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the AEERAFEZRANESHMHES (MB
year, two (2015: two) were Directors whose remuneration are (2015 M B)BEZ) 2HNFBHR £
set out above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the BTI=% (2015 : =R ) By MEEZAFE
remaining three (2015: three) highest paid employees are as HENFEBIT
follows:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Basic salaries, allowances and EAXFHE 2R
benefits in kind EWFz= 3,133 3,354
Discretionary bonus 1B TE4L 299 276
Tutor contractor fee ERiABE 2,229 1,873
Retirement benefits scheme contributions R K48 K 51 21 £ 7% 53 54
Share-based payments LARR 15 BB AT 3R - 259
5,714 5,816

136 Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
BB (HR)REECEERAR



11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES AND TUTORS (Continued)

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 & =2016F6H30H I FE

11. EERFETHARHME R I A& FHE
ERREHM (&)

HIHNATHRE 2 FEFEZHSHEE AR

Directors whose remuneration fell within the following bands is K
as follows:

2016 2015
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A& AZ
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,0017% 7t £ 1,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7t 21,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/%& 7T £2,000,0007% T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001% 7T £3,000,0007% 7T 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7t 23,500,000 7T - 1
3 3

During the year ended 30 June 2015, certain non-Director
and non-chief executive highest paid employees were granted
share options, in respect of their services to the Group under
the share option scheme of the Company. Details of the
share option scheme are set out in note 37 to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Details of tutor contractor fee of the five highest paid tutors

REE2015F6A30R L FE - ETHEERIF
TBTHRABZERFMEERBEAQRBRE
R E AR BIR 2 MRS X R B - BB A
A EF B H N AN RE 2 RS I 7 WK M 37
Ao

RER A RSHHEN (TEREEE) N

(excluding Directors) during the year are as follows: EBEFROT
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FiET
Tutor contractor fee EEIA R E 36,346 38,329

/
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 11. EERFETBRAENMER AR SFHFM
EMOLUMENTS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID ERREE (&)
EMPLOYEES AND TUTORS (Continued)
The tutor contractor fees were within the following bands: BEEBBEN T TR :
2016 2015
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A& A&
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,0017% 7T £2,500,000/% 7T - 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T 23,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/ 7t £3,500,0007% 7T 1 -
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 7,500,0017% 7T £8,000,000/% 7T 1 1
HK$9,000,001 to HK$9,500,000 9,000,001/ 7t £9,500,0005% 7T 1 -
HK$10,500,001 to HK$11,000,000 10,500,001 7T 211,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$13,000,001 to HK$13,500,000 13,000,001 7t 213,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$14,500,001 to HK$15,000,000 14,500,001 Jt 215,000,000/ 7T - 1
Tutor contractor fee EBHABE 5 5
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors or AEBWERAERH AN HIES MEMS
the five highest paid employees and tutors as an inducement BN 15 BT S| H0 A SR H0 A 2N 5 [ B A B & Bk
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for VE B 1E - NELE 201656 A30F I E -
loss of office. During the year ended 30 June 2016, none /(2015 EESAREMEEMS -

of the Directors (2015: none) waived their emoluments on a
voluntary basis.
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 & =2016F6H30H I FE

12. FREMRMAX

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ETT FET

Current tax: BVHARR I8 -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BAMEH 134 892
PRC Enterprise Income Tax FEMEMER 10 61
144 953
Deferred tax (Note 33) EERIR (H77233) 177 194
Total income tax recognised in profit or loss ~ RIEZXHPHERZ TS 25 321 1,147

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

assessable profit for both years.

The provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax is based on
the estimated taxable income for PRC taxation purposes
at the rate of taxation applicable to each year. Subsidiaries

16.5%H) T KT E -

established in the PRC were subject to Enterprise Income Tax Bi o

at 25% for both years.

BB NGB ARE M EF /075 ER B8 AR

PEIMEMEHREERE T EHEAN S 2 Eat
JERBMARE FEBERZHEFTE - NP BEIK
STEYH B A B PR B 9 1R 25 % AN E 1S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to (loss) profit
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income as follows:

12. FiAREAX (&)

AERHRBA L EEARER
SRR B AT (518 ) i B ¥ Bk

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T FET
(Loss) profit before tax BREEAT (E518) im A (144,802) 34,078
Tax (credit) charge at Hong Kong Profits 12 & B FI5 %Rfﬂ,??—m 5% (20154 :
Tax rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) 16.5% )T EMFIE (HR) T (23,892) 5,623
Tax effect of income not taxable BARBBRANK B E
for tax purpose (272) (3,272)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AT BRI E
for tax purpose 18,244 2,113
Tax effect of share of results of associates FE{RHEE N R EEN T E T L& (267) (1,363)
Tax effect of share of results of joint BHEERRIEENTGTE
ventures (122) (152)
Utilisation of deductible temporary B A AR IR R =58
differences not recognised (1,515) (183)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERMEBENB BT E 8,233 875
Utilisation of tax losses previously BABTRERNIIEEE
not recognised (105) (2,879)
Under provision in prior years BEFERETR - 158
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries 7 B 48 & B Il B A &) Fi R
operating in the PRC TR TE (5) (88)
Others Hfb 22 315
Income tax expense for the year FEREMAX 321 1,147

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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13. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per
share attributable to owners of the Company for both years are
based on the following data:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 & =2016F6H30H I FE

13. B (BR)&2F

ARRBEBEARBEFEREE 2 SRERN R EE
(E18) B TIRBEIA T EIBFTE

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T FET
(Loss) earnings for the purpose of basic and FETESREAREE (EE)
diluted (loss) earnings per share AFTmEN (EE)RBF
((Loss) profit for the year attributable (RREEANEEFE
to owners of the Company) (BE)=F) (144,718) 33,028
Number of Number of
shares shares
(Restated)
;2178 4= sl 4=
(&E75)
Weighted average number of R EEREAREE (BE)
ordinary shares for the purpose of AFTE 2 L mA hniE 39 &
basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share 421,421,529 100,316,088

The computation of the diluted (loss) earnings per share for
the years ended 30 June 2016 and 2015 does not assume
the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options as
the exercise price of those options are higher than the average
market prices of the Company’s shares during the relevant
year.

Weighted average number of ordinary shares, potential dilutive
ordinary shares, basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share
for the years ended 30 June 2016 and 2015 were stated after
taking into account the effects of the rights issue and bonus
issue completed in August 2015 and the share consolidation
that took effect in March 2016. Comparative figures have
been restated on the assumption that the share consolidation
had been effective in prior year.

SEREZE20165F 20156 A30H IEFEXE
g (B 1R) BN RBRITERNRR AR
TEBERE RARBERFEARRRZEEKR
BONTEESRARRBRMNWFHEHE-

T R 20158 F 58 Ak 2 4 A B AL A 3% 17 A
NR20I6FIAERM MMM a2 FER BE
20164 X2015%6 H30H ILF & 2 & mAR it F
VY BEHESEARR SREANEE (BR)
ANEIE L BRBFELRBRENEHER
BEFELEMMET -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

14. DIVIDENDS 14. BB

EEETERZHEE2016F6H30H (EFE X T
REARL R (20155 : &) -

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 30 June 2016 (2015: nil).

142

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. E -BRERER
Furniture
Leasehold and Office Computer Motor
improvements fixtures equipment equipment vehicles Total
HEEE GHRREE HWOLEZE ERRE RE @t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
CoST %3
At 1July 2014 R2014%F7A1H 27,065 5,556 10,307 5,311 572 48,811
Additions NE 3,584 466 739 791 - 5,580
Disposals/write off HE /M (3,227) (586) (1,132) (262) (316) (5,523)
At 30 June 2015 R2015F6A30R 27,422 5,436 9914 5,840 256 48,868
Additions R 11,987 1,656 940 978 - 15,561
Disposals/write off HE /M (10,509) (2,067) (2,230) (932) (256) (15,994)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWBAR (1,113) (102) (492) (52) - (1,759)
At 30 June 2016 #2016F6H30H 27,787 4,923 8,132 5,834 - 46,676
DEPRECIATION il
At 1July 2014 R2014%7H1R 18,926 4,866 7,592 3,035 48 34,467
Depreciation expense WEHRY 2,752 386 1,047 754 113 5,052
Eliminated on disposals/write off 4 /i $455 #3 (2,944) (579) (1,021) (229) (95) (4,868)
At 30 June 2015 201556 A30R 18,734 4,673 7,618 3,560 66 34,651
Depreciation expense NERX 3,869 376 834 886 20 5,985
Eliminated on disposals/write off 11 & /#8554 &5 (9,387) (1,968) (1,932) (318) (86) (13,691)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR (848) (46) (222) @7 - (1,143)
At 30 June 2016 201656 A30H 12,368 3,035 6,298 4101 - 25,802
CARRYING AMOUNTS IREE
At 30 June 2016 R2016F6A30H 15,419 1,888 1,834 1,733 - 20,874
At 30 June 2015 R2015F6A30H 8,688 763 2,296 2,280 190 14,217
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 & =2016F6H30H I FE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. W - BWERRME (&
(Continued)
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant YVE BMEMRENRAEUNEGRETE KE
and equipment over their estimated useful lives, using the HEtATAEBRTUME SENINEERNT

straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements 20% HEEE 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20% R REE 20%
Office equipment 20% WRERAME 20%
Computer equipment 20% R 20%
Motor vehicles 20% TE 20%
16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. EMXE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFET FET
At fair value BOFE
Balance at beginning of year FUHER 29,600 27,500
Additions NE 124,525 -
Change in fair value recognised REZERNAFEE
in profit or loss (5,225) 2,100
Balance at end of year FREH 148,900 29,600
The Group’s property interests held under operating leases to AEERBLEEHEER A URRES S EE A E
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured EEMNYERSTERARAFLERRAELHIE
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted RARIIEREME -

for as investment properties.

The Group's investment properties of HK$29,100,000 (2015: 7K & B129,100,000% 7T (20154 : 29,600,000/
HK$29,600,000) has been pledged to secure banking TR EMEEELHER UARTAEEN
facilities granted to the Group. IRITRBEEER-

All of the investment properties are situated in Hong Kong AR EMEHDMNE S  WREF AN
under medium-term lease. Be
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. &YX (&
Fair value measurement of the Group’s investment AREREIVENLOTFEHHE
properties
The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 720166 A30H K&2015F6 8308 » NEE K
30 June 2016 and 30 June 2015 has been arrived at on the BYENRNFEDENEARE B EEEENE
basis of a valuation carried out on the respective dates by AR GEMKFITHEBRBAR QR ([KF
RHL Appraisal Limited (“RHL"), an independent qualified TR EBBEETHHEMES - XFITAE
professional valuer not connected to the Group. RHL is a BHEMBgEs -

member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

The fair value was determined based on the market AFEDBZEALRYERG T AIREREEZ
comparison approach by reference to recent sales price of TEHEBERBEM SR EETE - L —FEME
comparable properties on a price per square foot basis. There Rz mEREMmIL mEs - NMEFt R A TE
has been no change from the valuation technique used in the B ZUEsERaRRERERDER RS-

prior year. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

Details of the Group's investment properties and information AEB 7 IREYEFBERATFERFNER T
about the fair value hierarchy are as follows: N
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—# k] F=] st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
As at 30 June 2016 12016£6A 300
Commercial property units located I RAEE 2 R E BN
in Hong Kong - 148,900 - 148,900
As at 30 June 2015 #2015%6 A30H
Commercial property units located IR EEZ EEMEEN
in Hong Kong - 29,600 - 29,600
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 & =2016F6H30H I FE

17. GOODWILL 17. o8&
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T FET
COST 5% 3

Balance at beginning of year REV R 60 60
Balance at end of year REREH 60 60

CARRYING AMOUNTS AR (B
Balance at end of year RERE R 60 60

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to the following cash-generating unit (“CGU”) during
the years ended 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2015:

Money lending

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by the Directors
covering a five-year period, and a discount rate of 21%
(2015: 20%) per annum. The key assumptions for the value
in use calculation are those regarding the discount rates,
the budgeted revenue and budgeted expenses during the
forecasting periods, which are determined by management
based on past performance and managements’ expectations
for the market development.

The Directors were of the opinion that based on value in use
calculation, there was no impairment of goodwill during both
years ended 30 June 2016 and 2015. The Directors believe
that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions
on which the recoverable amount is based would not cause
the carrying amount of the unit to exceed its recoverable
amount.

#H £2016F6 A30H K%2015F6 A30H ILEF & -
SREEAANS BEEIEZTINREELE
L (REELEM]) -

BmeE
AESELBEMZARESHEREREBAF;E
MFAAESNAFHMAEZ P RIEEEFR
EREBUNIBR AFF21% (20154 : 20% ) 51
g FRAEETENBRBRRAEREIHMY
BIRR TBERARBESH ZSREAER
EBREAFNRRNEREYMSEENIEE
on

EERR BEFCRAEAEFE BEREZE
20165 % 201556 4301 L M {E 4F £ I £ % & °
B2 BRERK (AR KEeBEAREE) 2T
MEEAEEETEEREN 2 RIEBLE
AJ Y [E] & 58 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. HthEEL B E
Franchise
Trademark rights Total
[k YEFiE #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FHETT FiET
COST BE
At 1 July 2014, 30 June 2015 and 7201447818 *
30 June 2016 2015F6 A308 &
20166 A30H 2,957 1,979 4,936
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION E&H#ss R iR (E
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 July 2014 20144 7H1H 2,957 693 3,650
Amortisation expense BiHE A S 198 198
At 30 June 2015 R2015F6 H30H 2,957 891 3,848
Amortisation expense BEER = 198 198
At 30 June 2016 201656 A30H 2,957 1,089 4,046
CARRYING AMOUNTS RmE{E
At 30 June 2016 7R20165F6 A30H - 890 890
At 30 June 2015 7201556 A30H - 1,088 1,088
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18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The Group’s trademark protects the design and specification
of “BACHELOR EDUCATION CENTRE LIMITED” logo, and
was assessed to have an indefinite useful life. On the date
of acquisition (i.e. 31 December 2010), the fair value of this
trademark is assessed using an income approach under
the relief from royalty method by a firm of independent
professional valuers, Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited
(“Vigers”).

Franchise rights represent the right to use the name
“BACHELOR EDUCATION CENTRE LIMITED” under
contractual franchise agreements in the business of primary
tutoring services. The amortisation period of franchise rights is
10 years.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the trademark set out
above has been allocated to one CGU, being the operation
of primary tutoring services of Bachelor Education Centre
Limited (“Bachelor Education”), a business unit of the Group
included in the provision of private educational services
segment. The recoverable amount of the CGU has been
determined based on a value in use calculation. To calculate
this, cash flow projection is based on five-year period financial
budgets approved by the management using a discount rate
of 20% (2015: 20%). During the year ended 30 June 2016,
no impairment loss was recognised for the trademark as the
recoverable amount exceeded its carrying amount (2015: nil).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 & =2016F6H30H I FE

18. Hth ML RE (=&

N2 B ) F AZ R # [BACHELOR EDUCATION
CENTRE LIMITED ] {23583 5T R ARHE - WKFTE
REFERAFERFE XU A E (B120104F
12A318) ' EENAFEEBLEEHE
NERRTEEFGERABRAR ([EEH])
FRAERSEEEOUWASEMEL T -

FRERB N BHERBEBNADOES
& £ F§ [BACHELOR EDUCATION CENTRE
LIMITED J & TEHOHER - B FF AV BRI A R 10%F

BRBENAME EXAHAEEESEE— @
BeELEMN NBELHZERAA([E2LHK
=] AEEN—EEBELM  TARBLAZKES
RIS N BEHERBERS - IS EELE
LR RT L Bl BB T IR E B AT EAETE - it
EmME BReRsRANERGEEREEIEZ
R FE I TEE AR E20% (2015%F : 20% )
HE - NEE201656 5308 FFEE R @A A U
& EBARKRAGE QTR SHRRRES
18 (20154 - £&) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 & Z2016F6H308 It F[E

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. RBIBEAFIZHEE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFET FET
Cost of unlisted investments JEEMIREK A 54,408 54,408
Share of post-acquisition profits and FEAE U BB 1% 03 T 2
other comprehensive expense, Hi2mEAX
net of dividends received (BB WIEE) 2,138 7,657
Accumulated impairment loss recognised EERAFREEE (2,014) (2,014)
Reclassification to asset classified as BB ESHEARRE
held for sale HEBE (6,455) -
48,077 60,051
Loan to an associate LT —HEBMEARZER
(note (iii)) (K732 i) - 15,200
Balance at end of year RERLGE &R 48,077 75,251
At 30 June 2016, the Group had interests in the following MR2016F6A30H  REBER A THE AR#EAR
associates: M
Place of Proportion of nominal value
incorporation of issued capital held Proportion of
Name of associate  and operation by the Group voting power held Principal activities
RS R FEEFRBERT s RE
L UNCEE BEMR BEEELE :4:] FERE
2016 2015 2016 2015
Seasoned Leader BVI 47% 47% 47% 47%  Investment holding and its subsidiaries are
(note i) principally engaged in the provision of
vocational education and training service in
Hong Kong
Seasoned Leader RERTRS 47% 47% 47% 47% HWEERREMBAREENEBN S IRMEE
(Hiati) £HE JEIIRB
Link Resources Hong Kong 43% 43% 43% 43%  Investment holding and its subsidiary is
(note i) principally engaged in the provision of various

services in relation to corporate management
consultation, educational consultation (not
including overseas studying consultation),
market information consultation and other
services in the PRC

B A B 43% 43% 43% 43% RAEBEANBARFERTEFSRHES
(Hiszii) ACXERENR HEDA (TREGIME
%) mEEARAREMEEREESE
PR %
Vision Smart Limited  Hong Kong 60% 49% 60% 49%  Property investment and investment holding
(note iii)
Vision Smart Limited &7 60% 49% 60% 49% MERBREEER
(#iztii)
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes:

0

On 10 July 2013, the Group entered into sale and purchase
agreement with independent third parties, to acquire an
aggregate of 47% interest in Seasoned Leader at a consideration
of HK$45,542,000, representing cash consideration of
HK$47,000,000 less fair value of contingent consideration
receivable of approximately HK$1,458,000 as at the date of
acquisition. Seasoned Leader acts as an investment holding
company and its subsidiaries (collectively, “Seasoned Leader
Group”) are principally engaged in the provision of vocational
education and training services in Hong Kong.

Pursuant to the agreement (as further varied by the
supplemental agreement dated 8 November 2013), the vendors
guarantee to the Group that the average of combined NPAT for
each of the two years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015 of
Seasoned Leader Group will be not less than HK$14,000,000,
failing which the vendors shall pay to the Group the shortfall in
cash with a multiplier. On the date of acquisition, the fair value
of the contingent consideration receivable is estimated to be
approximately HK$1,458,000. The fair value is arrived based
on a discounted cash flow analysis of Seasoned Leader Group's
forecast financial budgets by reference to a valuation carried
out by Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited (“Ascent
Partners”), an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected to the Group.

In addition, the Group was granted a put option to sell back all
of the acquired shares of Seasoned Leader to the vendors in the
event that the auditors have expressed a qualified opinion or a
disclaimed opinion in any of the audited financial statements of
Seasoned Leader Group for the years ended 31 December 2014
and 2015 (“Qualified Event”). The fair value of the put option
was determined to be insignificant at the date of acquisition as
the Directors are of the opinion that such Qualified Event is less
likely to occur on the Seasoned Leader Group for the respective
years.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 & =2016F6H30H I FE

19. RBBATRIZEE (£2)
st -

(i) M2013F7A108  AEBHEBYE=HIVEE
e PAUREE B HAAR(B45,542,000/8 7T (BNIR &
X {E47,000,0007 LB EW K ARE 2 R FEELD
1,458,0007% 7T ) Y B Seasoned Leader#) & #£47%
#E = o Seasoned LeaderB— IR EZER A TR
EHH B AR (4758 [Seasoned LeaderE@E|) X &
HERBBIREBERS LIFIIRE -

BiE (KA HA2013F11A8H 2 # 7T #
mE—TBE) B AR ALBERFE  Seasoned
Leaderfs B & £20144F k20151273318 IEM
BAEESFZFHAEMBRBRAEFNET LR
14,000,000 70 BRIBE A ZBARAEBUE & X
MEBENEFEE - RREAE BRSAREZ
N EEE4)1,458,0008 70 c AFE KL EN
FEHEZABRAR ([XFA]) (EAREEILERE
EBUSEREEGEM) ETZHEERBIE
Seasoned Leader(e @ 2 T M ISTEE 2 T IRE &
MENNHE -

I 51 o ik A% B AT A Seasoned LeaderfE EE =
20144 % 2015412 A31 B L& 7 (E A K Sz bt
BHREPERRBEANEBERER ([REE
BEMH])  BIAEEEER T —ERAHE N
& 77 & it Seasoned LeaderZ &8 2 BB AL (D - B
MNEER ASeasoned Leaderte BN & FE A7
EREBEREBMH 2R MR/ A U B Hf
RHEEZ AFERRETER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERBE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

On 4 September 2013, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase and subscription agreement with an independent
third party and Link Resources, to acquire and subscribe for an
aggregate of 43% interest in Link Resources at a consideration
of approximately HK$8,866,000, representing cash
consideration of HK$9,500,000 less fair value of contingent
consideration receivable and put option of approximately
HK$353,000 and HK$281,000 respectively as at the date of
acquisition. Link Resources acts as an investment holding
company and its subsidiary (collectively, “Link Resources
Group”) is principally engaged in the provision of various
services in relation to corporate management consultation,
educational consultation (not including overseas studying
consultation), market information consultation and other related
services in the PRC.

Pursuant to a shareholders’ agreement dated 11 February
2014 (as further varied by the supplemental agreement dated
28 April 2015), the vendor guarantees to the Group that
the aggregate consolidated NPAT for the three years ending
31 December 2017 of Link Resources Group will be not less
than HK$9,000,000, failing which the vendors shall pay to the
Group the shortfall in cash with a multiplier. The fair value of
the contingent consideration receivable was determined to be
approximately HK$353,000 at the date of acquisition. The fair
value was arrived based on a discounted cash flow analysis of
Link Resources Group’s forecast financial budgets by reference
to a valuation carried out by Ascent Partners, an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected to the Group.

In addition, the Group was granted a put option (as further
varied by the supplemental agreement dated 28 April 2015) to
sell all or part of the acquired shares of Link Resources to the
vendor in the event that:

° if the consolidated NPAT for the year ending 31 December
2017 of Link Resources Group is less than the average
of consolidated NPAT for each of the three years ending
31 December 2015, 2016 and 2017, the Group shall
become bound to sell and the vendor shall become bound
to purchase all or part of 28% of the issued share capital
of Link Resources upon exercise of the option; and

o if the consolidated NPAT for the year ending 31 December
2018 of Link Resources Group is less than HK$1,500,000,
the Group shall become bound to sell and the vendor
shall become bound to purchase all or part of 43% of the
issued share capital of Link Resources upon exercise of
the option.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited

ERHE (BR)RASERRRA

19. RBBATFIZEE (&)
Wiz (&)

(i)

M2013F9A4R AEBEN KB AR - 2B
FE=ZNEBAERTL-NEEMRBEBE A
(B 498,866,000/ 7t ( BNIR & ./E9,500,0007% 7T
BERKARERRBEMEZAFED D
353,000/ 7T }.281,0007% 7T ) Y 8 K2 33 B8 B vl &
ANAHBRER B EAR —HAREERA
BIAREMBAR (SH B EASE])TE
NP BIREAMEEERENR HEEA (T
BIESINTERER) TS EMEAREAMIARER
BEZ AR -

R B R20145F2A11B 2 RRH & (&£ 8
HI/R2015F4A28R 2 /S s — H{ERT) -
B RAEERE B E RS BB E017F
12A31 A L =EFE 2 R AR BIR AR @RS
219,000,000 7T - BRIE T ARAEEIAR &
SN EENE 2 NE R B R(E
ZRNTEBEE#353,0008 T A TEIELE
N (BAEEYEBAEZ BYSEREXEME
B ETZMERRERAEAEEZRAME
BREZIRREREDNAE

SN - B AETONIER  RIA KRB ER T —I8R
SEHEIE (K B HR2015F4 528 2 #iFt it —
HERT)  NREBETEHB AT AR MR ABHENK
By

o (iBULZHAEEEZF2017F128318 1
FEZEABBELT L REZE2015F
20165 2017 12A31H = AFE&F
2R ERBIBAR - AEERITERER
BEREFVEHARE S RS NEE B A
2D B BEITRAE28% &

o (WM EREEHE2018F12A318 LF
B2 ERA BT AF 211,500,000 T« &
SERTTEERBEREEVELHURESE
BB E B B2 IBHERITRAN
43%



19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(Continued)

The fair value of the put option was determined to be
approximately HK$281,000 at the date of acquisition. The fair
value is arrived based on a discounted cash flow analysis of
Link Resources Group's forecast financial budgets by reference
to a valuation carried out by Ascent Partners, an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected to the Group.

The equity interest in Link Resources was reclassified as “asset
classified as held for sale” on 30 June 2016 (Note 28).

On 12 December 2014, the Group entered into a shareholders’
agreement with Mr. Leung Wai Hon (“Mr. Leung”) to subscribe
for an aggregate of 49% equity interest in Vision Smart Limited
(“Vision Smart”) at a cash consideration of HK$49. Vision Smart
is principally engaged in the property investment and investment
holding activities in Hong Kong.

In addition, the Group and Mr. Leung had further agreed to
provide non-interest bearing shareholders’ loan in proportion to
their respective shareholding in Vision Smart for the purpose to
finance the acquisition of properties for an aggregate amount
not exceeding HK$90,000,000. As at 30 June 2015, the Group
had granted shareholder’s loan to the associate to the extent of
approximately HK$15,200,000. The loan due from the associate
was unsecured and had no fixed terms of repayment.

Vision Smart became a subsidiary of the Group on 16 October
2015 (Note 40).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERRE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

19. RBBATRIZEE (£2)
Wiz (&)

(i) (#&)
PUEE R E - ROA Bk 2 AP E D B E49281,000

BT AT AT ESE L F (HA Y R
2T AR B A ) 1T 2 A ERIR

L NEE L S BEE L FRRE R BN
HE-

R2016F6 A30R - RIARI E MM REER DR B
[DERFHELEAE] (HE28) -

(i) M2014F12A12H AEEHRFHELE
(TREEDITI—MBREHZE  UKIERERK
{8497 jt A B& Vision Smart Limited ([ Vision
Smart | )Z & HA49%A% #E © Vision SmartEER &
BREMERLERREERER -

IESh . REBEREADE—SHTE  EHRBE
5% B R Vision Smartf I H I3 4 & S AR 3R
BE® MZ%”&Eﬁwﬁ,ﬁxti@90,000,000/’§TEZ%
EREES - M2015F6A308  AEBMERHL
15,200,000 T2 IR R E R T Bt & A 7 - 528
AN T s ERAERARERDTEES-

72015510 A 168 * Vision SmartfX /7 & & #) —
P 8 2 &) (Fi45E40) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERBE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 & Z2016F6A308 It F[E

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. RBELATRZHE (&)
EXBELAFZCHMBERABE

Summarised financial information of material
associates

Summarised financial information of each of the Group’s
material associates is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown in the
associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs.

AEBEEEABERAZHMBERB RIS
T TXAatz M ERB BT E QPRI
BAMBHREEARR M BHRETARER

FIBZSHERBANGRAMBRRPORAER

All of these associates are accounted for using the equity

method in these consolidated financial statements. JENER

Seasoned Leader Group Seasoned Leader% B
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FAET
Current assets mEEE 28,159 18,467
Non-current assets ERBEE 3,359 18,847
Current liabilities mENEE 20,206 17,006
Non-current liabilities EREEE = 276
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2016 30 June 2015
#BE2016%F H 220154
6A30H 6H30H
ILEE HFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue A 73,008 74,663
Profit for the year F 5 K 6,281 15,420
Other comprehensive income for the year FAREMEZE WA - -
Total comprehensive income for the year FAEHEBA BT 6,281 15,420
Dividend received from the associate B ANCI g 7,050 1,880
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERRE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. RBBARIZES (&
Summarised financial information of material EXBEAFCHERTHEE (&)
associates (Continued)
Seasoned Leader Group (Continued) Seasoned Leader$EH (#)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information L B E R AR B TS R R N P R R R
to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate EAAZEREEBEZHEAT

recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ETT FET

Net assets of Seasoned Leader Group Seasoned Leader(e & 2 B E F58 11,312 20,032
Proportion of the Group’s ownership &8 72 Seasoned Leaderss [ %

interest in Seasoned Leader Group B2 LB 47% 47%

Goodwill Ea 42,760 42,760
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in A& E 7 Seasoned Leaderf[E Ay

Seasoned Leader Group w2 REE 48,077 52,175

Link Resources Group BuZaEE

2015

HK$'000

FET

Current assets MENEE 11,089

Non-current assets ERBEE 355

Current liabilities mEEE 2,409
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERBE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. RBIBARIZHEE (£
Summarised financial information of material EXBEBEAFICHMERHEE (£)
associates (Continued)
Link Resources Group (Continued) BAZmER (&F)
Year ended
30 June 2015
HZE2015%F
6H30H
IEFE
HK$'000
FET
Revenue A 11,155
Profit for the year F R 2,354
Other comprehensive expense FRNEMEZERAXZ
for the year (45)
Total comprehensive income FAZERALEE
for the year 2,309
Dividend received from the associate B UHE N E R =
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information il B RS E R B B4R A B TS R IR NPT IE SR PR B
to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate EATZEREEZHERAT
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:
2015
HK$'000
FET
Net assets of Link Resources Group A RSB s EEFRE 9,035
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEERB I EHREE
interest in Link Resources Group WER R 2 B 43%
Goodwill P 3,991
Carrying amount of the Group’s REBRBE A EAEEN R
interest in Link Resources Group ZERHEE 7,876
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERRE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. RBBATRIZEE (£2)
Summarised financial information of material EXBREBEAFTIZCHETHEE (£2)
associates (Continued)
Vision Smart Vision Smart
As at
30 June 2015
I
20156 A30H
HK$'000
FET
Current assets MEEE 31,019
Non-current assets ERBEE =
Current liabilities mEEE 31,034
Non-current liabilities EREEE =
Period from Period from
1 July 2015 6 October 2014
to to
15 October 2015 30 June 2015
B2015%F B2014%
7H1E# 10A6H #E
220154 Z20154F
108158 IEEARE 6A30H IEEARS
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue A - -
Loss for the period BN &5 18 = 15
Other comprehensive income for the period  HA R E 4b 2 E UL A - —
Total comprehensive income for the period  HiR 2 U A 4258 = 15

Dividend received from the associate B U A BIRE - -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. RBBARZCEE (&
Summarised financial information of material EXBREBEAFICHMBEHEE (&)
associates (Continued)
Vision Smart (Continued) Vision Smart (#&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information it B E R B B AR B TS R ER N P R R R
to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate BATZEREBEZHERAT:

recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

As at
30 June 2015
20154
6H30H
HK$'000
FET
Net liabilities of Vision Smart Vision SmartZ & (&% %8 (15)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest 7% & 7 Vision Smart# & #
in Vision Smart T 2 2 LE B 49%
Loan due from Vision Smart Vision Smart/BEE v B 15,200
Unrecognised share of loss of Vision Smart K #32 2 FE1& Vision Smart
for the period BN EE 7
Carrying amount of the Group's interest RE B R Vision SmartZ #E
in Vision Smart ZEREE 15,200
20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. REEAFIZESR
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost of unlisted investments JEEMEREKA 14,250 14,250
Share of post-acquisition losses, FE(R UK BE 1 518
net of dividends received (kB WA E) (4,652) (3,890)
Balance at end of year RE R4 9,598 10,360

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERRE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

ventures:

Name of joint venture

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
At 30 June 2016, the Group had interests in the following joint

Place of incorporation
and operation

20. REBRFZHRE (&

Proportion of nominal
value of issued capital
held by the Group

Proportion of
voting power held

MR2016F6A30H  REBRIUATEERRER

Principal activity

s A 3L R FEEFRBERTRE risRRE
RENFER EEME EELH :4:] IEXH
2016 2015 2016 2015
Full Profit Hong Kong Development Hong Kong 50% 50% 50% 50%  Provision of
Limited (“Full Profit") (note f) management and
consultancy services
for kindergartens
REFHERRAERLA([RE]) & 50% 50% 50% 50% AHZRREHEER
(Hrsti) B R
Creative Education Technology Hong Kong 50% 50% 50% 50%  Provision of private
Limited (“Creative Education”) educational and
(note i) training services
BEHARRBRAR e 50% 50% 50% 50% RELAHER
(TRIZHE]) (Hsi) BB
Notes: Bt ez -

(i)

On 8 April 2013, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party, to acquire
50% equity interest in Full Profit at a cash consideration
of HK$14,000,000. Pursuant to the agreement, the vendor
guarantees to the Group that profit after tax for each of the two
years ended 30 June 2014 and 2015 of Full Profit will be not
less than HK$4,000,000, failing which the vendor shall pay to
the Group the shortfall in cash with a multiplier. The acquisition
was reflected as the purchase of intangible assets represented
by service contracts with ten years useful life as Full Profit has
not commenced its operations at the date of acquisition. For the
years ended 30 June 2014 and 2015, the profit after tax of Full
Profit and its subsidiary (“Full Profit Group”) reached not less
than HK$4,000,000 and has fulfilled the profit guarantee for the
two years ended 30 June 2014 and 2015 which it made to the
Group. The Directors are of the opinion that as Full Profit has
fulfilled the profit guarantee for the two years ended 30 June
2014 and 2015 and hence the fair value of the profit guarantee
is insignificant as at 30 June 2015. The profit guarantee has
been expired during the year ended 30 June 2016.

() 201344880 A&EEE—BBIFE=HFI L
B E W5 IR £ R 814,000,000/ 7T W e 2 @
HI50% 0% 1 - BRI e B Hh A EBIER
B WA E £ 20144F 201556 A30H IE A EE
& F R BB 185 F 48 T 2 1744,000,0007 7T & Al
BEHAAAEBNBE S EZENETELE M
RELYRKERBRY RMAKRESE REKESER
MABEREAHMEA+FRERFHNER
BE B E2014F K2015E6 830 LEE - Be
REWBAR ([BLEE]) 2 k%S ESD
144,000,000 7T - I B 5e R A AR S B 5 H 2
B 20144 K 201556 A30H IF /A4 2 5 A
RE-BERE BRABYUDTREE20144F K
2015%F6 A30A It MIAFE 2 m FIRE - FEitt &
AR EH D FERN20155F6 A30H A FAEAX © i Al
RBEREE201656 A30H (FFEHH] -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 20. REBLAFIZHES (&)

Notes: (Continued) Bt (&)
(i) On 3 June 2013, the Group entered into an agreement with a (i) M2013F6A3R ALBEHBAEEH([AEE

FDRKIBERETL —DHEH - RIEZ %
#AREEGEEHEABBRAAKREEAE
BHE BN S)EE 250,000 T A A EHEH
50%RHE - AN & B ERREAER B MR
BIBHE MR E £/ % 5 R20,000,0008 7T °

joint venture partner (“JV Partner”) in relation to the formation
of Creative Education. Pursuant to the agreement, each of the
Group and the JV Partner holds 50% equity interest in Creative
Education by contributing cash of HK$250,000 each by the
Group and JV Partner and may increase the investment in
Creative Education up to a total amount of HK$20,000,000 with
prior consent of each other.

Pursuant to the agreement between the Group and the BREAEERSEEE ZENFHE:
JV Partner:

in the event that the JV Partner (or the holding company of
the JV Partner or a company which is owned as to 50% or
more by the JV partner) has met the listing requirements
of the Taiwan Stock Exchange (including listing on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange, listing on the GreTai Securities
Market and registration on the Emerging Stock Board) or
Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of the Stock Exchange,
the JV Partner shall be entitled the right to subscribe an
additional 10% equity interest in Creative Education at
a subscription price determined at the net asset value
of Creative Education or five times of profit after tax of
Creative Education, whichever is higher (“JV Partner’s Call
Option”); and

in the event that Creative Education has met the listing
requirements of GEM of the Stock Exchange, the Group
shall be entitled the right to subscribe an additional 10%
equity interest in Creative Education at a subscription price
determined at the net asset value of Creative Education
or five times of profit after tax of Creative Education,
whichever is higher (“Group’s Call Option”).

MeaBEBH (REBERHNERARL—MH
MEERBHEAEA0%IIA L RENRF)F
BREREFRIM (BERBEERRHM
£ R EAE T R EAE ) Sk R P
B (TRIERDM ETER AIEER
HREREREE (RAEHRENEERE
FABEHEBRBREFNAESE (URS
ERE)VET)RBEIBZEREBEINO%E
(TRERHRERED R

HAI SR BB AR ATAIZERN EHER
AIREEKARZREE RABHENE
EFERAEREBRRBREFNNEESER
(ARBERE)ET)RBAIEHE EH
10%RkE (TAREEBEHE]) -

EERR AEERBHELAERHRE
HIREA RE M AL B B e s IR AP EX

In the opinion of the Directors, the fair value of the
Group’s Call Option and the JV Partner’s Call Option is

insignificant at the date of incorporation and at the end of TEKR
the reporting period.
Summarised financial information of material joint EXSEQAFICHBEEHEE

ventures

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
material joint ventures is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown in the
joint ventures’ financial statements prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs.

AEEREAXAERRAZMBEMBRZHTIL0
T XAtz HBERB BRI EE ERARIE
BAMBREEARR B RETARER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERRE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 20. REEBLARIZER (£
Summarised financial information of material joint EXSELAFICHMERHEE (&)
ventures (Continued)
The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method BERNANFEAERENZEREUBHREA
in these consolidated financial statements. AR -
Full Profit Group EEFE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Current assets MENEE 5,147 5,628
Non-current assets IEREBEE 10 14
Current liabilities mENEE 823 1,977
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the Tl EEREESEBENATSE:
following:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash and cash equivalents HEMREeEEY 5,109 5,545

Current financial liabilities (excluding trade 4R BB (TBEEZE S &
and other payables and provisions) Eofh T R R B ) - =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 20. REBLATFIZER (&
Summarised financial information of material joint EXSEQAFICHMERHEE (£)
ventures (Continued)
Full Profit Group (Continued) BEZEm (&)
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE&T FET
Revenue A 7,792 8,177
Profit for the year FEEF 3,669 4,084

Other comprehensive income for the year FEHEMZEUYA - -

Total comprehensive income for the year FEE2AEBRALEE 3,669 4,084

Dividend received from the joint venture SN E N 1,500 1,500
The above profit for the year includes the following: L FESEFNBEATEE:

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET TFET

Depreciation and amortisation I I 8 4 3

Interest income AMEHA 1 1

Taxation I8 701 806

160 Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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FEMBEERRE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 20. REBLFIZRER (&)
Summarised financial information of material joint EXSEBEAFICUMBEHEBE (&)
ventures (Continued)
Full Profit Group (Continued) BEEm (&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information Ll A E R E BN AR S B S R N TR
to the carrying amount of the interest in Full Profit Group BEEESREECHEREN T

recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

TFET FET

Net assets of Full Profit Group EEEMEEFE 4,326 3,665
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest 7R @A 2 LW B A #

in Full Profit Group 30l at] 50% 50%

Effect of fair value adjustments at acquisition WER A FEFHE 2 ZE 14,000 14,000

Other adjustments H A% (6,632) (5,543)
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest REBRBEEEER S

in Full Profit Group FREE 9,531 10,289

Information of joint venture that is not individually material BT EXEELFIEFH

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

TFHET FET

The Group's share of post-tax loss NEBELBRTBIEEER 4 (21)
The Group's share of other comprehensive — ZN% B fE{h E b 2 WA

income = =
The Group's share of total comprehensive REBEGEAMAZ B

expense (4) (21)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s REBREERRIERZ

interests in the joint venture HBEREE 67 71
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

21. TLMERE

2016 2015
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FETT FET

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong BEELEMBRAFS  ERAFE
at fair value (note(i)) (BtaEa)) 16,914 21,300

Unlisted investment fund, at cost EEMREES LKA

(note(ii)) (H1aEai)) 9,208 7,939
26,122 29,239

Notes: Biat -

0]

(ii)

The listed equity securities represent the shares of GET Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8100) (“GET”) which were stated at fair
value with reference to the quoted market bid price in the Stock
Exchange. During the year ended 30 June 2016, the Group
further acquired an aggregate of 118,600,000 GET shares
on the market through the Stock Exchange for an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$50,815,000. At the end of
the reporting period, there was a loss on fair value change in
the investment of approximately HK$53,768,000 (2015: gain
on the fair value change in the investment of approximately
HK$1,433,000) recognised in other comprehensive (expense)
income, which was reflected in the “investment revaluation
reserve”.

During the year ended 30 June 2016, the investment
was determined to be impaired and the cumulative loss
of approximately HK$53,768,000 (2015: approximately
HK$6,451,000) previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve was reclassified to profit or loss.

The unlisted investment fund represents the investment in
private fund established in the Cayman Islands. The unlisted
investment is held for an identified long term strategic purpose
so the Group does not intend to dispose them in the foreseeable
future. The investment is measured at cost less impairment
at the end of the reporting period because the ranges of
reasonable fair value estimates are so significant that the
Directors are of the opinion that the fair values cannot measured
reliably. During the year ended 30 June 2016, the management
had determined an impairment loss of approximately
HK$731,000 (2015: approximately HK$61,000) by making
reference to the statements of accounts provided by the fund
administrators.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited

ERHE (BB RASERRRA

(i)

(ii)

EARAEFLRE2ERBIMARTSEAE
BRATEIENE ZZERAERAF (BMHASR:
8100) ([EF & 1) R& 13 - B 20166 A30H 1=
FE-AEBFBHIANTS LE - FWES
#£118,600,000/% & 5 ik 15 - 48X & £950,815,000
B -RBEHR RNEM2E (FX) R
RE R A N FEE B #) E 8 #953,768,000/& 7T
(2015%F : /& N T{EEZ B #) U 21 491,433,0008
) BN REEMEE] AR -

MNEE2016F6A30R L FERN - RETIKEE
FLUREM LRI IR E EMFHE D Rt 25
$84953,768,00074 7T (20154F : £96,451,0007 7T )
EEHOEEER-

FLTREESHENASHERN I ZMARSR
B LR EFHER AT B E R RIRES - AR
AEBRARERKE IS EIELE - ZRIER
HEMRARABREFT 2 RRREELT
EMEBEFTEZ EERRATETESE
B -REZE201656 H30R FFERN  K2EE
SEBREMREHERNEKERERR EEEETRE
E51849731,0007% 7T (2015%F : £961,000/8 7T ) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERRE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

22. NON-CURRENT DEPOSITS 22. kIR E
2016 2015
HK$’'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Rental deposits (Note 23) Meks (Ki723) 5,640 7,508
23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. BSRHEMEKRIEA
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Accrued revenue and trade receivables s AR E 5 ERER R 1,281 552
Rental deposits Heke 19,958 19,608
Other deposits Bz e 6,342 3,069
Prepayments B FRIE 6,353 8,794
Other receivables E {th e I 3k I8 8,153 1,486
42,087 33,509
Less: Rental deposits (shown under W HeEe (PIAFERDEE)
non-current assets) (5,640) (7,508)
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk E AW FRIR
(shown under current assets) (FIAREBEE) 36,447 26,001
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERBE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23. RAREMBURE (&

164

The following is an aged analysis of accrued revenue and
trade receivables, presented based on the invoice date at the
end of the reporting period which approximated the respective
revenue recognition dates:

KT AREREMAEEAN (LRERARR
FBARE) 25 MR EH A R 5 MR K 5
WA

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

TFET FET

Accrued revenue not yet billed A AR 3 H AR BB MY FE AT U 563 225
Trade receivables: Z 5 FEUAR K :

0 - 30 days 0%230H 248 218

31 - 60 days 31E60H 95 66

61 — 90 days 61£290H 18 10

Over 90 days B iB90H 357 33

1,281 552

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are
debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$357,000 (2015: HK$33,000) which were past due as
at the reporting date for which the Group did not provide for
impairment loss. The Group did not hold any collateral over
these balances. The aging of these receivables was over
90 days (2015: over 90 days).

As at 30 June 2016, accrued revenue and trade receivables
primarily arose from the continuing franchise income of
primary tutoring service to franchisees and advertising income
(2015: arose from the continuing franchise income of primary
tutoring service to franchisees). The accrued revenue is not
yet due as it is billed in arrears. The credit periods ranged
from 30 days to 90 days. There is no credit period granted for
tuition fee as they are normally received in advance.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited

ERHE (BR)RASERRRA

AEENEZRUEREREREREARY
357,000/ 7t (2015%F : 33,000/ 7T ) &) B I R 45
B A I T AN 5= B0 R S AR BB B R B B HY
& W R T o AN 5% [ 3 4t % T A BRI B (R 4R A
fh ° 7% 5 R AGRIR R AR B 23 B 890 R (2015%F :
#83890R ) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERRE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

24. LOAN RECEIVABLES 24, BIrE®
2016 2015
HK$’'000 HK$ 000
F#ET FET
Loan receivables U E X 40,836 30,401
Less: Balances due within one year R —EAREmMEt ARBIEE
included in current assets 2 EEER (19,045) (23,547)
Non-current portion EREE D 21,791 6,854

Loan receivables represent outstanding principals and interest
arising from the money lending business of the Group. All
of the loan receivables are entered with contractual maturity
within 1 to 2 years. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its loan receivables in order to minimise credit risk
by reviewing the borrowers’ and their guarantors’ financial
positions.

The loan receivables are interest-bearing at rates mutually
agreed between the contracting parties, ranging from 8% to
10% (2015: 9% to 12%) per annum. As at 30 June 2016,
loan receivables were unsecured (2015: approximately
HK$4,896,000 were secured by pledged equity shares
beneficially owned by the borrower).

Loan receivables were neither past due nor impaired at the
end of the reporting period.

EURERERAEERBERTMEEZ HARK
BIARE RHE P %EREE RS X5 5
BN FRIZE2F R - AEE KGR BRIEHI A
EWER  BBBEMERAREERAZHBN
S AR EEERR -

EWERRTHNT ZEBEEREZMENF
FF8%E1I0% (2015F : 9% E12% )at B -1
20165F6 A30H » EU E R EIEIR (20155 : 4
4,896,000/8 TL I AERA B A 2 Ba ki
HIRERER) ©

RBERR BB ERB BB HSRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERBE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES 25. BIgRREALTRIA
Maximum amounts
outstanding during the year
REARNXEENEELE
At At
30 June 2016 30 June 2015 2016 2015
20165 #2015
6A30H 64308
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FEr
Modern English Limited BREZBERAQA 1,164 966 1,164 966
World Wide Resources RFERER
Management Limited BRAE 136 136 136 136
Phoenix Investment Limited BRIREFERAA - - 65
Modern iClass Limited BRETHEBERAA 42 42 6
1,342 1,108

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand. The relationships with the Group of
each related party are disclosed in Note 42(a).

26. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 26.

The amount represents equity securities listed in Hong
Kong. The fair values of the investments are determined
with reference to the quoted market bid prices in the Stock
Exchange.

27. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 27.

Bank balances carried interest at market rates ranging from
0.001% to 0.02% (2015: 0.001% to 0.02%) per annum.

As at 30 June 2016, the Group’s bank balances and cash with
an aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$1,000
(2015: approximately HK$3,902,000) were denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”) which is not a freely convertible currency
in the international market. The government of the PRC has
implemented foreign exchange control and the remittance of
these funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions
imposed by the government of the PRC.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited

ERHE (BR)RASERRRA

ZEREASEER RERREBRFEEE -AK
B L% B A T H) BRI MY i 42(a) K B o

BERERS
ZBREN TR LMHRAR S ZFRENRD
FEDVEZERBIAMBETSEEANBREE

HMITHBRRRAS

RITEBIEN FEE0.001%%E0.02% (20154 :
0.001%%0.02% ) T HF R+ 8 »

7201656 A30H » A& B A BRE (B 41,0007 7T
(2015%F : 93,902,000/ 7T ) Z SRITAEH LR &
AARBE (TARDEE MARSLIFER
mEEsEAABRERE PERFCEITINEE
H BEEELPEFRIIEAITERNERZER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERRE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

28. ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 28. P HMEBEHESE

On 30 June 2016, the Group entered into the disposal M20165F6 8300 AEBEBLE= HE]L
agreement with the independent third parties in relation to HEHa - WA H AR 2 {E7,000,0007% 7T
dispose of approximately 43% of issued share capital of Link HEBIEANBIEBITREA-ZFER
Resources at the cash consideration of HK$7,000,000. The 201657278 5EA - At R &R - A —E
transaction was completed on 27 July 2016. Accordingly, the BENRZEGETOEA I DBEARBIELESR
interest in the associate was reclassified as “asset classified El - HEMSHBEFERABAN —HEE A
as held for sale” at the end of the reporting period. The net AEms FEEFE - BEREBBECERR -

proceeds of disposal are expected to exceed the net carrying
amount of the interest in the associate. No impairment loss
has been recognised.

29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 29. HttEFRIRIA R EE A
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other payables Hfh FE S 5RI8 5,728 8,011
Accrued tutor contractor fee, EETEMEARE -HERIEAR
salary and bonus and other accruals Hib e Ed';%fﬁﬁ 9,547 8,385
15,275 16,396
30. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES 30. EFRREALTRE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Amounts due to a director and/or ERFREE—ZEEN
non-controlling shareholder of SR FEIE AR AR SR M IR
Able Investment 595 195
The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and ZEEFEER 2EREEKREEER

repayable on demand.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERBE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 & Z2016F6A308 It F[E

31.

32.

BANK BORROWINGS 31. SRITHE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FRET FEr
Unsecured: KR
Revolving loan EERER 14,800 =
The bank borrowings are repayable as follows: B IA FEEEEMNIRTEE:
Within one year —F R 14,800 =

As at 30 June 2016, the bank borrowings of the Group carried
variable interest rates at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR") plus 1.5% per annum (2015: nil).

R2016%6 A30H - AEBERITEERBBRTT
RZEHRE ([BERITAERE]) IN1.5%HF B
FHEGE (20155 : &) -

LOAN NOTES . EREE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Loan notes — unsecured ERER-EER 146,496 =

On 17 December 2015, the Company issued 8%
unsubordinated and unsecured notes due on 16 December
2017 (“Loan Notes”) in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$150,000,000. The Loan Notes carried an interest of 8%
per annum payable quarterly in arrears.

The Company may at its option redeem the Loan Notes, in
whole or any part thereof outstanding on a business day must
be a day after the first anniversary of the date of issue of the
Loan Notes and before the maturity date. Also, the noteholder
may at its option redeem the Loan Notes, in whole or any part
thereof outstanding on a business day after the eighteenth
month of the date of issue of the Loan Notes and before the
maturity date. On the redemption date, the Company shall pay
to such noteholder the principal amount of the Loan Notes
to be redeemed plus all accrued and unpaid interest on the
principal amount of the Loan Notes to be redeemed. The
effective interest rate for the year ended 30 June 2016 was
11% per annum. The balance is included in current liabilities
in view of its early redemption terms.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited

ERHE (BR)RASERRRA

M2015%12A178 » AR A #EITR20174F
12A16B 21 28%IE N B R BIEREE (&R
Fi81) A2 #EFR150,000,0008 T - ERFIE
BEFI% I ME B YABFXA -

ARRAEEEERERRBRRTAZE @A
FRHREIHEANEXEBERDREEERRRE
B2 B SAERER D o LLHN REBEFE AT AT RE
BEREXERETERR T \ERKRERHA
ATEY & 5 A & O R (E& ERE IR A 2 Bk &6
DoREBEEBEH ARAKABEBEBRERBEAX
NETFEQOZERZBENASRERZEEN
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6A30R L FEZERFNERIL% - ERNEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERRE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

33. DEFERRED TAXATION 33. RERIE
The following are the deferred tax liabilities recognised and NTERMEFENERNELEHBEEEREE
movements thereon during both years: g

Intangible Accelerated tax

assets depreciation Total
EREE MERIBIRE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 July 2014 R2014F7H1H (212) (810) (1,022)
Credited (charged) to profit FAREZF
or loss during the year A (F1RR) 33 (227) (194)
At 30 June 2015 201596 A30H (179) (1,037) (1,216)
Credited (charged) to profit FARBZF
or loss during the year A (F0BR) 33 (210) (177)
At 30 June 2016 R2016F6 A30H (146) (1,247) (1,393)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax RBEBRAR AEENARAAMRIEBEEBRED
losses of approximately HK$82,401,000 (2015: approximately 82,401,000/ 7t (20154 : 933,140,000/ 7T ) A]
HK$33,140,000) available for offsetting against future profits RAAKEEEBEAGRRIEF - ARR G
of the companies in which the losses arose. No deferred tax AR B S A] TEORI M - I BB RZ SR TR B R TSR
asset has been recognised in respect of such tax losses due to BEEBIBEE -FTBHIABEN &SR AALE -
unpredictability of future profit streams. All tax losses can be
carried forward indefinitely.
At 30 June 2015, the Group had deductible temporary 7201556 A30H » 78 & B I & A H1 5 B I 1% =
differences of approximately HK$7,097,000. No deferred ®E#97,097,000/% 7T © F P K ] BE B FE AR 1t g 1)
tax asset had been recognised in relation to such deductible BE] AR AT R E R =5 B ERL B
temporary difference as it was not probable that taxable profit AR SR EEERELEHRIBEEE -

would be available against which the deductible temporary
differences could be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERBE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

34. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Able Investment

On 22 December 2010, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (“Acquisition Agreement”) with Six Stars
Consultants Limited (“Six Stars”), a related company of the
Group, Ms. Yiu Wai Yee (“Ms. Yiu”), Able Investment and
the non-controlling shareholders of Able Investment, namely,
Ms. Poon Wai Sze, Ms. Mok Sze Wan, Mr. Ng Hoi Tin and
Mr. Ng Ping Lun, for the acquisition of 60% equity interest in
Able Investment and its subsidiary, Bachelor Education, from
Six Stars at a cash consideration of HK$6,000,000 (including
HK$3,000,000 which was settled in 2011 and HK$3,000,000
in 2012 and a contingent consideration of HK$2,000,000
(which is adjusted by reference to the financial results of
Bachelor Education for the financial periods ended 31 August
2012 and ended 31 August 2013)). Upon completion of
the acquisition on 31 December 2010, Able Investment was
owned as to 60% by the Group and 40% by non-controlling
shareholders. Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, various
call and put options have been granted to the Group and
non-controlling shareholders of Able Investment.

Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, the Group was
granted a call option to acquire additional 40% issued share
capital of Able Investment and a put option to sell back
60% of the issued share capital of Able Investment from/to
the non-controlling shareholders. On 31 March 2014, the
Group exercised part of its call option to acquire an additional
28.75% equity interest in Able Investment.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited

ERHE (BR)RASERRRA

4. AthemBE

FIRERR

2010612228  AEEEA S B/ HENR T
NEBEBRAR ([NE]D - hEET (5
Zt])  FREERFIFIEE IR T - B
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e A gk A1 75 i DA ER & R (86,000,000 7T (B 3E
3,000,0007% 7t 2 #2011 4 & 1 53,000,000/ 7T
BER2012F &) Kk AR E2,000,000% 7 ()
BB+ H=HE201268A31H K20134
8A31H I IR AR M B 7 348 T LA 2R ) WK BB F)
REENENBRRZIHEO%REILEE
W ([WE W Z]) - 72010F 128310 kg =
B & - FISRIRE B A S BB 60% K B IEFE IR AR
REFA0% - IBRIBUWEE H % - & TR KRHH
BERTAEBRFFRIEEMNIFITRBRE -
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34. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Able Investment (Continued)

In addition, the Group granted a put option to the
non-controlling shareholders (“Vendor Put Option”) to sell
11.25% issued share capital of Able Investment to the Group
on 31 December 2015 upon fulfilment of various conditions,
including, the accumulated NPAT of Bachelor Education for
the five financial periods ended 31 August 2015 is equal to
or above HK$19,300,000. The exercise price of the Vendor
Put Option is determined as 11.25% of the audited NPAT for
the financial period ended 31 August 2015 adjusted for a
multiplier set out in the Acquisition Agreement.

No option has been exercised during the year and all the call
and put options pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement have
been expired on 31 December 2015.

Seasoned Leader

On 10 July 2013, the Group entered into sale and purchase
agreement with independent third parties, to acquire an
aggregate of 47% equity interest in Seasoned Leader.

Pursuant to the agreement (as further varied by the
supplemental agreement dated 8 November 2013), the
vendors guarantee to the Group that the average combined
NPAT for each of the two years ended 31 December 2014
and 2015 of Seasoned Leader Group will be not less than
HK$14,000,000, failing which the vendors shall pay to the
Group the shortfall in cash with a multiplier. Pursuant to the
second supplemental agreement dated 18 March 2016, the
Group and the vendors agreed that the average combined
NPAT for each of the two years ended 31 December 2014
and 2015 was over HK$14,000,000 and no adjustment to the
consideration was required.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERRE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

34. At & MBE (&

FIR®R ()

AN - AN E R IR AR X L ROE I ([E77
ROHHAME ) - LAR20155F 12 A31 HEEBURIA KT
BAAREDENRIRESBITRANL.25%
BERGHFEERELREBE2015F8A31H 1E
A 8 ER B ) R A BR B R AR R AR R kiR i
19,300,000/ 7T - B 5 R0t RV ITREE I E T
5 1 U B 167 T R A BUR S B AL £ 201548 A
31R M B R E BRI AN 11.25% ©

BB IR B A F N ETT(E K AT 5B B8 K 50 H7
EEREWBEHEN2015F12A831HER

Seasoned Leader

MR2013F7H10H AEBEBYE=FHFILE
E 3% LAY BE Seasoned Leaderd 347 %A% #E o

BIEZ W= (LB EA2013F11 A8H 2 /i 7 #
BmIE—ER]) B A RIASLEIRE  Seasoned
Leaderss B 10 & £20144F 20154128318 1t
MEFESFHFEHEHBRMELT T DR
14,000,000/ 70 GRAIZEH BRI AEE AR €
REHI M E% - RIEE 8 A2016F38188 2
E_mnhRE AEERERESRE BREZR
20144 K2015F12A31H I MEAFE & F 2 F
& 0 B 1% 4 F 29 %8 #8 14,000,000 7T+ ML
BRREELARE-
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FEMBEERBE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

34. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued) 34. Rth&MEE ()

172

Seasoned Leader (Continued)

The Group was also granted a put option to sell back all of
the acquired shares of Seasoned Leader to the vendors in the
event that the auditors have expressed a qualified opinion or a
disclaimed opinion in any of the audited financial statements
of Seasoned Leader Group for the years ended 31 December
2014 and 2015. As the Qualified Event has not been triggered
on the Seasoned Leader Group for the respective years, no
put option was exercised and the option has been lapsed as at
30 June 2016.

Link Resources

On 4 September 2013, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase and subscription agreement with an independent
third party and Link Resources to acquire and subscribe for
an aggregate of 43% equity interest in Link Resources.

Pursuant to a shareholders’ agreement dated 11 February
2014 (as further varied by the supplemental agreement dated
28 April 2015), the vendor guarantees to the Group that
the aggregate consolidated NPAT for the three years ending
31 December 2017 of Link Resources Group will be not less
than HK$9,000,000, failing which the vendors shall pay to the
Group the shortfall in cash with a multiplier.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited

ERHE (BR)RASERRRA

Seasoned Leader (#&)

7N 52 8] IR B RRE HAAE - W 1% LRI 5k Seasoned
Leader®s @ i & 220144 &2015F12A31A 1-
FENTAREZMBERRERREERLL
ERBEXRERF TRESELRMAD KEDN
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PAEEFETEERREERFMH WA EITE
o AARE - R ARREE 201656 308 Kk

BnrEm
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34. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Link Resources (Continued)

In addition, the Group was granted a put option (as further
varied by the supplemental agreement dated 28 April 2015) to
sell all or part of the acquired shares of Link Resources to the
vendor in the event that:

e if the consolidated NPAT for the year ending
31 December 2017 of Link Resources Group is less than
the average consolidated NPAT for each of the three
years ending 31 December 2015, 2016 and 2017, the
Group shall become bound to sell and the vendor shall
become bound to purchase all or part of 28% of the
issued share capital of Link Resources upon exercise of
the option; and

e if the consolidated NPAT for the year ending
31 December 2018 of Link Resources Group is less than
HK$1,500,000, the Group shall become bound to sell
and the vendor shall become bound to purchase all or
part of 43% of the issued share capital of Link Resources
upon exercise of the option.

On 30 June 2016, the Group entered into a disposal
agreement with the other shareholder of Link Resources
to dispose of its entire equity interest in Link Resources.
The Directors consider that the fair values of the contingent
consideration receivable and the put option are minimal
at 30 June 2016.

Summarised information of the Group’s other
financial assets

The following is the analysis of the Group’s other financial
assets at the end of the reporting period:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERRE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

34. Hth &MEE (&
BuEm(#E)
BESI - AN SR B E R RROh B (I8 H 3 R2015%
4F28R 2 T — FER]) MNBE AN T =
1A B 1) B 07 65 AT U 0 22 P R 4 BB T A AR

%

o (HEBAMEAEENEZE2017F12A31H8 1k
FERGRE BRI EEFER B E20155
2016%F K2017F12A31H IE=AFEXF
B ERE BB AR - RITEZEAER
AEEBVEEREABUBERIENRNE
B0 B BITIRAM28% &

o fHEEAI AAEBENEE2018F12A31H 1k
FE ARG BRBR AN 1,500,000 7T
RITEZBER  AREBELHERETH
VEEBRA AR RN B BITRAN
43% °

201656 A30H - 78 5 B 42 15 ] & 5 2 H i
REAZ—(HEHBAHEERBA &R 2288
Mk - EERA PR20165F6 A30H 2 EME AR
B R B 2 R ER/)

FREAHMEMRERHBER

AEERHERRNEMEREESTLT :

2016 2015

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

k23 F#T FET

Call option R B (i) - 670
Put option o B (i) & (iv) — 1,614
Contingent consideration receivables FEU S AR AB (if) & (iii) - 325
- 2,609
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Notes to
FEMBEERBE

r ended 30 June 2016 &#;E2016%F6H30H IEFE

For the yea

the Consolidated Financial Statements

34. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Summarised information of the Group’s other
financial assets (Continued)

Notes:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

The call option was granted to the Group for five years,
which had been expired on 31 December 2015, to purchase
the remaining 11.25% of the issued share capital of Able
Investment from the non-controlling shareholders. The exercise
price of the call option was determined as 11.25% of NPAT
of Bachelor Education adjusted by a multiplier set out in the
Acquisition Agreement of the respective financial period when
the call option was exercised.

The put option was granted to the Group for five years, which
had been expired on 31 December 2015, to sell back to the
non-controlling shareholders 88.75% issued share capital of
Able Investment if the NPAT of Bachelor Education during
the five financial periods ended 31 August 2015 was less
than 88.75% of the guarantee NPAT set out in the Acquisition
Agreement. The exercise price is the total consideration for the
acquisition of 88.75% issued share capital of Able Investment
under the Acquisition Agreement plus 88.75% of the net asset
value of Bachelor Education at the date the put option was
exercised.

As at 30 June 2015, the fair values of the call option and the
put option were estimated by Vigers, an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected to the Group.

The contingent consideration receivable was determined as the
average of combined NPAT of Seasoned Leader Group for each
of the two years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015 adjusted
by a multiplier if the actual combined NPAT for the respective
periods was less than HK$14,000,000 as set out in the sale and
purchase agreement.

As at 30 June 2015, the fair value of the contingent
consideration receivable was estimated by Ascent Partners, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected to the
Group.

The contingent consideration is determined as the aggregated
consolidated NPAT of Link Resources Group for the three years
ending 31 December 2017 adjusted by a multiplier if the actual
aggregate consolidated NPAT for the respective period is less
than HK$9,000,000 as set out in the shareholders’ agreement
(as further varied by the supplemental agreement dated 28 April
2015).

As at 30 June 2015, the fair value of the contingent
consideration receivable was estimated by Ascent Partners, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected to the
Group.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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34. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Summarised information of the Group’s other
financial assets (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

35.

(iv)

The put option is granted to the Group to sell back to the
vendor up to 43% issued share capital of Link Resources if the
consolidated NPAT of Link Resources Group for the financial
year ending 31 December 2017 is less than the average
consolidated NPAT of the three years ending 31 December
2015, 2016 and 2017, and if the consolidated NPAT is less than
HK$1,500,000 for the financial year ending 31 December 2018.
The exercise price of the put option is determined as up to 43%
of average consolidated NPAT of Link Resources Group adjusted
by a multiplier as set out in the shareholders’ agreement at the
date the put option is exercised.

As at 30 June 2015, the fair value of the put option was
estimated by Ascent Partners, an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected to the Group.

The above fair values are determined in the manner described
in Note 6.

PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERRE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE
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35. RAART & 08

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#T FEr

At beginning of year REA] 1,902 1,921
Charged to profit or loss during the year FARIB P R 69 20
Reductions arising from payments FFREE 2 HR (114) (39)
At end of year REFLL 1,857 1,902

The provision for long service payments is based on the

best estimate of the future payments required to settle the

obligations under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance in

relation to the employees of the Group in Hong Kong.

RHIRG  BETDRBER RN RO & EMBTE
- MARRMRTIAREERERBREERDH
AEBEERBNREBAAENERT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. &
The movements of share capital of the Company are as RARMPRAEENT ¢
follows:
Number of
shares Amount
Bin @ E &8
Notes HK$'000
k=3 FHET
Authorised EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each R2014F7A1B &K
at 1 July 2014 HEC. 1B TH & @R 1,500,000,000 150,000
Increased in authorised share capital 72014411 826H
on 26 November 2014 I AEE AR AR (i) 1,500,000,000 150,000
Share consolidation on 27 May 2015  R2015%F5H27HR M A  (v@) (2,400,000,000) —
Sub-division of unissued REITE R D IR 48
consolidated shares (iv(c)) 29,400,000,000 —
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each R2015%F6 A30H &%
at 30 June 2015 H{E0.0178 7T /Y & 38 A 30,000,000,000 300,000
Share consolidation on R2016F3A11H K in & ot
11 March 2016 (vi) (24,000,000,000) =
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each 7201656 A308 &%
at 30 June 2016 H{E0.057%8 7T #Y & 38 A% 6,000,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid B ZETRHE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each R2014F7A1B &K
at 1 July 2014 H1{EO0.1/8 oA 3@ A% 964,000,000 96,400
Issue of shares upon placing R201457H31H
on 31 July 2014 Bic & B BT I 1 (i) 394,080,000 39,408
Issue of shares upon placing R2014F12H18H
on 18 December 2014 Bl E R BT R (D (iii) 271,616,000 27,162
Effect of capital reorganisation N e A (iv) (1,303,756,300) (159,711)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each R2015%F6 A30H &%
at 30 June 2015 H{E0.01/8 oAy & @ A% 325,939,200 3,259
Issue of rights shares and R2015F8H7H
bonus shares on 7 August 2015 BITHR R D MATRR (v) 1,955,635,200 19,557
Share consolidation on R2016F3 A11H K in & ot
11 March 2016 (vi) (1,825,259,520) =
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each R2016%F6 A30H &%
at 30 June 2016 H{E50.05/% 7T H) & 3@ A% 456,314,880 22,816

176 Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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36. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

0

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

On 31 July 2014, an aggregate of 394,080,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each were issued to not less than six placees,
who were professional, institutional or other investors and
who and whose ultimate beneficial owners were independent
third parties, at a price of HK$0.145 per share representing
a discount of approximately 14.71 % of the closing market
price of the Company’s shares on 13 May 2014 as set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 13 May 2014. The
placing shares were issued pursuant to a specific mandate
obtained at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 18 July 2014. The net proceeds were intended to be
used for the development of the existing business and the
development of online education business of the Group.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
26 November 2014, the ordinary resolution in relation to
the increase in authorised share capital was duly passed
by way of poll. Following the passing of the resolution, the
authorised share capital of the Company was increased from
HK$150,000,000 divided into 1,500,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each to HK$300,000,000 divided into 3,000,000,000
shares by the creation of an additional 1,500,000,000 shares.
The increase in authorised share capital took effect on the same
date.

On 18 December 2014, an aggregate of 271,616,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each were issued to not less
than six placees, who were professional, institutional or other
investors and who and whose ultimate beneficial owners were
independent third parties, at a price of HK$0.122 per share
representing a discount of approximately 14.69% to the closing
market price of the Company’s share on 3 December 2014 as
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 3 December
2014. The net proceeds were used to provide additional working
capital of the Group.

On 17 February 2015, the Company proposed to put forward
for approval by the shareholders of the Company a capital
reorganisation (“Capital Reorganisation”) which involved the
following:

(a) Consolidation (“Ist Share Consolidation”) of every five
existing ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the issued
and unissued share capital of the Company into one
consolidated share of HK$0.50 each (“Consolidated
Share(s)”) and where applicable, round down the total
number of the Consolidated Shares in the issued and
unissued share capital of the Company to a whole number
by cancelling any fraction in the issued and unissued
share capital of the Company which may arise from the
1st Share Consolidation;

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 & =2016F6H30H I FE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

36. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(Continued)

(b) Reduction of the issued share capital of the Company
through a cancellation of the paid-up capital of the
Company to the extent of HK$0.49 on each of the issued
Consolidated Share such that the nominal value of each
issued Consolidated Share would be reduced from
HK$0.50 to HK$0.01 (“Capital Reduction”);

(c) Sub-division of each of the authorised but unissued
Consolidated Share of HK$0.50 each into fifty new
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each; and

(d) The transfer of the credits arising in the books of the
Company from (i) the cancellation of any fraction in the
issued share capital of the Company which may arise from
the 1st Share Consolidation and (ii) the Capital Reduction
to the contributed surplus account of the Company.

The special resolution approving the Capital Reorganisation
was duly passed by the shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 22 April 2015 and the
Capital Reorganisation became effective on 27 May 2015.

On 24 April 2015, the Company proposed the implementation
of the rights issue on the basis of four rights shares (“Rights
Share(s)”) for every one Share held on 15 July 2015 (i.e. the
record date) at the subscription price of HK$0.295 per Rights
Share (“Rights Issue”) with the bonus issue on the basis of
one bonus share (“Bonus Share(s)”) for every two Rights
Shares taken up (“Bonus Issue”). The Rights Issue with the
Bonus Issue was approved by the Company’s independent
shareholders at the special general meeting of the Company
held on 3 July 2015. Completion of the Rights Issue with
the Bonus Issue took place on 7 August 2015. An aggregate
of 1,303,756,800 Rights Shares and 651,878,400 Bonus
Shares were issued to qualifying shareholders of the Company.
The net proceeds of the Rights Issue were approximately
HK$369.10 million.

On 27 January 2016, the Company proposed consolidation
of every five existing ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in
the issued and unissued share capital of the Company
into one consolidated share of HK$0.05 each (“2nd Share
Consolidation”). The 2nd Share Consolidation was approved by
the Company’s shareholders at the special general meeting held
on 10 March 2016 and the 2nd Share Consolidation became
effective on 11 March 2016.

The shares issued rank pari passu with other shares of the
Company in issue in all respects. None of the Company or its
subsidiaries repurchased, sold, redeemed or cancelled any of
the Company’s shares during the years ended 30 June 2016
and 2015.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme”) which was adopted pursuant to a resolution
in writing of all shareholders passed on 11 June 2011
(“Adoption Date”). The purposes of the Share Option
Scheme are to attract and retain the best available personnel
and to provide additional incentives or rewards to full time
or part-time employees, Directors (whether executive or
non-executive), consultants, supplier, customer, joint venture
partner, business associates and advisor (professional or
otherwise) of the Company for their contribution to the
Company and to promote our success. The Share Option
Scheme became effective on 4 July 2011 (“Effective Date”).
Subject to earlier termination by the Directors and approved
in advance by the shareholders in a general meeting, the
Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effecting for a period
commencing from the Effective Date and expiring at 5:00 p.m.
on the business day preceding the tenth anniversary of the
Adoption Date.

The total number of shares of the Company available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme must not in aggregate,
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company at the
Effective Date.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of
the options which may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme (including exercised, cancelled or outstanding
options) to each participant (other than a substantial
shareholder, chief executive or director as explained below) in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company for the time being. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 & =2016F6H30H I FE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 37. WEREEE (5

180

Share options granted to a Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules),
are subject to approval in advance by the independent
non-executive Directors (excluding any independent
non-executive Director who is the grantee of the options).
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their respective associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the Company’s shares
at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, in the
12-month period up to and including the date of grant, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted in
writing by a participant within 21 days from the date of
offer upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 by
the grantee. No consideration is payable on the grant of an
option. The exercise period for the share options granted is
determined by the Directors, which period may commence
from the date of acceptance of the offer for the grant of share
options but shall end, in any event, not later than 10 years
from the date of the conditional adoption of the Share Option
Scheme by the shareholders subject to the provisions for early
termination under the Share Option Scheme.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 & =2016F6H30H I FE

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 37. MR HEstE ()
Details of the share options granted under the Share Option FARBEEREFENARFEET - EE #HA
Scheme to Directors, employees, consultants and other ANEMEERSEERTE 2 BIREMESERF
eligible participants of the Company during the year and N R E 2 S EFIBMT
movement in such holding during the year are as follows:
Number of share options Number of share options
LEL L LEL L
Adjustment
for the effects
of the Share
Consolidation
in March 2016
and the
Exercisable ~ Outstanding Granted Lapsed  Exercised  OQutstanding Granted Rights Issue Lapsed Exercised ~ Outstanding
price at 1July during the during During at 1 July during ~ and Bonus Issue during During at 30 June
Date of grant Exercisable period per share 2014 year the year The year 2015 the year in August 2&1!5 the year The year 2016
R2016%3A R
20145 R15E AR RR15% 120165
) ) TR18 ) TR18 BARBR ) 6A308
RAAM fies l&h% RETE Fhid FRER ERfE RATTE FREH  RBTCHE EREN ERTTE RRTTE
A1
Directors 5072013 250720130 24.07.2014 151 3,456,000 = (3,456,000 = = = = = = =
g% N3ETRBE  N1ETABAE
N14ETAAE
Diectors 09.122013 09.12.20131008.12.2014 12 1,091,200 - (1,091,200 = = = = = = =
g% N3E12R98  13512A90F
N1451288R
Directors 14102014 14102014 1013.10.2015 302 - 4340800 - - 4,340,800 = (2860476)* (1,480,324) = =
g2 N4EI0A14R  014F10A14RE
0155108137
Emplojegs 2507.2013 25.07.201310 24.07.2014 151 1,088,000 - (1,083000) = = = = = = =
&8 N3ETABR  N13FTABAE
01457848
Employees 09.12.2013 09.12.201310 08.12.2014 12 4244800 = 4,244,800) = = = = = = =
&8 NI3EI2A9R  NI3F12A9RE
N14512A84
Employees 14102014 14.1020141013.10.2015 302 - 4,807,200 - - 4827200 - (3,181,001)* (1,646,199)* = =
&8 NEI0R14E  014510814RF
0156108138
Consultant 09.12.2013 0912201310 08.12.2014 122 1,697,600 = (1,697,600) = = = = = = =
A NI3EI2A9R  NI3F12A9RE
N14512A84
Consultant 14102014 14.102014 10 13.10.2015 302 - 3734400 - - 3,734,400 - (2460874) (1,273,526)* = =
EEIN NEI0R14E  014510814RF
015108138
Others 5072013 25.07.20130 24.07.2014 151 2,304,000 = (2,304,000) = = = = = = =
ity N3ETRBE  N1ETABEE
N14ETAAUE
Others 09.12.2013 09.12.20131008.12.2014 12 4486400 - (4486400) = = = = = = =
iff N3%12R98 13512890 F
N1451288R
Others 14102014 14102014 1013.10.2015 3024 - 6,377,600 - - 6,377,600 S (4.202,675) (2,174.925) = 2
ity N4E10A148  014F10A14RF
0155108137
Total
a3t 18368000 19280000  (18,368,000) - 19280000 - (12,705,026)* (6,574,974)* = =
Exercisable at the end
_ of the year
RELARE 18,368,000 19,280,000 -
Weighted average
exercise price (HA9) NA
NELEER(FT) 13 103 13 - 103 - AR 302 - -
During the year ended 30 June 2015, 19,280,000 (being REZE2015F6 8308 LEFE A+ 19,280,000 &
adjusted for the share consolidation of the Company in May 20155 A AR AW RR 0 & BFFTEA B ) 10 FE AR 4
2015) options were granted on 14 October 2014. The Group BER2014F 108 148 HF i - AEBBA QR T
recognised total expense of approximately HK$2,385,000 IR RERE E2015F6 A308 L FEMRAX
for the year ended 30 June 2015 in relation to share options 4855 492,385,000/ T °

granted by the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 37. REREs® (=2
Options granted are fully vested at the date of grant. FREEREARL AREREES -
The fair values were calculated using the binomial option ANEENFEAZEAAECEREA FUFE - =
pricing model. The inputs into the binomial option pricing EAREEERAFMANBAZERNOT

model were as follows:

14 October
Date of grant 2014
20145
BHAH 10A14H
Closing share price at the date of grant KL BB TE HK$0.1757%8 7T
Exercise price 11 E HK$0.206/& 7T
Contractual option life BB E T 1 yearsF
Risk-free rate e & 0.090%
Annualised dividend yield FEACREE 0%
Expected volatility of underlying share FERAR% 15 M TR HA R 1R 51.660%
Expected exercise multiple TEEITEEH 1.60X — 2.47X
Expected volatility was determined by using the historical TE HR R 08 T4 AR AN 2 5 % (B A £ B R ek 78 HF 4F 2R
volatility of the Company’s share price over the most recent BRSO HNE L RIEETE -
period commensurate with the expected life of the share
options.
The fair values were calculated by Ascent Partners, an NFEHEARNERWERBENBL S EREE
independent qualified professional valuer not connected HEMXATFUAGTE - —BRBAEEEEREA A
to the Group. The binomial option pricing model is one of T EREATFENTRFEARN 2 — - BR
the commonly used models to estimate the fair value of the HEEREE T EBRENTRE S M E - 5tit
options. The value of an option varies with different variables FrRME SN E ez e EREA T ENMG
of certain subjective assumptions. Any changes in the FIBREARNTE -
variables so adopted may materially affect the estimate of the
fair value of an option.
*  The above information has been adjusted to reflect the effects of o EE R R N20165F3 A B AR D
the share consolidation in March 2016 and the Rights Issue and S R2015F8 A B EMBBR KA R BT 2 E

Bonus Issue in August 2015 as set out in Note 36. (FARKIFE36) -
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38. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for the following future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases to mainly
independent third parties in respect of rented premises which
fall due as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 & =2016F6H30H I FE

38. EEHAKIE
FRER/ERBA
RBEMR REAEELREDEATZBIE
= AR AT REAETHE  AEBRKKE
HE2HmT:

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

T FET

Within one year —F N 38,242 41,747
In the second to fifth years inclusive E_FEFERTF

(BEEMEBRBEA) 42,898 33,765

81,140 75,512

Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease terms of
one to five years.

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments

BOKERRABECEE HHAA—ZERF-

FRERHAA
REI|EMR - AEEEBEP R AT HR 2 H
TAREKEHER TOARRKERSTLA

under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as 7 :
follows:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$000
TFEIT TET
Within one year —F R 732 713
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEFRF
(BEMEBEEN) 854 1,586
1,586 2,299

Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease terms of
three years.

HOKERRABEEMES HBAR=F-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

39. COMMITMENTS 39. &I
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Capital expenditure contracted for but not RUTREBELER
provided in the consolidated financial RERE TGk P B ED
statements in respect of: BARYE
— acquisition of property, — BB BB MR
plant and equipment 2,287 2,584
— capital injection in a joint venture —RELRBHEE 9,750 9,750
— shareholder’s loan to an associate — B TFHERT ZIRREER = 28,901
12,037 41,235

40. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 26 August 2015, the Group entered into a conditional
sales and purchase agreement (“SP Agreement”) with

40. BBWR—RMELRKBRE

M2015F8A26H  NEB BRI LI LA K
HEEHmZE ([EEWME]) AR BEHEEE—
U BE Vision Smart®2 H 2 #H 1T R H H51% K
Vision Smart#t /R 2 5¢ 4 #) 2 B (& 7 LA Vision
Smart » 1B #916,810,0005 7T - IR UL BB Al - N &
E #5A Vision Smartd9% I « W LA = g 5HES
R o WIEH 2015510 A 16 H 52 5% * Vision Smart2
AR EEREZE 2 EKH B ARG - Vision SmartE
ENEMERERIEER-

Mr. Leung in relation to the acquisition of Vision Smart by
further acquiring 51% of the entire issued shares of Vision
Smart and the entire debts owing by Vision Smart to Mr. Leung
at the consideration of approximately HK$16,810,000. Prior
to the acquisition, the Group held 49% equity interest in
Vision Smart and was accounted for by equity accounting.
The acquisition was completed on 16 October 2015 and
Vision Smart became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group. Vision Smart is principally engaged in property
investment and investment holding.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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For the year ended 30 June 2016 & =2016F6H30H I FE

40. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH 40. EBBKBE—RMMEBATRKESEE (£)
ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the BRI EHMBCEERRBEZAR
date of acquisition
HK$'000
FET
Current assets MEEE
Deposits and prepayments e RIEMFKIE 32,015
Bank balance RITHE A -
Current liabilities mBAE
Accruals and other payables JERHE A I H Ath FE < 5B (3)
Loans due to shareholders FETRR R E (31,031)
981
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition KWSEEzRRHRE
HK$'000
FET
Consideration paid in cash MIREZ Mz RE 16,809
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired BB ECHE MRS EEY -
16,809
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For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 41.

Disposal of interest in subsidiaries

HEMRELR
HEMBARZER

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control

was lost

On 1 June 2016, the Group disposed of its entire equity
interest in Sky Link Management Limited (“Sky Link”)
and its subsidiary to an independent third party at a cash

RERFENRERARS W

R2016F6A1H AEENUNREKE
2,800,000 TM — B BIE=FHEER KT
ERARAR ([RTREMBARZ 2K

consideration of HK$2,800,000. o
HK$'000
FET
Non-current assets IEREEE
Property, plant and equipment Y B KR 616
Current assets mEEE
Trade and other receivables g5 K E b e W FRIE 3,318
Bank balances and cash RITEBREIRS 345
Current liabilities mEEE
Accruals and other payables FERTE A I H th FE S IR (2,631)
Net assets disposed of FritEEEFE 1,648
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARBHIR
HK$'000
FET
Consideration received BUER(E 2,800
Net assets disposed of FrHEEEFE (1,648)
Cumulative translation gain released from B IE N SRR 25T
translation reserve R 40
Gain on disposal & s 1,192

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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For the year ended 30 June 2016 & =2016F6H30H I FE

41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 41. HERB AR (£)
Disposal of interest in subsidiaries (Continued) HERBLARZER (&)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEMEEMRSRARH
HK$'000
FEL
Consideration received in cash and EWERE K
cash equivalents BeEEYRE 2,800
Less: cash and cash equivalents B FTHERER
balances disposed of ReZEBYEH (345)
2,455
For the year ended 30 June 2015 #E2015F6A30HILLFEE
On 7 November 2014, the Group disposed of its entire equity MR2014F11 A78  RNEBE LR SR (E10,0008 7T
interest in Modern Bachelor Education (Whampoa Garden) i & E 7 Modern Bachelor Education (Whampoa
Limited (“MBE Whampoa”) to an independent third party at Garden) Limited ([MBE Whampoa ) 8% 3B #E
a cash consideration of HK$10,000. The net assets of MBE T E = - R E B E - MBE Whampoal) &
Whampoa were approximately HK$4,000 as at the date of EFEXNA0008TT BIEE S R EMEWKFIE
disposal, comprised of trade and other receivables.
Gain on disposal of subsidiary HEMB AR E
HK$'000
FET
Consideration received BUERR(E 10
Net assets disposed of & &EFE (4)
Gain on disposal & W Es 6
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEMEEMBRESRANRHE
HK$'000
TFET
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents BERERE EREEEBYRE 10
Less: cash and cash equivalents balances disposed of & : FFIHEER S NIE S SEME S -
10

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 187
20165 3}



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Parties are considered to be related if one party has,
directly or indirectly, the ability to control or jointly
control or has significant influence over the other
party in making financial and operating decisions. The
management is of the view that the following companies/
persons were related parties that had significant
transactions or balances with the Group during the year.

(a)

42. HEF XS

il — 7 B RENEE AR TT 1 th B 75 S A 2R K
B E R S RS S Ly
BEARE AZ T BERR/EEMTTORRE
HoBRBERR UATRAR/ ALTRFERNH
AEBETERRGRAEHRNEAE -

Name of related party

MES &R

Relationship with the Group
HEEERE

China Vantage International Holdings Limited
(“China Vantage”)

TEEREEARA
(&)

Creative Education

BIEHRE

Modern English Limited
BREBBRAF

Modern iClass Limited

BRETHEARAA

Phoenix Investment Limited

BEREBRAA
Tellet Investment Limited
RNEREBRAF

World Wide Resources Management Limited

RTFEREEBRAA

188 Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
BB (HR)REECEERAR

A wholly-owned subsidiary of Seasoned Leader and an
associate of the Group with effect from 1 October 2013,
operates Compass College

Seasoned Leaderz 2 & ME AR - WE2013F10A1HEA
REBOBE QR LERURER

A joint venture of the Group

Z’g% .Z/\Aé/‘\

100% equity interest held by Ms. Yiu
k2 +F5H 100% A% #

100% equity interest held by Ms. Yiu
kZ +F5 5 100% % #

100% equity interest held by Ms. Yiu
ok 2 T F5 B 100% % #

33.33% equity interest held by Mr. Ng Kam Wing and
16.67% equity interest held by Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric
RIREEFEFFHI333%MIE R R IR M IEEFFHL16.67%KHE

100% equity interest held by Ms. Yiu
Wk Z +#5H 100% % #
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For the year ended 30 June 2016 & =2016F6H30H I FE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a) (Continued)

Name of related party

HES BB

42. MELXES (&)
(@ (#&)

Relationship with the Group
HBEEEPRAE

Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric

RipfmLE

Mr. Ng Kam Wing
RERRTHE

Mr. Lee
TEAE

Mr. Ng Norman

REMEE

Mr. Ng Hoi Tin

REREE

Ms. Yiu

w2z +

Mr. Chau Kai Man
BRI £

Progress Ever Limited
EIXBRA A

A former Director and the elder brother of Mr. Ng Norman
and Mr. Ng Kam Wing
AMEERREMEERRBELE 2L

A brother of Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric and Mr. Ng Norman
RiIBPMEERREWEENRS

A Director

5=

A former Director and the brother of Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric
and Mr. Ng Kam Wing
AEERRBREERRBELE 2B

A director and a former non-controlling shareholder of Able
Investment which is owned as to 88.75% by the Group;
ceased to have 9.58% equity interest in Able Investment
with effect from 31 March 2014

FERBE (AANEBEHEES8.75% ) I E B30 A1 FEHE A%
R BE20145F3H31 AR TEHEFRIRE 29.58%M #

A former Director and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group
HMESERAEBSETHBARNES

A director of certain subsidiaries of the Group
TEEMETHBARNES

100% equity interest held by Mr. Chau Kai Man
JB) I8 3 5 4 %5 8 100 % A%
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For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 42. MEBEXZH (&£
(b) Save as the balances with related parties as disclosed (b) BRERA BAFSAR 3R P il 8 BB 38 7 By A5 o4
in the consolidated statement of financial position, the O REBRFRNEBERFT A TEARR
Group entered into the following significant transactions 7

with related parties during the year:

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Rental expenses, building BAE R AT & T 5T S 1Y
ML, fgee'h . AR NBIESH
air-conditioning charges -
and rates to independent %Hﬂ{ﬁgﬁi VETF
third parties under licence EEBE THEK
arrangement with related Z4m (HisE) -
party (note):
— Modern English Limited —HERAZBHERAA 218 2,723
Rental expenses to: MATARYNHEERAS
— Tellet Investment Limited —REBELEBRRA = 1,251
Management fee expenses to: MUTATSZRNEEERS
— Mr. Ng Hoi Tin —REREE - 60
— Creative Education —BIE#HAE - 19
Commission expenses to: MUATRRZAAE:
— China Vantage —HE 8,372 6,921
Consultancy income from: REMNNTARZBAKA :
— China Vantage —HE 2,265 =
Tutor contractor fee to: MUATALTZFEMERE :
— Mr. Ng Norman — REE A = 1,783
— Mr. Lee — oA 315 255
— Ms. Yiu — k&£ 252 90
Impairment losses recognised FEUY —REREE A T 2E Y
on amount due from a related SR T ] A E
company:
— Phoenix Investment Limited —BFHIRERERAA = 65
Loan interest income from: REUTRARZERFE :
— Progress Ever Limited —BEXERAA 78 =
Note: These premises were leased initially by the above Kt ZEVESVHLREESRBLIE=F
related party from independent third parties. These HE ZEREFHBZEBIE=FE]
related party then licenced the premises to the Group YHEERERZEEENERBSFAIR
at the same rates specified in the respective lease SEFRZEDE-

agreements with independent third parties.

190 Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
BB (HR)REECEERAR



42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

The particulars of the related party transactions regarding
the tutor contractor fee to Mr. Lee as disclosed in (b)
above are as follows:

On 15 August 2013, Sense Publishing Company Limited
and Mr. Lee entered into a service contract with the
Group, pursuant to which Sense Publishing Company
Limited agreed to (i) procure Mr. Lee to provide tutoring
services to students of the Group; and (ii) grant a sole,
exclusive and non-transferable licence to the Group
to use and reproduce the teaching materials prepared
by Mr. Lee for the tutorial courses organized by the
Group for secondary school students and conducted by
teaching assistants with the said teaching materials for
a term commenced from 1 July 2013 and expired on
30 June 2016.

Pursuant to the service contract, Sense Publishing
Company Limited is entitled to certain fees calculated at
a commission rate (comprising of the commission and
gratuity components) of 60% of the tuition fees net of
any refund, discounts or rebate paid by the students to
the Group for attending the tutorial courses conducted
entirely by Mr. Lee in person. If the tutorial class is not
entirely taught by Mr. Lee in person but by other tutors
or teaching assistants using the teaching materials
prepared by Mr. Lee and/or his teaching assistants, the
commission rate will be adjusted downwards by 1.5% to
8%. The fee payable by the Group to Sense Publishing
Company Limited is the product of the relevant
commission rate and the net tuition fee aforesaid subject
to further other deductions such as the costs of teaching
assistants and other certain costs associated with his
classes, including promotional and marketing events,
reference materials and copyright licence fees.

As Mr. Lee, an executive Director, is the sole shareholder
of Sense Publishing Company Limited, both Sense
Publishing Company Limited and Mr. Lee are connected
persons of the Company and the transactions
contemplated under the service contract constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company under
the Listing Rules.

The key management personnel includes Directors and
chief executive and the compensation paid to them is
disclosed in Note 11.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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42. REHRS (&

() MEXMDBRAEERFEEXNEMMAR
ENBETRZHFBTAOT

MR2013F8H15H BB EHRER AR &
ERAENEBTREAL - FEL - AE
FEHRERARREORETEERAE
BELEREHERE: RMEBELE— BR
RO ERETETASEFEARERS
EAEFRENEN  UWARAEB AT E4E
&% WA BBIREFTIERM S B T #1T
M E R FHMN2013F7A1BHAB ER
201696 A30H & °

RIBRBEH ABZEHRERIAERER
BIZS2ERHET2HFTRERBHRNHE
BaiEMf FASEEE & (EREM
BFCFHHEN) M60%ME R EHE
TER (BREAS AWM EN) - MEE
M FEEERFRERBHE  HEREME
RSB BB AT R ERLEHEIER
BB MBI - BB XK THLE%E
8% - AEEXNTHBEELRAERAAN
ERAHBERSEFA LFHBEENTE -
HEZRHE — SR AR - PIanZR B Bh IR MY
ERMERAERENHEMETER B8RFE
ERMIGHEREEE 2EMHRRES -

HRATEETRERRAEEZHLRABR A
MM —BR  WABELRERAF T
TEEHRARBNBEEAL MRELETR
A ZIRBAENATRETHORZBRAR
AINFERER S -

d) FEERABBREERIBZTBRAR M

RIS SN NI
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For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 43. TEMB AT
Particulars of Company’s principal subsidiaries at 30 June KR AIR2016F K2015F6 A30B 2 = BN E A
2016 and 2015 are set out as follows: A EBESINT
Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ Place of paid share capital/ Attributable equity
Name of principal subsidiary establishment operation registered capital interest of the Group  Principal activities
ERTR
BREEREF
IEMBLTRE R,/ BB HEMR EmEE *EARGERFERE FERH
2016 2015
Able Investment BVI Hong Kong US$10,000 88.75% 88.75%  Investment holding
FMREE RERTES B 10,000% ¢ 88.75% 88.75% ZEEMK
Bachelor Education Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 88.75% 88.75%  Provision of primary tutoring
services, skill courses and
test preparation courses
BIHE B B 10,0007 7t 88.75% 88.75% RRENEWMBRY RERR
Beijing Strength Limited BVI Hong Kong US$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
ROBRRA RBERTESE B 100%7T 100% 100% HEER
Dignity Choice Limited BVI Hong Kong US$1 100% 100%  Property investments
KBRIHES B IE 100% 100% MERE
Intelligent Education Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Provision of secondary day
school education services
BRIBGHEERAA 3 B 100%7T 100% 100% fREERBRRERSE
Modern Beiya (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
BRI (BE)BERRA 0 G 1005 7T 100% 100% ®REZR
Modern Education (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Provision of tutoring services
Limited
BRHE (B8)BERAA BA BA 10,0007 7 100% 100% REFHBRE
Rosy Lane Investments Limited* BVI Hong Kong Uss$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
KBRZES B It 100% 100% HEZR

192 Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

43. FEMBLT (&)

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ Place of paid share capital/ Attributable equity
Name of principal subsidiary establishment operation registered capital interest of the Group  Principal activities
ERTR
WREREx
IEMBLATEE R,/ L B HE EfEF SEARGERFER FERH
2016 2015

Sky Link? Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 N/A 100%  Investment holding

PN Bt B 10057t FEH 100% HEZR

Sino Network! BVI Hong Kong US$13,983 100% 100%  Investment holding

HERUHEE 9 13983% 7T 100% 100% HEZR
Utmost Vantage Limited BVI Hong Kong US$1 100% 100%  Property investments
HERUEE Bk IE 100% 100% MERE

Wise Action Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment in securities

BEERANA Bt 0 10,000% 7T 100% 100% RERH

BMNKNBEBABRRA PRC PRC RMB1,000,000 N/A 100%  Provision of educational
consultant and management
services

FE ki AR #1,000,0007C REH 100% REHBHAREERY

China Rich Finance Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100%  Money lending

EEMBAERRA 3 Bk 1,000%7T 100% 100% fE&

Modern Bachelor Education Limited  Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Provision of primary tutoring
services, skill courses and
test preparation courses

BRNETERAR 0 0 10,000% 7T 100% 100% RENBHERE RERE

Vision Smart® Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 60% 49%  Property investment and
investment holding

B Bk 10057t 60% 49% MERBRREER

Fastek Investments Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong usD1 100% N/A  Investment in securities

BE BB IEY 100% TER RERES
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43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

43. X EMBLT (&)

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ Place of paid share capital/ Attributable equity
Name of principal subsidiary establishment operation registered capital interest of the Group  Principal activities
ERTR
BRERE
IEMBLTEE R, BB HE HEmEF SEARGERFER FERH
2016 2015
Bullish Times Media Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000 35.70% N/A Magazine publication
REREEERAR Bt B 1,000 ¢ 35.70% THEA EELR
Central Talent Holdings Limited BVI Hong Kong US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
HERUEE B 1% 100% 100% HREZR
Hong Kong Academy of Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 70% 70%  Provision of education and
Financial Sciences Limited research consultancy services
EECRMERBRAR B B 1%L 70% 70% REHERARFARS
Think Smart Global Limited BVI Hong Kong US$500 70% 70%  Investment holding
HERUEE B 500 7T 70% 70% REER
Cosmic Path Holdings Limited BVI Hong Kong US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EERUEE B IE 100% 100% HEER
Ultimate Elite Investments Limited ~ BVI Hong Kong US$20 60% 100%  Investment holding
(“Ultimate Elite”)
EERUEE B 205 7T 60% 100% HREZR

L The companies are directly held by the Company. All other
subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

2 The companies were disposed on 1 June 2016. EM X H# &
BB R A A was established in the PRC in the form of wholly-
foreign owned enterprises.

g The company became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
on 16 October 2015 and the Group disposed of 40% equity
interest in the company in April 2016.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
at the end of, or during, either reporting period.
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43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affect the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A majority
of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal
activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal activities

Principal place of business

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERRE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

43. X EMBLT (&

ERMINZARBMBAR NEERBYEAE
BrXEHEERABEAREZMNBLAR -EEFR
R AL EMMB AR HEREREHE
BRItk -

RBEPR  ARRBAEHAKREMSAIFES
REOEMMERR - RZBZEMBRARNEE
BE-ZFMBARZEIEZRBHAINT

Number of subsidiaries

ETEXRB ETEREESHME MEARZ#HA

2016 2015

Investment holding Hong Kong 14 17
KEER 5
Provision of educational consultant and PRC

management services 1 1
REHEZAREERS X

15 18
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For the year ended 30 June 2016 & Z2016F6A308 It F[E

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 43. T EMBAT (&
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have BAEEXEZERERZHEZENBELARLZ
material non-controlling interests HiE
On 11 April 2016, the Group disposed of 40% equity interest 201654 A118  AEBR—RBILE=F N
in Ultimate Elite and its subsidiary, Vision Smart (collectively Ultimate Elite 5z E MJ /& 2 &]Vision Smart ( £5 18
referred to as “Ultimate Elite Group”) to an independent third [Ultimate Elitef(2® ) B40% % - B RE A
party at a cash consideration of HK$50,000,000. 50,000,000/% JT °
The table below shows the information relating to Ultimate TEREVNEERBEEAFERES AEEIER
Elite Group, the non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group EHI B AR Ultimate Elite 2@ 2 B o LT EITEE
that have material non-controlling interests. The summarised R EREEBANARIMEEHEAI &5

financial information below represents amounts before
intragroup eliminations.

Place of
incorporation and Proportion of ownership
principal place of interests held by the Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
HMEIBER FREEBREAZ
HEARER TEEERE BREEGMLE AEEFARERINAT REFRRER
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
Ultimate Elite Group Hong Kong 40% - 158 - 48,605 -
Ultimate Elite£ @ &k
Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests (435) 128
EREEFEREROTERME AR
48,170 128
2016
HK$’000
TFET
Current assets MENE E 743
Non-current assets ERBEE 119,800
Current liabilities mE e & 26
Non-current liabilities FERBAE =
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RARHEE AEGERS 71,912
Carrying amount of non-controlling interests R ERREE 48,605
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For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 43. T EMBLAT (£
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have BAEXFERERZHFZRINBEARZ
material non-controlling interests (Continued) H1s(2)
Period from
11 April 2016
to 30 June 2016
B2016%
48118 E
20165
6A30H L HfS
HK$’000
FEIT
Revenue WA -
Profit for the period B A8 395
Other comprehensive income for the period B0 H At 2 W as -
Total comprehensive income for the period HAEHmKEEE 395
Profit attributable to owners of the Company RNTHEB A AR F 237
Profit attributable to the non-controlling interests FE 52 % 4 25 1 1 5 158
Profit for the period B A8 395
Total comprehensive income attributable to RARHEB AELEE W= BE
owners of the Company 237
Total comprehensive income attributable to IR EREGEE KRGS
non-controlling interests 158
Total comprehensive income for the period HAZEKRERE 395
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests BT IEIERR SR B -
Net cash outflow from operating activities KEFEBMSHIRES ML FRE (126)
Net cash outflow from investing activities KREFEEMSHIIRES ML FEE (3,170)
Net cash inflow from financing activities BEEBFEHNIESRAEE -
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RekB2ZEWILINFE 622
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For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

44. R kiaF &t 2
AEBREBEARBEABEHEGOSBEMRE

44. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operated a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme

198

(“MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
The assets of the MPF Scheme were held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of an
independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at rate specified in the rules.
The only obligation of the Group with respect of MPF Scheme
was to make the required contributions under the scheme.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees and
each required to make contribution to the scheme at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000 effective from 1 June 2014 for
the MPF Scheme. No forfeited contribution was available to
reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The employees employed in the PRC are members of the
state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the
PRC government. Each of the PRC subsidiaries is required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
schemes is to make the required contributions under the

EEREERAFMRABSHE ([RERF
) BRI IFNEEEB BB UITEA
?%lJE@%$EE$$@Fﬁ¢%>§E9%ﬁ?%ﬁ  RIE R

éJriIJE”JiEH'J%EI&EﬁE\ BRI AET
Eﬂﬁ‘]ttfﬁ”riﬂf’ﬁﬁf Ko AR E L RTRS A S
EI’JIJE—TTE%*H@EZJEIH’EHjFﬁﬁT e Rz

Eontdl BRERERESEAREERBKA
(%Q20l4¢6ﬂ1Eﬁi?ﬁﬁﬁtﬂ*ﬁﬁﬂ&)\zt
FR30,0008 TTAT AR ) Z5% AT &I R - W |E
DR UK AT VR FORUR SR R A 3R -

R BEZENERASETBRBARINERE
RIS EFIMTE’&T/A&EE%ZK
IR E T B2l RZENENE SR B
EFRMERES - AEBERKE G BIROME—
BEERRBAEEL B HEZK -

schemes.

The total cost charged to the consolidated statement of profit RirE ? mhEMEERRERTIRZ2RERY
or loss and other comprehensive income of approximately 1,962, %T_E( 015¢ 471,980,000 7T ) #5 A
HK$1,962,000 (2015: approximately HK$1,998,000) £HF EAE M b s B e 4N 2 K o

represented contributions payable to the above schemes by
the Group during the year.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERRE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

45. BT BRI R W&

2016 2015
20165 20154
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
HiaE F#EIT FHEIT

Non-current assets ERENEE
Investment in subsidiaries RB AR ZRE 322 322

Current assets MEEE
Prepayments and other deposits AR RIERE MRS 235 1,236
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN NGO 645,552 267,535
Bank balances and cash RITEHRERS 63,217 84,085
709,004 352,856
Current liabilities nEBE

Accruals fEstEH 777 1,687
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEAH B /B8 2 R K IR 1,351 1,359
Loan notes EREER 32 146,496 =
148,624 3,046
Net current assets mEEEFE 560,380 349,810
Net assets BEFE 560,702 350,132

Capital and reserves BAR K fE
Share capital % < 36 22,816 3,259
Reserves (note) s () 537,886 346,873
Total equity WE o AR R 560,702 350,132

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
26 September 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wong Yuk Tong
EER
Director

EF

ARBNMBARNKRER2016FIA6HEE S
SHERRETE A TIALTRRES

Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious

e
Director

EF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

45, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 45. EAFIMBERARMERE (&)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
Note: HeE -
Movement in the Company’s reserves EOFMGEER
Share
Share Contributed Merger options  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
B iRE ERE aHteE  BRERE L4 0] it
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET TFET FAT FET FET FET
At 1 July 2014 R2014E781H 206,125 = (28,079) 5,499 (24,649) 158,896
Profit and total comprehensive FERMKZARALE
income for the year - - - - 4,763 4,763
Issue of ordinary shares BITERR 23,709 = = = = 23,709
Transaction costs attributable to BT EBREGER A
issue of new ordinary shares (2,591) - - - - (2,591)
Recognition of equity-settled BRAEREEURGAE
share-based payments HEAER - = 3 2,385 = 2,385
Cancellation of share premium THERNEE (227,243) 227,243 . L = 3
Effect of Capital Reorganisation BRAEENFE = 159,711 = = = 159,711
Share options lapsed BRER K - - - (5,499) 5,499 =
At 30 June 2015 #2015F6A30A - 386,954 (28,079) 2,385 (14,387) 346,873

200 Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERRE

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

45, FLFIMBRARERE (&

Note: (Continued) Bz (&)
Movement in the Company’s reserves (Continued) FOTFRIGKEEE (£)
Share
Share Contributed Merger options  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
B RE ERE aHteE  BRERE L4 0] it
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FAT FET FET FET FET
At 1 July 2015 R2015%7A1R - 386,954 (28,079) 2,385 (14,387) 346,873
Loss and total comprehensive FEFERZERZAE
expense for the year - - - - (158,486) (158,486)
Issue of Rights Shares and BITHBRH R
Bonus Shares 4T A% 365,052 = = = = 365,052
Transaction costs attributable to BOHLAREERFRA
issue of new ordinary shares (15,553) - - - - (15,553)
Share options lapsed BRELK - = = (2,385) 2,385 =
At 30 June 2016 3201646 4308 349,499 386,954 (28,079) - (170488) 537,88

At 30 June 2016, the Company had reserves of approximately
HK$216,466,000 available for distribution in accordance
with the Company Law of Bermuda (2015: approximately
HK$372,567,000).

7201656 A30R * & 1t & # A 49216,466,000
BT ZREANHBREAREAREETOIR
(2015%F : #9372,567,000% 7T ) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEERME

For the year ended 30 June 2016 #;=2016F6H30H I FE

46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial

statements,

the following significant event took place

subsequent to 30 June 2016:

(i)

(ii)

Disposal of approximately 43% equity interest
in Link Resources

On 27 July 2016, the Group completed the disposal of
approximately 43% of the issued share capital of Link
Resources. As a result, Link Resources ceased to be an
associate of the Group with effect from 27 July 2016.

Acquisition of approximately 10% of the
total issued share capital of Interactive
Entertainment China Cultural Technology
Investments Limited (“IE China”)

On 9 September 2016, the Group further acquired
approximately 10% of the then total issued share capital
of IE China at a cash consideration of approximately
HK$32,510,000. As a result, the Group holds an
aggregate of approximately 28.88% of the then total
issued share capital of IE China which become an
associate of the Group with effect from 9 September
2016.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited

ERHE (BB RASERRRA

46. RENERER

BRZEGEMBRREMEGAREEIN B
20165F6 A0 KB AU TEXREIA:

(i)

(ii)

H &5 58 B 7] & 943 %% 1

R2016%7 278 » AN & B 52 R & #043%
BiA AR BEITRA-RiL BiAl & A B
016F7HA2IR BT BRAEE 2 BE R
I:TJO

WBERPEXEHEREARAF
(lggtﬁﬂhj)ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ*ﬁﬂZﬁ

M2016F9A9H  AEENUBE & REL
32,510,000/ T —FWEERPEERE
BITRARBENI0% -t NEEFER
IR B R B BT IR AN 4B 80 4028.88% T &
IR B H2016F9 A9 B A A K B 2 B



Five-Year Financial Summary

AFEMBEE

The following is a summary of the published results and assets and LA N AAREBEIE N XM & EEHEE A T EH K
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years prepared on FEMCTREENEEHABEHMES-
the basis set out in the notes below.

RESULTS E$

Year ended 30 June

HEGHA30HILLEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TFET FET FET FET FET

Revenue A 189,778 208,439 235,805 248,348 318,654
(Loss) profit before tax BrAAT (E1E) & F (144,802) 34,078 (66,312) (24,676) 38,270
Income tax expenses s (321) (1,147) (195) (1,990) (6,298)
(Loss) profit for the year FE (BB RF (145,123) 32,931 (66,507) (26,666) 31,972
Attributable to: AT AR :

Owners of the Company ViN/NETE7 SN (144,718) 33,028 (66,517) (25,239) 31,157
Non-controlling interests IR R (405) (97) 10 (1,427) 815

(145,123) 32,931 (66,507) (26,666) 31,972

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RERAR

As at 30 June
"6HA30H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TFET FET FET FET FBET

Total assets REE 798,521 364,954 233,393 228,104 187,664
Total liabilities waff (189,649) (28,337) (21,200) (30,018) (24,995)

608,872 336,617 212,193 198,086 162,669

Assets attributable to: UTALTEGEE:
Owners of the Company KARHEE A 560,702 336,489 211,968 197,144 160,300
Non-controlling interests IEITRRRE = 48,170 128 225 942 2,369

608,872 336,617 212,193 198,086 162,669
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Particulars of Major Investment Properties

FERBURZFR

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT BHERBRZME

Location Lot number Existing use Lease term

nE I B 4R HRAHRE 1

Office No. 1303 on 13th Floor, Argyle Centre Phase |, Kowloon Inland Shops Medium-term lease
No. 688 Nathan Road, No. 65 Argyle Street, Mong Kok, lot number 1262

Kowloon, Hong Kong

BB LB BT UE6S8E I oh B 2 655 JLEE D ER JE & REIRE

AL —HI13#1303F 126255

Offices A-H, J-N & P on 21st Floor of Kings Wing Plaza 1, Sha Tin Town Vacant Medium-term lease
No. 3 On Kwan Street, Shek Mun, Shatin, New Territories, lot number 412

Hong Kong

BB AL AP B3R Y T ER =g REIRE
RIGEIGIH2IZEA-H  JNEPHEHAE F4125%

Car parking spaces Nos. P47, P48 and P49 Sha Tin Town Vacant Medium-term lease
on the basement floor of Kings Wing Plaza 1, lot number 412

No. 3 On Kwan Street, Shek Mun, Shatin,
New Territories, Hong Kong

EBF R BAMLTEH3R Y T i ER =8 REIFEE
RImEIS 1A EB47 - 48 KR 4958 SHEE T F£4125F

204 Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
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